
 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  
 

We Manage Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  
 

 Kenneth Leary, Chair  Diane Dillon, Vice Chair  Margie Mohler   Gregory Rodeno   Brad Wagenknecht 
 Ryan Gregory, Alternate   Eve Kahn, Alternate  Scott Sedgley, Alternate  

  

     
   

 
Administrative Office  

1030 Seminary Street, B 
Napa, California 94559 

Telephone: 707-259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
Consistent with the California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 promoting social distancing, there will 
be no physical or in-person meeting location available to the public. Instead, the meeting will be conducted 

by teleconference. All staff reports for items on the meeting agenda are available on the Commission’s 
website at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx. The meeting will be accessible for all members 

of the public to attend via the link and phone number listed below. 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, August 3, 2020, 2:00 PM 

 
This meeting will be conducted by Teleconference 

Written public comments may be submitted PRIOR to the meeting (Deadline August 3 at 10:00 A.M.). Public 
comments DURING the meeting: See “Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedures” on page 3 

of the agenda.  
 

Join Teleconference Meeting Electronically (computer, tablet or smartphone): click on the link below: 
 
https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/96474747002 
  
Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone: 
 
Dial: (669) 900-6833  
Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 96474747002#  
Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing.  
 
If you need assistance before or during the meeting, please contact Commission Clerk Kathy Mabry at: 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIR; ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The Chair will consider a motion to approve the agenda as prepared by the Executive Officer with any requests 
to remove or rearrange items by members or staff. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
The public is encouraged to address the Commission concerning any matter not on the Agenda. The 
Commission is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not appearing on the posted Agenda.  
See Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda to submit comments. 

 
5. CONSENT ITEMS 

All items calendared as consent are considered ministerial or non-substantive action items. As such, all 
consent items may be approved under one vote of the Commission. With the concurrence of the Chair, a 
Commissioner may request discussion of an item on the consent calendar. 
 
a) Approval of Meeting Minutes: June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting and July 13, 2020 Special Meeting 

 

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx
https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/96474747002
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS
Information items will be received by the Commission without a presentation from staff unless requested by
the Commission. Information items do not involve any action by the Commission.

a) Current and Future Proposals
b) Fourth Quarter Budget Report for 2019-2020
c) Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans
d) Strategic Plan and Work Program Progress Report
e) Executive Officer Report

7. ACTION ITEMS
Items calendared for action do not require a public hearing before consideration by the Commission.
Applicants may address the Commission. Any member of the public may provide comments on an item.
See Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda to submit comments.

a) Los Robles Drive  No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District and Associated CEQA Findings
(Approx. 10 Minutes)
The Commission will consider approving a proposal submitted by landowner petition for annexation of four
incorporated parcels totaling approximately 15.4 acres in size to the Napa Sanitation District. The affected
territory is located at 21 Los Robles Drive, 33 Los Robles Drive, 45 Los Robles Drive, and a property with no
situs address, and identified by the County Assessor as 046-180-017, 046-180-008, 046-180-009, and 046-
180-016, respectively. The annexation is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(k),
which exempts the installation of new pipeline as long as the project does not exceed one mile in length. The
recommended action is for the Commission to adopt a resolution approving the proposal with standard terms
and conditions and making CEQA findings.

b) Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District and Associated CEQA
Findings (Approx. 10 Minutes)
The Commission will consider approving a proposal submitted by landowner petition for annexation of four
incorporated parcels totaling approximately 2.8 acres in size to the Napa Sanitation District. The affected
territory is located at 3660 Linda Vista Avenue, 4009 Linda Vista Avenue, 4213 Linda Vista Avenue, and
2415 Trower Avenue, and identified by the County Assessor as 007-231-002, 007-152-030, 007-103-004, and
007-172-023, respectively. The annexation is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15282(k), which exempts the installation of new pipeline as long as the project does not exceed one mile in
length. The recommended action is for the Commission to adopt a resolution approving the proposal with
standard terms and conditions and making CEQA findings.

c) Public Comments Received on the Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review
Draft Report (Approx. 20 Minutes)
The Commission will discuss the public comments received on the draft Countywide Water and Wastewater
Municipal Service Review (MSR). The recommended action is for the Commission to provide direction to
staff with respect to possible future revisions to the MSR to incorporate the public comments. The Commission
may also direct staff to provide written responses to any of the comments.

d) Legislative Report (Approx. 10 Minutes)
The Commission will receive a report on legislative items affecting LAFCOs. The recommended action is for
the Commission to authorize the Executive Officer to submit letters to the Assembly Appropriations
Committee and Senator Anna Caballero opposing the proposed pending amendments to Senate Bill 414.

e) Outreach Committee Update (Approx. 10 Minutes)
The Commission will receive an update from the ad hoc Outreach Committee on potential strategies and
resources needed to provide outreach and education to the general public related to LAFCO activities. The
recommended action is for the Commission to provide direction to staff and/or the Outreach Committee to
commence any desired outreach efforts.

f) CALAFCO Voting Delegates and Board Nominations (Approx. 5 Minutes)
The Commission will consider appointing voting delegates to represent the Commission for the CALAFCO
Board of Directors election and making nominations for the CALAFCO Board.



LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
8.  COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

This is an opportunity for Commissioners to comment on issues not listed on the agenda, provided that the 
subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission. No discussion or action may occur or be taken, 
except to place the item on a future agenda if approved by a majority of the Commission. 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
Monday, October 5, 2020, at 2:00 P.M. at the Napa County Board of Supervisors Chambers, located at 1195 
Third Street, 3rd floor, Napa, CA 94559. It is anticipated the meeting may be conducted by teleconference due 
to COVID-19 in compliance with Executive Order N-29-20.  

 
 

 
MEETING INFORMATION 

 
 

**CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedures 
 
TELCONFERENCE MEETING: In order to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the Commission 
will conduct this meeting as a teleconference in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 and Napa County 
Shelter at Home Order issued March 18, 2020, and members of the Commission or Commission staff may participate in 
this meeting telephonically or electronically. Members of the public may participate in the meeting, as described below. 
 
Join Teleconference Meeting Electronically (computer, tablet or smartphone): click on the link below: 
 
https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/96474747002 
 
Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone:  
 
Dial: (669) 900-6833  
Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 96474747002# 
Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing.  
 
If you need assistance before or during the meeting, please contact Commission Clerk Kathy Mabry at: 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. 
 
SUBMITTING WRITTEN COMMENTS TO BE READ AT THE MEETING: Any member of the public may submit a 
written comment to the Commission before the meeting by August 3, 2020 at 10:00 A.M. by email to 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or by mail to Napa LAFCO 1030 Seminary St., Suite B, Napa, CA 94559-2814. If you are 
commenting on a particular item on the agenda, please identify the agenda item number and letter. Any comments of 500 
words or less (per person, per item) will be read into the record if: (1) the subject line includes “COMMENT TO 
COMMISSION - PLEASE READ”; and (2) it is received by the Commission Clerk prior to the deadline of August 3, 2020 
at 10:00 A.M. 
 
SUBMITTING SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN COMMENTS: Any member of the public may submit supplemental written 
comments to the Commission, beyond the 500-word limit for comments read into the record, and those supplemental written 
comments will be made a part of the written record. 
 
SUBMITTING SPOKEN COMMENTS DURING THE COMMISSION MEETING: 
 
Electronically:  

1. We request that you identify yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is 
your turn to speak. 

2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click “participants”, a menu will appear. On 
computer or tablet: click on the “raise hand” icon or word. On a smartphone: click on your name in the list of 
participants, click on “raise hand”. Staff will activate and unmute speakers in turn.  

3. When you are called upon to speak please provide your name and address for the record.  
4. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted (3 minutes). 

https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/96474747002
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
August 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
By phone (landline): 

1. Your phone number will appear but not your name.  
2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, press *9 to “raise your hand”. Staff will 

activate and unmute speakers in turn. You will be called upon using the last four digits of your phone number, 
since your name is not visible.  

3. When you are called upon to speak please provide your name and address for the record.  
4. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted (3 minutes). 

 
VIEWING RECORDING OF TELECONFERENCE MEETING: The Commission’s teleconference meeting will be 
recorded. Members of the public may access the teleconference meeting and other archived Commission meetings by going 
to https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/cm_meeting_video.aspx. Please allow up to one week for production time. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS: The Commission may reschedule items on the agenda. The Commission will generally hear uncontested 
matters first, followed by discussions of contested matters, and staff announcements in that order.  
  
CONDUCT OF HEARINGS: A contested matter is usually heard as follows: (1) discussion of the staff report and the 
environmental document; (2) testimony of proponent; (3) testimony of opponent; (4) public testimony; (5) rebuttal by 
proponent; (6) provision of additional clarification by staff as required; (7) close of the public hearing; (8) Commission 
discussion and Commission vote. 
  
VOTING: A quorum consists of three members of the Commission. No action or recommendation of the Commission is 
valid unless a majority of the quorum of the Commission concurs therein. 
  
OFF AGENDA ITEMS: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Commission and not on the posted agenda may be addressed 
by the public under “Public Comments” on the Agenda. The Commission limits testimony on matters not on the agenda to 
500-words or less for a particular subject and in conformance with the COVID-19-Notice of Meeting Procedures. The 
Commission cannot take action on any unscheduled items. 
  
SPECIAL NEEDS: Meetings are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for assistive listening devices or other 
considerations should be made 72 hours in advance through the Commission Clerk at (707) 259-8645 or 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov.  
 
POLITICAL REFORM ACT: Pursuant to Government Code Sections 56700.1 and 81000 et seq., any person or 
combination of persons who directly or indirectly contributes $1,000 or more or expends $1,000 or more in support of or 
in opposition to a change of organization or reorganization that will be, or has been, submitted to LAFCO must comply, to 
the same extent as provided for local initiative measures, with reporting and disclosure requirements of the California 
Political Reform Act of 1974. Additional information can be obtained by contacting the Fair Political Practices 
Commission. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the proceedings indicated on this agenda, you 
or your agent is prohibited from making a campaign contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner or Alternate 
Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application before LAFCO 
and continues until three months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. If you or your agent has made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, that 
Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner must disqualify themselves from the decision in the proceeding. However, 
disqualification is not required if the Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. 
  
MEETING MATERIALS: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of the Commission regarding 
any item on this agenda after the posting of the agenda and not otherwise exempt from disclosure will be made available 
for public review at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov or by contacting the Commission Clerk at kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov 
or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. If the supplemental materials are made available to the members of the 
Commission at the meeting, a copy will be available for public review at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov. Staff reports are 
available online at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx or upon request to the Commission Clerk at 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645.  
 

  

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/cm_meeting_video.aspx
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a (Consent/Action) 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Kathy Mabry, Commission Clerk 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Meeting Minutes:  June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting 

and July 13, 2020 Special Meeting (Public Workshop) 
  
 
 
 
DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Commission will consider approving the draft meeting minutes prepared by staff for 
the June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting and July 13, 2020 Special Meeting (Public Workshop), 
included as Attachments One and Two, respectively. Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Draft Minutes for June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting   
2) Draft Minutes for July 13, 2020 Special Meeting (Public Workshop) 

   
 



 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

  REGULAR* MEETING MINUTES OF JUNE 1, 2020 

*Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) and consistent with Governor Newsom’s
Executive Order N-29-20 promoting social distancing, the meeting was
conducted via teleconference. The meeting was accessible for members
of the public to attend electronically via a link and phone number displayed
on page 3 of the agenda under Notice of Meeting Procedures.

1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL
Chair Leary called the special meeting of June 1, 2020 to order at 2:07 PM via teleconference.
At the time of roll call, the following Commissioners and Staff were present:

Regular Commissioners Alternate Commissioners Staff 
Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
Margie Mohler 
Gregory Rodeno 
Brad Wagenknecht 
(left @ 3:27 PM) 

Ryan Gregory 
Eve Kahn 
Scott Sedgley 

Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
DeeAnne Gillick, Commission Counsel 
Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
Kathy Mabry, Secretary 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Leary invited members of the audience to join him in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED AGENDA
Chair Leary asked if there were any requests to rearrange the agenda. There were no requests.
Upon motion by Commissioner Rodeno and second by Commissioner Dillon, the Commission
adopted the agenda as submitted.

VOTE: 
AYES: RODENO, DILLON, LEARY, MOHLER AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Prior to the meeting, the public was encouraged to submit comments to the Commission concerning any
matter not on the agenda, with specific instructions noted under Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of
Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda.
There were no public comments received prior to the meeting, via mail or email.
During the meeting, a public comment was received via telephone from Napa Resident, Riley
Gilbert, who suggested LAFCO agendize the process of unincorporated islands for the City
of Napa, and reach out to homeowners, as he believes most citizens are unfamiliar with how
the process works.

5. CONSENT ITEMS
a) Approval of Meeting Minutes: May 4, 2020 Special Meeting
Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commissioner Dillon, the consent items
were approved by roll call vote:

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY, RODENO AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE

Attachment One

DRAFT



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2020         Page 2 
 

 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS 
The Commission received the following information items without a presentation from staff.  
Information items do not involve any action or vote by the Commission.  
a) Current and Future Proposals 
b) Third Quarter Budget Report for 2019-2020 
c) Executive Officer Report 
There was no discussion on this item. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 

Members of the public were able to address the Commission with respect to any public hearing item, per 
instructions provided on the Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda. 
a) Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and Proposed Amendment to the Schedule of  
Fees and Deposits  
The Commission considered approving a final budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. Proposed  
operating expenses total $540,893 and proposed operating revenues total $519,084 with the  
remaining shortfall of $21,809 to be covered by drawing from agency reserves.  
The Commission also considered approving an amendment to the Schedule of Fees and Deposits.  
The recommended actions are for the Commission to adopt the final budget by resolution and  
adopt a proposed amendment to the Schedule of Fees and Deposits, effective July 1, 2020, by 
resolution. 
Staff provided an overview of this agenda item. 
Chair Leary opened the public hearing. 
There were no public comments received via email before or during the meeting.  
Chair Leary closed the public hearing.  
Chair Leary and Vice-Chair Dillon thanked the Executive Office and the Budget Committee for 
their work on the agency’s budget, especially during these difficult times.   
Commissioner Mohler asked the Executive Officer to explain the formula used for each agency’s 
portion contributed annually to the LAFCO budget.  Mr. Freeman explained this process. 
Upon motion by Commissioner Wagenknecht and second by Commissioner Mohler, the final budget 
for the 2020-21 fiscal year and resolution were approved by roll call vote (Resolution No. 2020-04):  

 

VOTE: 
AYES: WAGENKNECHT, MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY AND RODENO 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE  

  
   Upon motion by Commissioner Rodeno and second by Commissioner Mohler, the amendment 

to the Adopted Schedule of Fees and Deposits and resolution were approved by roll call vote  
(Resolution No. 2020-05):    

VOTE: 
AYES: RODENO, MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE  

 
  
 

 
 

Attachment One

DRAFT



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2020         Page 3 
 

 

8. ACTION ITEMS         
Members of the public were invited to provide comments, per Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting  
Procedure on page 3 of the agenda.  
a) Silver Trail No. 10 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District and Associated CEQA  
Findings     
The Commission considered approving a proposal submitted by landowner petition for annexation  
of one unincorporated parcel totaling 0.5 acres in size to the Napa Sanitation District. The affected  
territory is identified by the County Assessor as 060-342-004.  The purpose of annexation is to  
eliminate the existing private septic system serving the single-family residence and to facilitate  
connection to NSD’s public sewer infrastructure.    
At its May 4, 2020 meeting, the Commission considered a request from the landowner for a waiver  
of application fees, however, that request was denied. 
Staff noted a missing word in the draft resolution located in attachment one of staff report. On 
page 1, in the third “whereas” section, the word “proposal” should be added accordingly. 
Chair Leary opened the public hearing.  No public comments were received.  
Chair Leary closed the public hearing. 
Upon motion by Commissioner Rodeno and second by Commissioner Wagenknecht, the                              
Commission approved the staff recommendation to adopt the amended resolution approving the  
annexation, by roll call vote (Resolution No. 2020-06): 

VOTE: 
AYES: RODENO, WAGENKNECHT, DILLON, LEARY AND MOHLER 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
b) Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Draft Report  
The Commission discussed matters related to the draft Countywide Water and Wastewater  
Municipal Service Review (MSR). This included the public workshop scheduled for July 13, 2020,  
and possible future revisions to the MSR to incorporate information related to COVID-19 impacts  
on the subject agencies. The recommended action was for the Commission to provide formal  
direction to staff with respect to (1) the public workshop scheduled for July 13, 2020, and possible  
future revisions to the MSR, and (2) to consider revising the draft report to address COVID-19  
impacts.   Following discussion, the Commission agreed the MSR should acknowledge the impacts of  
COVID-19, as well as potential fires and earthquakes, by adding a paragraph or two to the report,  
but agreed this should be at no additional expense.  Commissioners, Staff and the Consultant  
discussed the timeline for public review of the report, and a location and time for a July workshop.   
The Commission seemed to be split on whether to hold the workshop in person or virtually via 
a Zoom meeting, however, the decision may be based on the status of the pandemic in July. 
Chair Leary opened the public hearing.  No public comments were received.  
Chair Leary closed the public hearing. 
Upon motion by Commissioner Wagenknecht and second by Commissioner Mohler, the 
following was approved by roll call vote: 
1) Directed staff to circulate the public draft report now for review for 60 days until July 20, 2020; 
2) Return with a presentation on the draft report as part of a Commission meeting; and 
3) Schedule the public workshop for July 2020: 

VOTE: 
AYES: WAGENKNECHT, MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY AND RODENO  
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

Attachment One

DRAFT



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2020         Page 4 
 

 

8.  ACTION ITEMS – continued: 
 c)   2019-2020 Work Program Progress Report and Adoption of 2020-2021 Work Program                     

The Commission received a progress report on the 2019-2020 Work Program and considered  
adopting a 2020-2021 Work Program that includes administrative, planning, and regulatory activities  
for the upcoming fiscal year. The recommended action was for the Commission to adopt the resolution  
to adopt the 2020-21 Work Program. 
Commissioner Mohler commented on the public comment received at the start of the meeting by Riley 
Gilbert to have some information regarding the process of annexing unincorporated islands on LAFCO’s 
website for the public. Staff agreed and will post information on this topic on the agency’s website. 
Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commissioner Dillon, the Commission  
adopted the proposed 2020-2021 Work Program by roll call vote (Resolution No. 2020-07): 

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, DILLON, GREGORY, LEARY AND RODENO  
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT:        WAGENKECHT  
ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
 
9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

The meeting adjourned at 3:45 PM.   The next meeting will be a public workshop scheduled for  
July 13, 2020, time to be determined, location is tentatively at the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, 
located at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559.    
The next regular LAFCO meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 3, 2020 at 2:00 PM tentatively at 
the Napa County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 1195 Third Street, Third floor, Napa,  
CA 94559.  However, it is anticipated the meeting will be held telephonically due to COVID-19 in 
compliance with Executive Order N-29-20. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
ATTEST: 
Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 

Prepared by: 

Kenneth Leary, LAFCO Chair 

 

Kathy Mabry, Commission Secretary 

Attachment One

DRAFT



 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 
            SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 13, 2020 

 
Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) and consistent with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order 
N-29-20 promoting social distancing, the meeting was conducted via teleconference.  
The meeting was accessible for members of the public to attend electronically via a link  
and phone number displayed on page 3 of the agenda under Notice of Meeting Procedures. 

 
1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL                                                                                    

Chair Leary called the special meeting of July 13, 2020 to order at 2:12 PM via teleconference. 
A moment of silence was held in memory of Bill Chiat, former CALAFCO Executive Director who passed away. 
At the time of roll call, the following Commissioners and Staff were present: 

 

Regular Commissioners    Alternate Commissioners   Staff 
Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
Margie Mohler 
Gregory Rodeno 
Brad Wagenknecht  

Ryan Gregory 
(left at 3:00 PM)   
Eve Kahn  
Scott Sedgley 

        Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer  
      DeeAnne Gillick, Counsel           
 Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 Kathy Mabry, Secretary 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Leary invited members of the audience to join him in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. COMMISSION WORKSHOP 
At the start of the meeting, staff read instructions to the audience regarding how to make Public Comments during the 
workshop, electronically or by phone, as well as how to address the Commission once called upon for comments. 
The Commission held a public workshop for the purposes of providing an update on a comprehensive 
Draft Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR) report.  
Staff welcomed everyone to the workshop, and provided a brief overview of the agenda.   
Staff introduced the private MSR Consultants, Jennifer Stephenson of Policy Consulting Associates,  
and Richard Berkson with Berkson Associates. 
The Consultants gave a presentation on the status of the study. Below are topics reviewed and discussed: 
 

• STUDY SCHEDULE UPDATE:  Upcoming Important Dates:  Comments due 7/20/20;   
Discuss comments at Commission Meeting 8/3/20, and Public hearing for adoption 10/5/20. 

• What is a Municipal Service Review? 
• MSR Process  
• Providers of Water and Wastewater in Napa County (total of 14) 
• Summary of recommendations for the affected agencies 
• Challenges to Services 
• Financial Challenges 
• Governance Structure Options:  Potential Benefits/Financial Benefits/Potential Challenges  
• Next Steps for Countywide/Regional Governance Structure Options 
• Questions/Comments 
• To view full workshop: https://napa.granicus.com/player/clip/4632?view_id=25 

 

Staff noted that as of July 10, 2020, seven written comment letters on the draft MSR had been received  
from the City of Calistoga, City of Napa, Town of Yountville, Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109,  
Dan Mufson, Roland Dumas, and Patricia Damery, all of which were provided to the Commission. 
Following the agenda posting, additional public comment letters were received, and those letters will be  
included as part of the Commission’s August 3, 2020 meeting agenda packet.  
 

  

Attachment Two

DRAFT

https://napa.granicus.com/player/clip/4632?view_id=25


Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Special Meeting Minutes of July 13, 2020 (Public Workshop)       Page 2 
 

 

4. COMMISSION WORKSHOP – continued:  
 
During the presentation, Commissioners were given opportunities to ask questions of staff and consultants,  
and public comments were heard following the presentation.   
The draft MSR included several key recommendations related to the governance structure and shared  
service opportunities for many of the subject agencies. Reorganization/Merging of some agencies, such  
as Napa Sanitation District, were discussed. Potential Joint Power Agreements (JPA) and consolidation  
of smaller districts were also discussed. 
Commissioner Dillon requested the MSR be revised to add a map showing all mutual water companies  
in Napa County and a 4-column chart with each one’s (1) service area/acres, (2) population, (3) number  
of connections, and (4) water source (wells vs surface water). The Executive Officer agreed to take on  
this task and coordinate with the consultant to get it into the next version of the report. 
 
Following the presentation, the Commission was invited to discuss the report, provide direction to staff to 
incorporate any desired revisions, and direction to staff to provide written responses to any of the comments: 
 
 Commissioner Dillon had a question about enforcement of County-wide entity’s trucked water policy  
(for their own jurisdiction). Per the consultant, recommendations on trucked water are in the report. 
Additionally, Commissioner Dillon brought up the history of RID’s (Resort Improvement Districts) and  
asked if RID’s were looked at and incorporated into the report.  Staff noted that in 2011, a study (MSR)  
was prepared on RID options for reorganization. Staff will further review the prior MSR with the consultant  
to more fully incorporate its findings into the draft report.  
 Commissioner Sedgley commended the Consultants on seeking out the sensitive spots in the County that  
need to be addressed and not just consolidations or sphere amendments. 
 Commissioner Mohler talked about Yountville’s water being owned by the State and would the State  
have to agree to join the JPA? The Consultant said it would depend on who the water agency is. 
 Chair Leary commended the Consultants on the quality of this important study, and thanked the  
Commissioners and staff for their participation and implementation of this report.  
 Commissioner Wagenknecht talked about water systems and natural breaks where water is, and asked  
how to maintain orderly growth and succession and enforcing that in a countywide system. The Consultant  
said the County would be responsible for making the land use decisions, citing a similar example in  
Calaveras County, which has a countywide water district (referenced in the overview portion of draft report). 
Commissioner Wagenknecht also asked if CA Code 56133 would remain in effect for water resource 
management. The consultant explained that it depends on the structure, but yes, it would still be essential. 
 
At this point, the Commission took a 10-minute break. 
 
 
Public comments were received from the following: 
 

• Geoff Ellsworth, Mayor of St. Helena, said he appreciates the conversation and where it’s going, and  
supports what Commissioner Mohler said in terms of the Groundwater Sustainability Agency and Plan  
Advisory Committee.  He believes the cross-pollination of information between these two boards will be  
very informative in to directions to go in terms of understanding how we quantify the resource (water)  
and make sure we have equitable distribution. In addition, Mayor Ellsworth suggested the Drought  
Contingency Plan has a lot of information in there that can be woven in to give a more complete picture.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Attachment Two

DRAFT



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Special Meeting Minutes of July 13, 2020 (Public Workshop)       Page 3 
 

 

3.   COMMISSION WORKSHOP – continued:  
 
Public comments continued:   
• Jay Gardner, President of Meyers Water Company, said Meyers serves 100 homes with unmetered  
water connections in the Edgerly Island area on the Napa River, and is regulated by CPUC and the Napa  
County’s Environmental Health Dept.  In 2004, Mr. Gardner took over the operations of Meyers  
Water Company when the owners put the system up for sell.  Since 2004, they have seen significant  
problems and improvements happen including re-casing the well in 2005, complete destruction of the  
tankage system in the 2014 earthquake, and currently a water emergency happening due to the failure  
of the 70-year old well.  Due to the way the CPUC regulates the water company, the water company is  
unable to plan for long-term capital improvements.  Rather than building up a fund for needed replacements,  
like the 70-year old well, they had to go to their bank for a loan for a new well, however, the bank refused  
the loan request due to their financial condition.  They eventually got a loan from RCAC (a lender for small  
rural systems), but only if Mr. Gardner and his wife would personally guarantee that loan.  This easily  
added 6 months to this emergency situation of the failing well, and then COVID-19 made the matter worse.   
Still, they will need to go CPUC and get the loan and a new well approved.   
Mr. Gardner stated he believes this is backwards as to how to fund capital improvements, as it seems  
they have to wait for things to fail under the current system rather than planning and preparing for the  
inevitable replacement.  Some of the issues the water company is facing is it must meter all customers  
within 5 years, and replace the 55-year old main line. These are things in their future, yet they have no  
funding source for these improvements. Mr. Garner stated he and his wife have no desire to further dip  
into their retirement funds, which they have had to do in the past. 
As a small water agency, they are required to adhere to the same water standards as the larger providers,  
however, they are finding it increasingly difficult to do this job, as this is an unsustainable model. 
Mr. Gardner said he appreciates the current water study, as well as LAFCO staff for their efforts. 
 
• Bill Ross, Attorney for City of American Canyon, spoke fondly of the tribute for the late Bill Chiat.  
Mr. Ross also acknowledged the assistance of LAFCO staff as observed in the presentation, in addressing  
the issue of the clarification of LAFCO-approved water service area for the City of American Canyon,  
which goes back to actions taken at the time of incorporation of the City, and the treatment of the former 
American Canyon County Water District. That clarification is essential to the desired goals and options  
presented for governance in the County as a whole with respect to water.  He hopes to have a resolution  
of the matter in order to address what is a detailed and complex problem.   
Mr. Ross appreciates the assistance of staff, and we will continue to work with them to reach resolution. 
 
• Dan Mufson, Representing Napa Vision 2050, thanked LAFCO staff for this comprehensive report  
on water which really shows the magnitude of some of the issues that are affecting us, and believes a  
county-wide service is important, now maybe more than ever, given the growth of the County.  
He proposes putting together a very comprehensive water budget for metering all users and reporting  
so we can ascertain how much water is being used in Napa County.  
  
• Ron Rhyno, City of Napa Resident, spoke about limits to growth, and what is not examined, such as  
more wineries and vineyards, and how the water requirements used for those activities are not revealed.   
He also believes the county should begin to monitor water used for wine/agriculture and focus on  
sustainability of the water for future generations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Two

DRAFT



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Special Meeting Minutes of July 13, 2020 (Public Workshop)       Page 4 
 

 

5. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
Commissioner Mohler thanked all attendees and their thoughtful comments and noted we have many  
challenges ahead of us along with a comprehensive plan and wants to keep this conversation going. 
Commissioner Kahn stated she is thankful the Commission is able to see the bigger picture, and believes  
that an awareness of trucked water should also be looked at within the County. 
Commissioner Wagenknecht wanted to hear from the Commission about where we go from here.  
Commissioner Rodeno believes we should conceive this a unified organization, however long it takes,  
and with a concept of unity, of purpose and function and bring community interest to water issues with  
a county-wide plan and a county-wide agency to implement that plan. 
Chair Leary thanked the Consultants, staff and attendees today, and said he senses the passion and real  
concern about the water and about the County, and believes it is LAFCO’s responsibility to collect and  
gather information of how the services are going to the residents and present the information in a clear and 
unbiased format, which he believes we did with the workshop presentation. Chair Leary said where we go  
from here will depend not only on the elected officials, but on the people who live in the County. 
 
Executive Officer Brendon Freeman offered final comments about the workshop and moving forward. 
Staff will collect all public comments and present them at the August 3, 2020 Commission meeting, which  
will be an opportunity for preferred direction of the MSR.  
A final report with changes based on the August 3rd meeting discussion will be presented to the Commission 
for possible adoption as part of a noticed public hearing on October 5, 2020.  
LAFCO’s Outreach Committee will also look at new strategies. 
Commissioner Dillon requested the Executive officer explain how the comments will be included in this 
process. The Consultant described how they will collect and log comments, and those that require action 
will come back to the Commission for discussion and direction. 
  

6. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
The meeting adjourned at 4:32 PM.  The next regular LAFCO meeting is scheduled for Monday, 
August 3, 2020 at 2:00 PM. The meeting will be conducted by teleconference in compliance with  
California Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20. 
  
 
 

 
 

 
ATTEST: 
Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst 

Prepared by:

Kenneth Leary, LAFCO Chair 

 

Kathy Mabry, Commission Secretary 

Attachment Two

DRAFT



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6a (Information) 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Current and Future Proposals 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This item is for information purposes only. California Government Code Section 56857 
requires change of organization or reorganization proposals involving special districts to 
be placed on the agenda for the next Commission meeting for information purposes only. 
This report summarizes all proposed changes of organization or reorganization that have 
been submitted or are anticipated to be submitted to the Commission, regardless of which 
types of agencies will be affected. There are currently two active proposals on file and 
five anticipated new proposals expected to be submitted in the foreseeable future. A 
summary of active and anticipated proposals follows. 
 
Active Proposals 
 
Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) 
A representative for the landowners of 
four incorporated parcels totaling 
approximately 15.7 acres submitted an 
application for annexation to NSD. The 
parcels are located within the City of 
Napa’s jurisdictional boundary and 
NSD’s sphere of influence (SOI) along 
Los Robles Drive. Current land uses 
within the subject parcels are limited to a 
total of three single-family residences. 
The purpose of annexation is to facilitate 
two development projects already 
approved by the City. The proposal is on 
today’s agenda as action item 7a. 
 
 
 



Current and Future Proposals 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD 
A representative for the landowners of four 
incorporated parcels totaling approximately 
2.8 acres submitted an application for 
annexation to NSD. The parcels are all within 
the City of Napa’s jurisdictional boundary 
and NSD’s SOI, and are located along or near 
Linda Vista Avenue to the north or south of 
Trower Avenue. Current land uses within the 
subject parcels are limited to a total of four 
single-family residences and one detached 
second unit. The purpose of annexation is to 
allow each residence to eliminate their private 
septic systems and connect to NSD’s public 
sewer infrastructure. The proposal is on 
today’s agenda as action item 7b. 
 
 
Anticipated Proposals 
 
Napa County Resource Conservation 
District (NCRCD) Annexation 
Staff from NCRCD has inquired about 
annexation of approximately 1,300 
acres of incorporated territory located 
in the City of Napa. This area 
comprises the only remaining territory 
located within NCRCD’s SOI but 
outside its jurisdictional boundary. The 
purpose of annexation would be to 
allow NCRCD to expand its service 
programs and hold public meetings 
within the affected territory; both 
activities are currently prohibited 
within the potential annexation area. In 
February 2020, the Commission 
approved a request from NCRCD for a 
waiver of the Commission’s proposal 
processing fees. It is anticipated a 
proposal for annexation will be 
submitted within the next eight months. 
  



Current and Future Proposals 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Vintage High School Farm Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation to NSD 
The Napa Valley Unified School District 
(NVUSD) previously submitted a 
preliminary application for an SOI 
amendment and annexation of approximately 
12.8 acres of territory involving NSD. The 
affected territory is unincorporated and 
contiguous to the City of Napa near the 
eastern terminus of Trower Avenue. The 
affected territory is currently undeveloped 
and designated for residential land use under 
the County of Napa General Plan. The 
purpose of the SOI amendment and 
annexation is to facilitate NVUSD’s planned 
relocation of the educational farm and retain 
proximity to Vintage High School. The 
preliminary application is deemed 
incomplete until additional information and 
documents are submitted by NVUSD. It is 
important to note in February 2020, without taking formal action, the Commission 
signaled to NVUSD a willingness to waive its local policy requiring concurrent 
annexation to the City of Napa. It is anticipated a proposal will be submitted to amend 
NSD’s SOI and annex the subject parcels to NSD within the next year.  
 
Watson Lane/Paoli Loop Annexation to the City of American Canyon 
The American Canyon City Council has 
directed staff to initiate proceedings to 
annex 16 parcels and a portion of railroad 
totaling approximately 77.7 acres of 
unincorporated territory. The area is located 
within the City’s SOI near Watson Lane 
and Paoli Loop. The parcels are within an 
unincorporated pocket that is ineligible for 
the streamlined island annexation 
proceedings due to the existence of prime 
agricultural lands on five of the parcels. 
The purpose of annexation is to allow 
development of the area for industrial and 
residential purposes. Annexation would 
also help facilitate the extension of Newell 
Drive to South Kelly Road. Prior to 
submitting a proposal for annexation, the 
City must first amend its General Plan, 
prezone the majority of the area, negotiate a property tax sharing agreement with the 
County, and address the requirements of CEQA. It is anticipated a proposal for 
annexation will be submitted within the next year. 



Current and Future Proposals 
August 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
El Centro Avenue Annexation to NSD 
A landowner inquired about annexation of 
one parcel to NSD. The parcel is located 
at 1583 El Centro Avenue, in the City of 
Napa, and in NSD’s SOI. Current land 
uses within the subject parcel include a 
single-family residence and a planted 
vineyard. The purpose of annexation 
would be to facilitate a residential 
development project under the City’s land 
use authority. Based on parcel size and the 
City’s land use designation, annexation to 
NSD could potentially facilitate the future 
development of the subject parcel to 
include up to 36 total single-family 
residential units. The City has indicated 
an environmental impact report will be 
prepared for the residential development 
project. It is anticipated a proposal for 
annexation will be submitted within the next 18 months. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Annexation to the Napa Berryessa Resort 
Improvement District (NBRID) 
Staff from NBRID has inquired about 
annexation of the two unincorporated 
parcels comprising NBRID’s two 
wastewater treatment plants. The 
wastewater treatment plants are 
owned by NBRID and located outside 
NBRID’s SOI and boundary. The 
purpose of annexation would be to 
reduce NBRID’s annual property tax 
obligations. The submittal of an 
application from the District to annex 
one or both of the parcels is expected 
to follow the Commission’s action on 
a comprehensive SOI Update for 
NBRID, which will follow the 
completion of the Commission’s 
Countywide Water and Wastewater 
Municipal Service Review. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6b (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Fourth Quarter Budget Report for 2019-2020 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
This item is being presented to the Commission for information purposes only. The 
Commission will receive a fourth quarter budget report for fiscal year 2019-2020. A fourth 
quarter budget sheet showing year-end actuals is included as Attachment One. 
 
On June 3, 2019, the Commission adopted a final budget for fiscal year 2019-2020. The 
Commission subsequently approved three mid-year budget adjustments on August 5, 2019, 
November 18, 2019, and May 4, 2020. The result was an adjusted budget totaling $685,000 
for operating expenditures divided between salaries and benefits, services and supplies, 
and contingencies. Budgeted revenues totaled $503,761 divided between 
intergovernmental fees, service charges, and investments. A deficit of $181,239 was 
intentionally budgeted to reduce the burden the Commission’s local funding agencies and 
to be covered by drawing down on reserves. 
 
The Commission outperformed its intentionally-budgeted deficit by finishing the fiscal 
year with an overall operating shortfall of $107,356, representing a savings of $73,883 
compared to the adjusted budget. Operating revenues were budgeted at $503,761 and actual 
revenues totaled $511,069, representing 101.5% of the budgeted amount. Operating 
expenses were budgeted at $685,000 and actual expenses totaled $618,425, representing 
90.3% of the budgeted amount. See Attachment One for more information. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
1) 2019-2020 Fourth Quarter Budget Sheet Showing Year-End Actuals 



 Account  Category 
 Adopted 
Budget 

 Budget 
Adjustments 

 Adjusted 
Budget 

 Actual Year-
End 

 Year-End % of 
Budget 

42690 Permits/Application Fees 25,000        - 25,000 26,964           107.9%

43910 County of Napa 235,631     - 235,631 235,631         100.0%

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 235,630     - 235,630 235,631         100.0%

45100 Interest 7,000          - 7,000 12,062           172.3%

46800 Charges for Services 500             - 500 781 156.2%

4* Total Revenues 503,761   - 503,761 511,069      101.5%

51100 Salaries and Wages 269,085     (269,085)           -                - - 

51200 401A Employer Contribution 1,000          (1,000)               -                - - 

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 420             (420) - - - 

51210 Director/Commissioner Pay 15,000        - 15,000 10,800           72.0%

51300 Medicare 4,090          (3,865)               225               158 70.2%

51305 FICA 500             - 500 506 101.2%

51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 54,408        (54,408)             - - - 

51405 Workers Compensation 675             (675) - - - 

51600 Retirement 53,691        (53,691)             - - - 

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 16,134        (16,134)             - - - 

52100 Administration Services - 424,278 424,278       407,298         96.0%

52105 Election Services 200 -                     200 - 0.0%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 8,000          - 8,000 6,710             83.9%

52130 Information Technology Service 24,590        - 24,590 24,590           100.0%

52140 Legal Services 30,000        - 30,000 30,000           100.0%

52310 Consulting Services 10,000        102,624            112,624 79,623           70.7%

52345 Janitorial Services 300             - 300 300 100.0%

52515 Maintenance-Software 2,000          - 2,000 1,929             96.5%

52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 5,500          - 5,500 4,969             90.3%

52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 29,523        - 29,523 29,523           100.0%

52700 Insurance - Liability 4,554          - 4,554 380 8.3%

52800 Communications/Telephone 3,000          - 3,000 3,591             119.7%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 1,500          - 1,500 1,440             96.0%

52835 Filing Fees 250             - 250 154 61.5%

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 12,295        - 12,295 8,348             67.9%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 3,000          - 3,000 1,449             48.3%

53100 Office Supplies 2,000          - 2,000 1,193             59.7%

53110 Freight/Postage 300             - 300 158 52.6%

53120 Memberships/Certifications 3,261          - 3,261 3,261             100.0%

53205 Utilities - Electric 1,300          - 1,300 1,306             100.5%

53410 Computer Equipment/Accessories 300             - 300 617 205.7%

53650 Business Related Meal/Supplies 500             - 500 122 24.4%

5* Total Expenditures 557,376   127,624         685,000     618,425      90.3%

Net Surplus (Deficit) (53,615)    (127,624)        (181,239)   (107,356)     -59.2%

Revenues and Expenses through June 30, 2020

Revenues

Expenses

LAFCO Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Fourth Quarter Budget Report
Attachment One



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 

 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6c (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
   Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
 
 
LAFCO’s adopted Strategic Plan 2018-2022 includes the following core guiding principles related 
to general plans and housing: 

• Engagement with local city/town general plan updates 
• Active with local agencies in managing housing growth and related issues including 

transportation 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This report is for information purposes only and provides an update on implementation of the 
Strategic Plan principles listed above. A summary is included of current and planned activities 
relating to each local land use authority’s General Plan. Charts are included for each jurisdiction’s 
required Annual Housing Progress Report. This information will support the Commission’s future 
decision-making as it relates to encouraging logical and orderly growth and development 
throughout Napa County. 
 
State law recognizes the vital role local governments play in the supply and affordability of 
housing. Each local government in California is required to adopt a Housing Element as part of its 
General Plan that shows how the community plans to meet the existing and projected housing 
needs of people at all income levels. Government Code Section 65400 mandates that certain cities 
and all 58 counties submit an annual report on the status of the General Plan and progress in its 
implementation to their legislative bodies, the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR), 
and the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) by April 1 of 
each year. Only charter cities are exempt from the requirement to prepare Annual Progress Reports 
unless the charter stipulates otherwise (Government Code Section 65700). 
  



Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 7 
 
Regional Housing Need Allocation 
 
The Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) is the state-mandated process to identify the total 
number of housing units by affordability level that each jurisdiction must accommodate in its 
General Plan Housing Element. As part of this process, HCD identifies the total housing need for 
the San Francisco Bay Area for an eight-year period. The Association of Bay Area Governments 
(ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) develop a methodology to 
distribute this need to local governments consistent with Sustainable Communities Strategies. 
Once a local government has received its final RHNA, it must revise its Housing Element to 
demonstrate how it plans to accommodate its portion of the region's housing need. 
 
Certain actions related to RHNAs are required of the local land use authorities, and certain other 
actions are strictly advisory. Specifically, jurisdictions are required to zone a sufficient amount of 
land to accommodate their respective RHNA totals. However, it is only advised that each of these 
agencies issue housing permits to accommodate their respective RHNA totals. 
 
For the Bay Area, the "projection period", or the time period for which the Regional Housing Need 
is calculated, is 2014 to 2022. The "planning period", or the timeframe between the due date for 
one Housing Element and the due date for the next Housing Element, is 2015 to 2023. 
 
Cost of Housing 
 
As of May 2020, the median sale price for a home in Napa County was $710,000 (0.4% increase 
from the prior year) according to the Annual Historical Data Summary published by the California 
Association of Realtors (May 2020).  

 
Average monthly rents in Napa County were $2,514 according to Crown Realty Property 
Management owner Randy Gularte.  Staff reviewed online sources to determine average rentals 
broken down by one- and two-bedroom apartments. One-bedroom apartments were $1,935 on 
average (3.7% decrease from the prior year) and two-bedroom apartments were $2,367 on average 
(a 6.6% decrease from the prior year) according to RentJungle.com. 
 
The cost of housing is difficult to project in the foreseeable future due to uncertainties related to 
the economic and social impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. There are two conflicting forces 
influencing real estate markets. Spending more time in one’s home, especially with the prospect 
of prolonged telework over many months, may increase demand for larger homes with more 
amenities. During an economic contraction, however, workers face uncertainty over their next 
paycheck and demand for houses typically decreases. In addition, there are significant practical 
difficulties associated with searching for a new home during a pandemic.  However, “urban flight” 
is occurring from San Francisco because of the significant increase in telecommuting. Numerous 
corporations are shifting their workforce to permanent telecommuting and “work from anywhere” 
arrangements which provide even more flexibility in where workers reside. The need to live in the 
City, or to be in commute distance to an office in the City, is diminishing. The result may be more 
pressure for housing in counties such as Napa.  
  

https://www.rentjungle.com/average-rent-in-napa-rent-trends/


Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 
 
Median Household Income 
 
The United States Census Bureau American Community Survey reports the annual median 
household income for Napa County residents was $84,753 (6.4% increase from the prior year) 
based on five-year estimates from 2014 to 2018. The high cost of housing in Napa County places 
significant pressure on households earning less than the median income. 
 
Affordability Index 
 
The California Association of Realtors has developed an affordability index.1 The purpose of the 
index is to determine the percentage of households who can afford to purchase a median-priced 
home. The data is available by county and region.  
 
In 2019, only 29 percent of Napa households could afford to buy a median-priced home of 
$710,000. At one point during the period between 2009-2011, after home prices dropped by 32.2% 
in 2008, nearly half of Napa households could have purchased a median-priced home of $360,000.  
 
The following charts provide a comparison of Napa County versus the other Bay Area counties’ 
median price home affordability.  
  

 
 
 

 

  

                                                        
1 The methodology to determine the “affordability index” includes factors such as median home price, down payment, 

interest rate, monthly payment (principal, interest, taxes and insurance) at no more than 30% of household income 
and income distribution figures.  



Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 

 

 
California In Crisis 
 
The October 2017 Northern California wildfires burned nearly 100,000 acres and destroyed 
approximately 650 homes in Napa County, representing approximately five percent of the total 
housing stock and exacerbating an existing housing shortage. The majority of the homes were 
located in the unincorporated area. Napa County continues to rebuild as efficiently as possible 
based on available resources and building conditions. The rebuilding process represents a 
measurable impact on Napa County’s ability to meet its RHNA. 
 
In 2019 California Governor Gavin Newsom emphasized the housing crisis in California as a focus 
of the current administration. However, in 2020 the pandemic and police violence protests have 
caused a shift in priorities for the Governor’s office. This shift in priorities has also been reflected 
in legislative action. At this time, the focus of the State decision makers is on the health care 
system, fire prevention and response, police reform and the economic impacts of the pandemic.  
 



Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 5 of 7 
 
ABAG and MTC 
 
ABAG and MTC have developed an initiative, called “Horizon”, to explore the pressing issues 
and possible challenges Bay Area residents may face through 2050. Part of the initiative includes 
“CASA – the Committee to House the Bay Area”. CASA has recommended policies to address 
the housing crisis. The Local Government Working Group, comprised of local government 
officials, was convened to advise MTC and ABAG on housing-related bills. County Supervisor 
and Alternate LAFCO Commissioner Ryan Gregory serves on the Working Group along with City 
Councilmembers Mary Luros (City of Napa) and Anna Chouteau (City of St. Helena). 
 
Senate Bill 35 
 
Senate Bill (SB) 35 was signed by the Governor in 2017 and created a streamlined, ministerial 
approval process for infill developments in localities that have failed to meet their RHNA 
numbers.2 HCD provides an interactive map to determine which jurisdictions are subject to SB 35. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Each city and county is required submit an Annual Housing Element Progress Report to HCD by 
April 1. These reports provide updates on each jurisdiction’s 2015-2023 RHNA and total number 
of housing permits issued during the current planning period. The following tables summarize the 
2015-2023 RHNA and permits issued from 2015 through 2019 at each income level for the six 
local land use authorities. 
 
Napa County 
 
 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 51 30 32 67 180 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 4 3 47 77 131 

 
Since the adoption of Napa County’s current General Plan in 2008, the County has maintained a 
comprehensive list of implementation action items. The overarching theme of the General Plan is 
a long-standing commitment to preservation of agricultural lands for agricultural uses, with 
emphasis to work with the cities and town of Napa County to direct urban growth toward urban 
areas. The County has put great effort into promoting and supporting housing development within 
the cities, town, and unincorporated urbanized areas of Napa County. The County continues to 
update its various General Plan Elements on an ongoing basis. 
  

                                                        
2  When jurisdictions have insufficient progress toward their Above Moderate income RHNA and/or have not 

submitted the most recent Annual Progress Report, these jurisdictions are subject to SB 35 streamlining for proposed 
developments with at least 10% affordability (does not apply to any local jurisdictions according to HCD). When 
jurisdictions have insufficient progress toward their Very Low and Low income RHNA, but have made sufficient 
progress toward their Above Moderate income RHNA, these jurisdictions are subject to SB 35 streamlining for 
proposed developments with at least 50% affordability (applies to Napa County, City of Napa, City of St. Helena, 
and Town of Yountville according to HCD). 

https://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/plans-projects/horizon
http://cahcd.maps.arcgis.com/apps/View/index.html?appid=8ea29422525e4d4c96d52235772596a3


Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 6 of 7 
 
City of American Canyon  
 
 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 116 54 58 164 392 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 58 40 141 143 382 

 
American Canyon’s current General Plan was adopted in 1994. The City Council approved a 
contract to comprehensively update the General Plan in 2019. As part of the process a web site has 
been developed to inform the public and receive input.3 It is anticipated the overall update will 
take two to three years. 
 
City of Calistoga  
 
 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 6 2 4 15 27 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 23 8 8 39 78 

 
Calistoga’s current General Plan was adopted in 2003. Various elements of the General Plan were 
updated in 2012, 2014, 2015 and 2019. The City made strides to implement the General Plan in 
2019. It is expected the City will be updating the Economic Element this year and the Housing 
Element in 2022.  
 
City of Napa  
 
 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 185 106 141 403 835 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 53 49 43 886 1,031 

 
The City of Napa is currently updating its General Plan, which was originally adopted in 1998. 
The City has formed a General Plan Advisory Committee to guide policy development and 
visioning. As part of the process a web site has been developed to inform the public and receive 
input.4 LAFCO staff attended four General Plan Update community meetings to date. It is 
anticipated the overall update will take two to three years. 
 
  

                                                        
3 The City of American Canyon General Plan update website is available online at: 

https://www.cityofamericancanyon.org/government/community-development/planning-zoning/general-plan-update.  
4  The City of Napa General Plan update website is available online at: https://napa2040.com/. 

https://www.cityofamericancanyon.org/government/community-development/planning-zoning/general-plan-update
https://napa2040.com/


Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans 
August 3, 2020 
Page 7 of 7 
 
City of St. Helena  
 
 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 8 5 5 13 31 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 2 14 4 54 74 

 
St. Helena’s current General Plan was adopted in 1993. In 2007, St. Helena initiated a 
comprehensive update to its General Plan (2040 General Plan Update). Throughout the process, 
the City conducted extensive community outreach. Study sessions were held and committees were 
formed to address water, circulation, new zoning designations, and study areas. Included in the 
study areas are properties served by the City but outside its jurisdictional boundary and sphere of 
influence. LAFCO staff submitted a comment letter during this process. The City Council adopted 
the 2040 General Plan and certified the Program EIR (May 14, 2019).  
 
Town of Yountville  
 

 Very Low Low Moderate Above Moderate Total 
RHNA (2015-2023) 4 2 3 8 17 
Permits Issued (2015-2019) 1 1 12 14 28 

 
On May 7, 2019, the Town of Yountville completed a comprehensive update of its General Plan. 
The project titled “Envision Yountville General Plan Update” provided extensive community 
outreach including community meetings, surveys and polls, speaker series, an interactive web site, 
Board and Commission meetings, Town Council Study sessions and a Community Open House. 
In addition, a Town Advisory Group was established to review the existing 1992 General Plan, 
including policies and programs. LAFCO staff attended one General Plan scoping meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6d (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
    
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Strategic Plan and Work Program Progress Report 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY  
 
On February 3, 2018, the Commission adopted the Strategic Plan 2018-2022 (“Strategic 
Plan”), included as Attachment One. The Strategic Plan includes a set of core guiding 
principles that underlie Napa LAFCO’s activities, as follows: 
 

1) Active, in-depth communication and outreach 
2) Review and update Commission policies 
3) Prepare municipal service reviews (MSRs) and sphere of influence (SOI) updates 

 
On June 1, 2020, the Commission adopted the Work Program 2020-2021 (“Work 
Program”), which is primarily based on the scheduled activities in the Strategic Plan. 
 
A summary of progress made on Strategic Plan and Work Program activities follows. 
 
MSRs and SOI Updates 
 

• Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR 
This MSR involves a comprehensive evaluation of all local government agencies 
that provide public water and/or wastewater service in Napa County. A draft report 
was presented for discussion at the Commission’s virtual public workshop on July 
13, 2020. A discussion of public comments received on the draft report is included 
as item 7c on today’s agenda. It is anticipated a final report incorporating the public 
comments will be presented for possible adoption on October 5, 2020. If adoption 
of a final report does not occur on October 5, 2020, the target completion date for 
this activity is December 2020. 
 
 



Strategic Plan and Work Program Progress Report  
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

• City of St. Helena MSR and SOI Update 
A preliminary draft MSR and SOI Update for the City of St. Helena was completed 
in August 2017. The City requested an indefinite continuation, which the 
Commission granted, to allow the City to first complete its General Plan Update. 
Staff will resume work on this MSR and SOI Update upon request by the City. The 
target completion date for this activity is presently uncertain. 
 

• Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Spanish Flat Water District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Napa Sanitation District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is June 2021. 
 

• City of Napa MSR and SOI Update 
This MSR and SOI Update will be partially based on information contained in the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this 
activity is December 2021. 

 
Boundary Changes and Outside Service Agreements 
 

• Annexation Proposals 
A report on current and future proposals is included on today’s agenda as item 6a. 
 

• Island Annexation Program 
Staff has been coordinating with representatives of the City of Napa and the general 
public with respect to potential annexation of unincorporated islands. The 
Commission adopted its Policy on Unincorporated Islands on February 3, 2020. 
Staff recently update the Commission’s website to include a new page dedicated 
entirely to island annexation information. A summary of the island annexation 
process and maps of each island will be presented to the Commission no later than 
December 7, 2020. 
 

• Outside Service Agreements 
There are no current or anticipated outside service agreement requests at this time. 



Strategic Plan and Work Program Progress Report  
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Policy Review 
 

• Anticipated Policy Amendments 
The technical working group for the in-progress Policy on Spheres of Influence held 
three meetings to collaboratively develop the policy. Further work is still needed 
before the draft policy returns to the Commission for adoption. Progress has been 
halted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Executive Officer will schedule 
one final meeting with the technical working group within the next two months. It 
is anticipated the Policy Committee (Commissioners Mohler and Rodeno) will 
present a draft Policy on Spheres of Influence for possible adoption as well as 
amendments to the following four policies as early as December 7, 2020: 
 

1) CEQA Policy 
2) Policy on Executive Officer Performance Review 
3) Policy on Records Retention and Destruction 
4) Policy on Social Media Use 

 
Communications and Outreach 
 
On February 3, 2020, the Commission appointed Chair Leary and Alternate Commissioner 
Kahn to a newly established ad hoc Outreach Committee. The Outreach Committee held 
two meetings and agreed to return with an evaluation of potential outreach strategies and 
resources needed for the Commission’s consideration. See item 7e on today’s agenda for 
more information. 
 
Housing and General Plan Updates 
 
This activity was previously requested by the Commission to assist in its decision making 
as it relates to best serving the diverse needs of all local municipalities. See item 6c on 
today’s agenda for a countywide report on housing and general plan activities. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Strategic Plan 2018-2022 
2) Work Program 2020-2021 Progress Chart 



 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 

        (Adopted: February 5, 2018) 

Mission Statement 

The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) of Napa County is committed to serving the 
citizens and government agencies of its jurisdiction by encouraging the preservation of agricultural 
lands and open-space and coordinating the efficient delivery of municipal services. 

Focus of Napa LAFCO 

The following core guiding principles underlie Napa LAFCO’s activities. Each of these principles 
is centered on Napa LAFCO having in-depth, active communication with respect to all relevant 
constituents. 

 Municipal Service Reviews based on local agency, Napa County, & LAFCO needs
o Study Schedule for 2018-2022 included as Exhibit A

 Re-writing policies (on a schedule) to be comprehensive, effective, and transparent
o Policy Review Schedule for 2018-2020 included as Exhibit B

 Forecasting issues relating to local services and boundaries, as well as State legislation
 Active involvement of agency constituents in problem-solving local agency sustainability
 Engagement with local city/town general plan updates
 Active with local agencies in managing housing growth and related issues including

transportation

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Page 1 of 5

Attachment One



 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

 

STUDY SCHEDULE (2018-2022) 
 

Municipal Service Reviews (Government Code §56430) 

Sphere of Influence Updates (Government Code §56425) 

Major Boundary Change Projects 
 

Adopted: February 5, 2018 
 

2018 
 

South County Region MSR and SOIs 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the City of American 
Canyon, American Canyon Fire Protection District, and County Service Area No. 3. The Municipal 
Service Review will inform Sphere Of Influence Updates for all three local agencies.  
City of St. Helena MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the City of St. Helena. 
The Municipal Service Review will inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Napa County 
Regional Park and Open Space District and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Island Annexation Program 

The Commission will seek to partner with the City of Napa and the County of Napa to develop an 
island annexation program. 
 

2019 
 

Island Annexation Program 

The Commission will seek to partner with the City of Napa and the County of Napa to develop an 
island annexation program. 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Services MSR 

Municipal Service Review will examine all municipal water and wastewater services provided 
throughout Napa County and will inform Sphere Of Influence Updates for each agency under review. 
 

2020 
 

Island Annexation Program 

The Commission will seek to partner with the City of Napa and the County of Napa to develop an 
island annexation program. 
City of Napa MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the City of Napa and 
inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District will be informed by 
the Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District will be informed by 
the Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Spanish Flat Water District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Spanish Flat Water District will be informed by the Countywide 
Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Napa Sanitation District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Napa Sanitation District will be informed by the Countywide 
Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Page 2 of 5

Exhibit A Attachment One



2021 
Napa County Resource Conservation District MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Napa County 
Resource Conservation District and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District will 
be informed by the Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Silverado Community Services District MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Silverado 
Community Services District and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Public Cemetery Districts MSR and SOIs 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Monticello Public 
Cemetery District and Pope Valley Cemetery District and inform Sphere Of Influence Updates for 
both agencies. 
Los Carneros Water District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Los Carneros Water District will be informed by the Countywide 
Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 will be informed by the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
City of Calistoga MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the City of Calistoga 
and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
 

2022 
 

Congress Valley Water District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Congress Valley Water District will be informed by the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
Circle Oaks County Water District SOI 

Sphere Of Influence Update for the Circle Oaks County Water District will be informed by the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Services Municipal Service Review. 
County Service Area No. 4 MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by County Service Area 
No. 4 and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Napa County Mosquito Abatement District MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Napa County 
Mosquito Abatement District and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
Town of Yountville MSR and SOI 

Municipal Service Review will examine the governmental services provided by the Town of 
Yountville and inform a Sphere Of Influence Update. 
 

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Page 3 of 5

Exhibit A Attachment One



Local Agencies Last MSR Next MSR Last SOI Update Next SOI Update

American Canyon June 2009 April 2018 June 2010 April 2018

Calistoga December 2016 December 2021 December 2016 December 2021

Napa December 2013 April 2020 February 2014 December 2020

St. Helena May 2008 October 2018 August 2008 December 2018

Yountville April 2017 October 2022 April 2017 October 2022

American Canyon Fire Protection District (ACFPD) June 2009 April 2018 August 2010 April 2018

Circle Oaks County Water District (COCWD) August 2016 December 2019 August 2016 April 2022

Congress Valley Water District (CVWD) December 2017 December 2019 December 2017 February 2022

County Service Area No. 3 (CSA 3) June 2009 April 2018 October 2012 April 2018

County Service Area No. 4 (CSA 4) December 2017 June 2022 December 2017 June 2022

Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District (LBRID) April 2011 December 2019 December 2012 August 2020

Los Carneros Water District (LCWD) August 2016 December 2019 August 2016 August 2021

Monticello Public Cemetery District (MPCD) July 2016 June 2021 July 2016 June 2021

Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District (NBRID) April 2011 December 2019 April 2013 August 2020

Napa County Flood Control & Water Conservation District (NCFCWCD) June 2016 December 2019 June 2016 April 2021

Napa County Mosquito Abatement District (NCMAD) June 2017 June 2022 June 2017 June 2022

Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District (NCRPOSD) December 2010 December 2018 December 2010 December 2018

Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRCD) April 2016 February 2021 April 2016 February 2021

Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 (NRRD) December 2016 December 2019 December 2016 October 2021

Napa Sanitation District (NSD) April 2014 December 2019 October 2015 December 2020

Pope Valley Cemetery District (PVCD) July 2016 June 2021 July 2016 June 2021

Silverado Community Services District (SCSD) April 2014 April 2021 October 2015 April 2021

Spanish Flat Water District (SFWD) April 2011 December 2019 August 2013 August 2020

South County Region MSR and SOI Updates

Public Cemetery Districts MSR and SOI Updates

Countywide Water and Wastewater Services MSR

CITIES/TOWN

SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Recent MSRs and SOI Updates / Study Schedule 2018-2022

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Page 4 of 5

Exhibit A Attachment One

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SouthCounty_MSR-Final_2009.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_AmericanCanyon_2010_Final-Report-Revised.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Calistoga_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Calistoga_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_Napa_FinalReport_2014.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Municipal Service Review-City of St. Helena-2008.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_StHelena_2008.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Yountville_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Yountville_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SouthCounty_MSR-Final_2009.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_ACFPD_2010_FinalReport_Website.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/COCWD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/COCWD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CVWD_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_December2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CVWD_MSR-SOI_RevisedFinalReport_December2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SouthCounty_MSR-Final_2009.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_CSA3_Final-Report_Revised_10-1-12.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CSA4_MSR-SOI_Checklist_2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CSA4_MSR-SOI_Checklist_2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Berryessa Region Final MSR (No Appendices).pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_LBRID_Final.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/LCWD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/LCWD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MPCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MPCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Berryessa Region Final MSR (No Appendices).pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_NBRID_2013_FinalReport.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCFCWCD_MSR-SOI_FinalChecklist.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCFCWCD_MSR-SOI_FinalChecklist.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCMAD_MSR-SOI_FinalReport2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCMAD_MSR-SOI_FinalReport2017.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCRPOSD_MSR-SOI_Final_2010.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCRPOSD_MSR-SOI_Final_2010.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCRCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NCRCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NRRD_FinalMSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NRRD_FinalMSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/NSD_SOI_RevisedFinalReport_2015.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/PVCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/PVCD_MSR-SOI_2016.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SCSD_FinalSOI_2015.pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/Berryessa Region Final MSR (No Appendices).pdf#
http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/SOI_SFWD_FinalReport_2013.pdf#


Policy Priority Adopted or Last Amended Complete Review

Legislation 1 N/A December 2017

Unincorporated Islands * 1 October 2011 February 2018

Outside Service Agreements 1 April 2016 April 2018

Conflict of Interest Code 1 October 2016 August 2018

Spheres of Influence * 1 October 2011 October 2018

Municipal Service Reviews 1 October 2015 December 2018

Annexations * 2 October 2011 February 2019

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 2 N/A April 2019

Definitions * 2 October 2011 June 2019

CEQA 3 December 2006 August 2019

Appointment of Public Members 3 April 2008 October 2019

Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair 3 June 2015 October 2019

Budget 3 June 2016 December 2019

Budget Contributions and Collection of Funds 3 April 2001 December 2019

Establishing Officers of the Commission 3 August 2004 February 2020

Executive Officer Performance Review 3 October 2014 February 2020

Executive Officer Purchasing Authority 3 October 2014 February 2020

Records Retention and Destruction 3 December 2015 April 2020

Social Media 3 October 2011 April 2020

Conducting Meetings and Business 3 December 2015 June 2020

Scheduling of Meetings 3 June 2016 June 2020

Indemnification 3 October 2014 August 2020

Conducting Authority Proceedings 3 December 2008 August 2020

Appointment of Commission Counsel 3 April 2001 October 2020

Work Schedule 3 June 2002 October 2020

Telecommuting 3 July 1997 December 2020

Travel Policy 3 November 2009 December 2020

* Currently Part of General Policy Determinations

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Page 5 of 5

Exhibit B Attachment One



Timeline Lead Comments

Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR (Comprehensive) 12/18 - 12/20 Consultant
Draft report presented at a public workshop on 7/13/20; 
see item 7c for a discussion of public comments on draft 
report

City of St. Helena MSR/SOI (Comprehensive) TBD Staff Will resume at City's request; still TBD
Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Spanish Flat Water District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Napa Sanitation District SOI 12/20 - 6/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
City of Napa MSR/SOI (Comprehensive) 12/20 - 12/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR

Change of Organization/Reorganization Proposals (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff Two proposals on today's agenda as items 7a and 7b

Island Annexation Program 7/20 - 12/21 Staff Staff is partnering with City of Napa and Napa County to 
align timing and process for island annexations

Outside Service Agreement Requests (1-2/yr) Ongoing EO & Chair None at this time

Completion Proceedings for Approved Annexations (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff

Staff continues processing annexations previously 
approved by Commission: terms and conditions, 
Certificates of Completion, GIS mapping, TRA 
determinations, Board of Equalization filings

Conduct LAFCO Outreach; Agencies & Community Groups (6-10/mo) Ongoing Staff
Outreach Committee established (Commissioners Kahn & 
Leary); see item 7e for possible strategies

Comments on Local Agency Projects (1-2/yr) Ongoing Staff
General Plan Updates, EIRs, Strategic Plans, etc.; none at 
this time

Respond to Grand Jury Reports (0-1/yr) Ongoing
Staff & 

Commission
Grand Jury recommendations for LAFCO; none at this time

Annual Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans June 2021 Staff See item 6c for 2020 report

Conduct Informational Workshops & Meetings Ongoing Staff
Virtual public workshop on Countywide Water & 
Wastewater MSR held on 7/13/20

Public Records Requests (0-1/yr) Ongoing Staff
Requests from the public for specific LAFCO records; none 
at this time

Website Maintenance and Updates Ongoing Staff
Meeting info, financial info, policies, public notices, maps, 
staff and Commissioner info, etc.; new page added for 
island annexation info

Social Media: Meetings Notices and Announcements (10-15/yr) Ongoing Staff Meeting info, public notices, press releases, etc.

Expiring Commissioner Terms in 2021 May 2021 Staff
Terms for Commissioners Mohler and Gregory expire on 
5/3/21; staff will present info item on 12/7/20

2021 Chair and Vice Chair Designation May 2021 Staff
Commissioners Dillon and Mohler become Chair and Vice 
Chair, respectively, on 5/3/21; staff will present info item 
on 4/5/21

Statement of Economic Interest (Form 700) April 2021 Secretary
Required for all Commissioners & EO upon entering office, 
leaving office, and annually by April 1

Ethics Training Ongoing Secretary Required for all Commissioners & EO every two years

Develop 2021-2022 Budget June 2021
Budget 

Committee
Two Commissioners will be appointed on 12/7/20 to serve 
on FY21-22 Budget Committee

State Legislation Monitoring and Position Letters (2-4/yr) Ongoing Legislative 
Committee

Commissioners Dillon and Mohler serve on Legislative 
Committee; current two-year legislative session ends 
November 2020; see item 7d for a legislative report

Policy Review and Revisions (2-4/yr) Ongoing
Policy 

Committee

Commissioners Mohler and Rodeno serve on Policy 
Committee; Draft SOI Policy is currently under review by a 
technical working group

2019-2020 Audit December 2020 Staff To be prepared by Brown Armstrong and presented by 
Napa County Auditor-Controller

Year-End Contracts Close-Out June 2021 Secretary
Close out and re-encumber contracts at end of year; FY19-
20 close-out recently completed by staff

Quarterly Budget Reports (4/yr) Ongoing Staff
Consistent with local policy, analysis of year-to-date and 
projected year-end revenues and expenses; see item 6b 
for FY19-20 4th quarter budget report

Provide Strategic Plan Updates (2/yr) Ongoing Staff
Progress reports presented to Commission twice per year 
(February and August meetings); see item 6d

Verify Median Household Income Data to Identify DUCs June 2021 Staff Staff will review Census Bureau American Community 
Survey data (currently no DUCs in Napa County)

Develop Work Program June 2021 Staff
Review with Budget Committee in conjunction with 
budget, present in June for adoption, present progress 
report at each regular meeting; see item 6d

Electronic Document Management System Maintenance Ongoing Staff Digitalization of historical and current agency records
Geographic Information System Mapping Updates (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff GIS boundary layer edits for completed annexations

2020 CALAFCO Annual Conference (Virtual) TBD
Staff & 

Commission

Originally scheduled for 10/21/20 - 10/23/20 in Monterey; 
in-person Conference canceled and a virtual Conference is 
being explored; see item 7f

2021 CALAFCO Staff Workshop (Newport Beach)
3/17/21 - 
3/19/21

Staff Location: Hyatt Regency John Wayne Airport

Bay Area LAFCO EO Meetings (1-2/yr) Ongoing EO & Analyst
Sharing information with other Bay Area LAFCOs; replaced 
by bi-weekly statewide LAFCO EO teleconference 
meetings

Bi-Weekly Statewide LAFCO EO Teleconference Meetings (26/yr) Ongoing EO & Analyst Sharing information with other LAFCOs statewide

CALAFCO Coastal Region Clerks Meetings (1-2/yr) Ongoing Secretary
Sharing information with the Coastal Region LAFCOs; 
replaced by monthly statewide LAFCO Clerks 
teleconference meetings

Monthly Statewide LAFCO Clerks Teleconference Meetings (12/yr) Ongoing Secretary Sharing information with other LAFCOs statewide

O
TH

ER

August 3, 2020 Progress Report

NAPA LAFCO WORK PROGRAM FY 2020-2021

ST
U

DI
ES

AP
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S
PU

BL
IC

 O
U

TR
EA

CH
CO

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

Attachment Two



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6e (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Officer Report 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information only and provides a summary of the Executive Officer’s 
recent activities as well as other miscellaneous items relevant to the Commission. 
 
Recent Meetings and Other Activities 
 
Subsequent to the Commission’s regular meeting of June 1, 2020, the Executive Officer 
or Analyst II participated in the following notable activities related to LAFCO: 
 

• June 2: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• June 4: Teleconference meeting with legal counsel and LAFCO’s consultant for the 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
• June 4: Teleconference meeting with a representative from IMPLAN to discuss data 

tools for Napa County and LAFCO 
• June 4: Phone call with City of St. Helena Mayor Geoff Ellsworth to discuss the 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
• June 9: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• June 11: Webinar titled “Reopening During the Coronavirus Pandemic: How to Serve 

the Public and Avoid Liability” 
• June 16: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• June 23: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• June 24: Webinar titled “Reimagining Local Government After COVID-19” 
• June 25: Webinar titled “A New Era of Public Meetings: Virtual Provisions Amid 

Changing Sunshine Requirements” 
• June 25: Teleconference meeting with City of Napa Planning and Code Enforcement 

Division Manager Erin Morris to discuss island annexation 
• June 29: Teleconference meeting with consultant team to discuss the Countywide 

Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 



Executive Officer Report 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

• June 30: Teleconference meeting with Jennifer Stephenson (Policy Consulting 
Associates) and City of Napa Utilities Director Phil Brun to discuss the Countywide 
Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 

• July 1: Phone call with Dan Mufson (Napa Vision 2050) to discuss the Countywide 
Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 

• July 2: Webinar titled “Best Practices in Response to the 2020 Economic Downturn” 
• July 7: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• July 7: Phone call with Napa Valley Register journalist Barry Eberling to discuss the 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review (article published July 
10 available online at: https://napavalleyregister.com/news/local/napa-county-wide-
agency-proposed-to-deal-with-all-water-issues/article_b0d9a616-9210-5a6e-9f08-
26ca599a323d.html)  

• July 8: Webinar titled “Resilient Leader: Leading with Emotional Courage” 
• July 8: Webinar titled “Proactive Local Government Communications: How to Lead 

Communities Through Recovery and Beyond” 
• July 9: Presentation on LAFCO and the Countywide Water and Wastewater 

Municipal Service Review to Napa Sunrise Rotary 
• July 9: Webinar titled “Resetting the Local Economy after COVID-19” 
• July 13: Virtual public LAFCO workshop to discuss the Countywide Water and 

Wastewater Municipal Service Review and receive comments 
• July 15: Webinar titled “Preparing Vulnerable Californians for Natural Disasters” 
• July 16: Webinar titled “Communication During Crisis: How to Build A Management 

Plan for Government” 
• July 17: Teleconference meeting with Napa County Farm Bureau CEO Ryan Klobas 

to discuss various matters related to agriculture and LAFCO 
• July 20: Outreach Committee (Chair Leary and Alternate Commissioner Kahn) 

teleconference meeting 
• July 21: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• July 28: Preliminary consultation teleconference meeting with the project 

management group for a development located immediately north of the Napa Valley 
College to discuss annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 

• July 29: Webinar titled “Tips and Tools to Engage Your Community in a Digital 
Environment” 

• July 29: Plan Bay Area 2050 Blueprint Workshop on Housing and Economy 
• July 30: Webinar titled “COVID-19 and California’s Economic Outlook” 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 

https://napavalleyregister.com/news/local/napa-county-wide-agency-proposed-to-deal-with-all-water-issues/article_b0d9a616-9210-5a6e-9f08-26ca599a323d.html
https://napavalleyregister.com/news/local/napa-county-wide-agency-proposed-to-deal-with-all-water-issues/article_b0d9a616-9210-5a6e-9f08-26ca599a323d.html
https://napavalleyregister.com/news/local/napa-county-wide-agency-proposed-to-deal-with-all-water-issues/article_b0d9a616-9210-5a6e-9f08-26ca599a323d.html


 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7a (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
   Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation 

District and Associated CEQA Findings 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt the Resolution of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County Making 
Determinations – Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
(NSD) making California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings and approving the 
proposed annexation (Attachment One). Standard conditions are also recommended. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY
  
Applicant: Landowner (petition) 
Proposed Action: Annexation to NSD 
APNs: 046-180-008, -009, -016 (no situs 
address), and -017 
Location: 21, 33 and 45 Los Robles Drive 
Area Size: 15.38 acres 
Jurisdiction: City of Napa (“City”) 
Sphere of Influence (SOI) Consistency: 
Yes – NSD 

Policy Consistency: Yes 
Tax Sharing Agreement: Yes – master tax 
exchange agreement 
Landowner Consent: 100% 
Protest Proceedings: Waived 
CEQA: Exempt 
Current Land Uses: three single-family 
residences

 
The purpose of the proposal is to facilitate two planned subdivisions involving 21 Los 
Robles Drive and 45 Los Robles Drive. The subdivisions would result in a total of 11 
single-family residences on the two existing parcels and the extension of Los Robles Drive. 
There are currently no plans to subdivide the other two parcels in the affected territory.  
 
The application materials are included as Attachment Two.  
 
 
 
 



Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
An aerial map of the affected territory is included as Attachment Three. A vicinity map of 
the affected territory showing NSD’s boundaries is provided below. 
 

 
 
 



Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Factors for Commission Determinations 
 
See Attachment Four for an evaluation of the mandated factors for Commission 
determinations. 
 
Property Tax Agreement 
 
California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99(b)(6) requires the adoption of a property 
tax exchange agreement by the affected local agencies before LAFCO can consider a 
change of organization. This statute states jurisdictional changes affecting the service areas 
or service responsibilities of districts must be accompanied by a property tax exchange 
agreement, which shall be negotiated by the affected county on behalf of the districts. In 
1980, the County of Napa adopted a resolution on behalf of NSD specifying no adjustment 
in the allocation of property taxes shall result from annexations involving the District. This 
resolution has been applied to all subsequent annexations involving NSD. In processing 
this proposal, staff provided notice to the affected agencies that the Commission would 
again apply this resolution unless otherwise informed. No affected agency responded with 
any concerns to the approach outlined by staff. 
 
Protest Proceedings 
 
Protest proceedings shall be waived in accordance with G.C. Section 56662(a) given that 
the affected territory is legally uninhabited (less than 12 registered voters), all landowners 
have provided their written consent, and no written opposition to a waiver of protest 
proceedings has been received by any agency. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed annexation qualifies for a statutory exemption from further review under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(k), which exempts the installation of new pipeline as 
long as the project does not exceed one mile in length. Staff believes this exemption is 
appropriate given any existing and future residential units within the affected territory 
would connect to NSD by way of installing sanitary sewer main from the existing manhole 
at the existing terminus of Cayetano Drive to the east terminus of the proposed Los Robles 
Drive extension, which will involve less than one mile of new pipeline. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Draft Resolution Approving the Proposal and Making CEQA Findings 
2) Application Materials 
3) Aerial Map of Affected Territory 
4) Factors for Commission Determinations 



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

RESOLUTION OF  
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

MAKING DETERMINATIONS 

LOS ROBLES DRIVE NO. 2 
ANNEXATION TO THE NAPA SANITATION DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, an application for a proposed reorganization has been filed with the Local Agency 
Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as “Commission,” pursuant to the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and 

WHEREAS, the proposal seeks Commission approval to annex approximately 15.38 acres of 
incorporated land to the Napa Sanitation District and represents four entire parcels located at 2l, 33, and 45 
Los Robles Drive and identified by the County of Napa Assessor’s Office as 046-180-008, 046-180-009, 046-
180-016 (situs address not yet assigned) and 046-180-017; and

WHEREAS, the Commission’s Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report 
with recommendations; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations have been presented to the 
Commission in the manner provided by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission heard and fully considered all the evidence presented at a public 
meeting held on the proposal on August 3, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission considered all the factors required by law under Government Code 
Sections 56668 and 56668.3 as well as adopted local policies and procedures; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission finds the proposal consistent with the sphere of influence established 
for the Napa Sanitation District; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission finds that all owners of land included in said proposal consent to the 
subject annexation; and 

Resolution for Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD Page 1 of 5

DRAFT

Attachment One



 WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(hereinafter “CEQA”), the Commission serves as Responsible Agency for the annexation pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15051(b)(2). The City of Napa, as Lead Agency, has determined the annexation 
is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 
 

1. The Factors for Commission Determinations provided in the Executive Officer’s written 
report are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and are adequate.  
 

2. The Commission finds the annexation is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15282(k), which exempts the installation of new pipeline as long as the project does 
not exceed one mile in length. The records upon which these findings are made are located 
at the Commission’s administrative office located at 1030 Seminary Street, Suite B, Napa, 
California 94559. 
 

3. The proposal is APPROVED subject to completion of item number 11 below. 
 

4. This proposal is assigned the following distinctive short-term designation: 
  

LOS ROBLES DRIVE NO. 2 
ANNEXATION TO THE NAPA SANITATION DISTRICT 

 
5.  The affected territory is shown on the map and described in the geographic description in 

the attached Exhibit “A”. 
 

6.  The affected territory so described is uninhabited as defined in California Government Code 
Section 56046. 

 
7. The Napa Sanitation District utilizes the regular assessment roll of the County of Napa. 

 
 8. The affected territory will be taxed for existing general bonded indebtedness of the Napa 

Sanitation District. 
 
 9. The proposal shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Napa Sanitation District. 
 

10. The Commission authorizes conducting authority proceedings to be waived in accordance 
with California Government Code Section 56662(a). 

 
11. Recordation is contingent upon receipt by the Executive Officer of the following: 
 

(a) A final map and geographic description of the affected territory determined by the 
County Surveyor to conform to the requirements of the State Board of Equalization. 
 

(b) Written confirmation by the Napa Sanitation District that it is acceptable to record a 
Certificate of Completion. 

Resolution for Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD Page 2 of 5

DRAFT

Attachment One



12. The effective date shall be the date of recordation of the Certificate of Completion. The 
Certificate of Completion must be recorded within one calendar year unless an extension is 
requested and approved by the Commission. 

 
13. The Commission hereby directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption in compliance with 

CEQA. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a public meeting 
held on August 3, 2020, after a motion by Commissioner____________, seconded by Commissioner 
_______________, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners __________________________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  __________________________________________                                      
 
         

 _______________________________ 
Kenneth Leary 

Commission Chair 
 
ATTEST: _____________________ 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer  

 
 
Recorded by: Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 
 
 

Resolution for Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD Page 3 of 5

DRAFT

Attachment One



Resolution for Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD Page 4 of 5

EXHIBIT A

DRAFT

Attachment One



Resolution for Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD Page 5 of 5

EXHIBIT A

DRAFT

Attachment One



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Seville Dr

Los Robles Dr

Linden St

Juanita St

Pa
tto

n 
A

ve

M
ar

ia
 D

r

M
ol

in
a 

St

Seville Ct

Juanita C
t

Madrid Ct

Los Robles Drive No. 2
Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District

LAFCO of  Napa County
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B

Napa, California 94559
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov

August 3, 2020
Prepared by LAFCO Staff

Sonoma
Solano

Yolo
Lake

Legend
Napa Sanitation District
Jurisdictional Boundary

Calistoga

St. Helena

Yountville
Napa

American 
Canyon

0 0.03 0.060.015
Miles

Marin

Affected Territory

Napa Sanitation District
Sphere of Influence

Attachment Three



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  

We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 

Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) 
Factors for Commission Determinations 

California Government Code (G.C.) Sections 56668 and 56668.3 require the Commission 
to consider the following specific factors for a change of organization involving annexation 
to a special district. No single factor is determinative, and the intent is to provide a uniform 
baseline for LAFCOs to consider boundary changes in context with local policies. 

(1) Population and population density; land area and land use; assessed valuation;
topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated
areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent areas, during the
next 10 years.

Total population within the affected territory is six. The affected territory is legally 
uninhabited given there are fewer than 12 registered voters. 

The affected territory is approximately 15.38 acres in size, incorporated within the City of 
Napa’s jurisdictional boundary, and has a designation within the City General Plan of SFR-
138 (Single Family Residential) and a zoning standard of RS-20:HS Residential: Hillside 
Overlay District (minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet). The affected territory is currently 
developed with three single-family residences. The affected territory is located within the 
“Terrace Shurtleff” neighborhood planning area of existing “ranchettes”. Development of 
this area was included in the analysis and environmental review of the City General Plan.  

The current assessment value of the affected territory totals $1,432,829.1

The affected territory is located within the Napa River – Kreuse Creek, Cayetano Creek 
and Tulucay Creek drainage basins. Topography is hillside with slopes of 15-20%. 

The City has tentatively approved two residential subdivisions in the affected territory. The 
first development “Los Robles Subdivision” at 21 Los Robles Drive is planned for five 
single-family residences. The second development “Modrall Subdivision” at 45 Los Robles 
Drive is planned for five new single-family residences in addition to an existing single-
family residence. There are currently no plans to subdivide the other two additional parcels 
within the affected territory. However, the current City zoning contemplates minimum lot 
sizes of 20,000 square feet, which could result in 12 additional homes.2  

Adjacent lands on the south and west sides of the affected territory are within the City’s 
jurisdictional boundary and are developed with residential uses. Lands to the north and east 
are located outside the City boundary and designated for agricultural use by the County. 
 

1 The assessed value of the affected territory is divided into land at $689,843, structural improvements at 
$889,423, and homeowner exemptions at ($146,437). 

2  At buildout, 21 and 45 Los Robles Drive would include a projected resident population of 30 based on the 
California Department of Finance’s population per household estimate of 2.73 for the City of Napa. 33 Los 
Robles Drive and the property with no situs address could potentially be subdivided in the future to include 
up to 15 residential units consistent with the City General Plan and zoning, which would result in a projected 
resident population of 41. With this in mind and for purposes of this report, the total population within the 
entire affected territory is projected at 71 following proposal approval and buildout of the affected territory. 

Attachment Four



Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 2 of 6 
  

(2) The need for municipal services; the present cost and adequacy of municipal services 
and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services and controls; probable 
effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, or exclusion and of 
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the 
area and adjacent areas. 

Core municipal services already provided or available within the affected territory by the 
City include water, fire protection and emergency medical, and law enforcement. These 
services are provided at adequate levels for the three existing single-family residences. The 
need for additional municipal services for the affected territory includes the extension of 
public sewer from NSD and elevated existing levels of water, fire protection and 
emergency medical, and law enforcement from the City for the planned subdivision and 
potential buildout. Planned and potential future development projects would create up to 26 
new residential units with a projected population of 71 residents in the affected territory. 

 
A review of estimated demands for municipal services within the affected territory 
indicates the City and NSD have sufficient capacities and controls to reasonably 
accommodate current and future needs. This statement is based on information collected 
and analyzed in the Commission’s Central County Region Municipal Service Review 
adopted in 2014.3 No service deficiencies for the area were identified in the Municipal 
Service Review. Additional information regarding estimated service demands within the 
affected territory at buildout follows. 

 
Water 

 

One of the three existing homes within the affected territory currently receives 
water service from the City. At buildout, annual potable water demands within the 
affected territory are projected at 6.1 acre-feet or 1,992,900 gallons. This amount is 
based on the City’s current average daily water demands of 210 gallons per 
residence. The City has established adequate capacities and controls to 
accommodate these demands. 

 

Fire Protection and Emergency Medical 
 

The affected territory currently receives fire protection and emergency medical 
service from the City. At buildout, annual service calls within the affected territory 
are projected at 8.3 based on the City’s ratio of 117.5 annual fire protection and 
emergency medical service calls per 1,000 residents over the last five completed 
years.4 The City has established adequate capacities and controls to accommodate 
these demands into the foreseeable future. 

 

Law Enforcement 
 

The affected territory currently receives law enforcement service from the City. At 
buildout, annual service calls within the affected territory are projected at 56.8 
based on the City’s ratio of 799.5 annual law enforcement service calls per 1,000 
residents over the last five completed years.5 The City has established adequate 
capacities and controls to accommodate these demands into the foreseeable future. 

                                                   
3 The Central County Region Municipal Service Review is available online at: 

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf. 
4 The City Fire Department reports total annual fire protection and emergency medical service calls averaged 

9,329.6 over the last five completed years. 
5 The City Police Department reports total annual law enforcement service calls averaged 63,459.6 over the last 

five completed years. 

Attachment Four

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf


Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 3 of 6 
  

Sewer 
 

The affected territory needs sewer service from NSD. Proposal approval and 
buildout of the affected territory would result in new sewer flows totaling 
approximately 3,900 gallons per day. This amount is based on NSD’s design 
standard of 150 gallons per day per residence. NSD has established adequate 
capacities and controls to accommodate these demands into the foreseeable future. 

 
(3) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on 
mutual social and economic interests, and on local governmental structure. 

The proposal would recognize and strengthen existing social and economic ties between 
NSD and the affected territory. These ties were initially established when the Commission 
amended NSD’s SOI to include the affected territory as part of two actions in 2003 and 
2006, marking an expectation the site would eventually develop for urban type uses and 
require public service from the District as the region’s sole sewer service provider. 

 
(4) The conformity of the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted 
commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban 
development, and the policies and priorities set forth in G.C. Section 56377. 

The proposal is consistent with the Commission’s adopted policies based on the affected 
territory’s urban land use designation and consistency with NSD’s SOI. Further, the 
affected territory does not qualify as “open-space” under LAFCO law and therefore does 
not conflict with G.C. Section 56377.6  Proposal approval would be consistent with 
planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development. 

(5) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of 
agricultural lands, as defined by G.C. Section 56016. 

The proposal will not have an adverse effect on agricultural lands. The affected territory is 
located within the City of Napa Rural Urban Limit Line (RUL). The adjacent agricultural 
land to the east and north of the affected territory is protected by the location and definitive 
boundary that separate urban from agricultural land use.  

 
(6) The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance 
of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or 
corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecting the proposed 
boundaries. 

The affected territory includes all of the property identified by the County of Napa 
Assessor’s Office as 046-180-008, 046-180-009, 046-180-016, and 046-180-017. The 
applicant has submitted a draft map and geographic description of the affected territory that 
are undergoing review by the County Surveyor to ensure conformance with the requirements 
of the State Board of Equalization. If the Commission approves the proposal, approval will 
be conditioned upon submittal of a final map and geographic description following the 
completion of the County Surveyor’s review.  

Approval of the proposal would have no impact with respect to unincorporated islands or 
corridors of unincorporated territory given the affected territory is located entirely within 
the City of Napa. 

                                                   
6  The affected is not devoted to an open-space use under the City General Plan.  

Attachment Four



Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 4 of 6 
  

 

(7) Consistency with a regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to G.C. Section 
65080. 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s regional transportation plan (RTP), Plan 
Bay Area 2040, was updated in 2017 and outlines specific goals and objectives to direct 
public transportation infrastructure in the Bay Area through 2040.7 No specific projects are 
included in the RTP involving the affected territory. Accordingly, the proposal impact is 
neutral with respect to the RTP. 

 
(8) Consistency with the city or county general and specific plans. 

Approval of the proposal would allow for a full range of municipal services to be provided 
to the affected territory to serve existing, planned, and possible future uses. The availability 
and provision of these municipal services are consistent with the City’s General Plan land 
use designation and zoning assignment for the affected territory, both of which contemplate 
single-family residential development. 

 
(9) The sphere of influence of any local agency affected by the proposal. 

The affected territory is located entirely within NSD’s SOI, which was comprehensively 
updated by the Commission in October 2015. 

 
(10) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency. 

Staff provided notice of the proposal to all affected agencies, transportation agencies, and 
school districts inviting comments as required under G.C. Section 56658. No comments 
were received. 

 

(11) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are 
the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those 
services following the proposed boundary change. 

Information collected and analyzed as part of the Commission’s Central County Region 
Municipal Service Review adopted in 2014 concluded NSD has developed overall adequate 
financial resources and controls relative to current and projected service commitments. 
This includes regularly reviewing and amending, as needed, NSD’s two principal rates and 
fees to ensure the sewer system remains solvent and sufficiently capitalized to 
accommodate future demands: (a) capacity charge for new connections and (b) annual 
service charge. The capacity charge is currently $9,959 and serves as NSD’s buy-in charge 
for new customers to contribute their fair share for existing and future facilities necessary 
to receive sewer service. The annual service charge for a single-family unit is currently 
$738.60 and is intended to proportionally recover NSD’s ongoing maintenance and 
operation expenses. The 2014 Central County Region Municipal Service Review is relied 
upon and sufficient for this annexation proposal regarding the plan for services required by 
G.C. Section 56653. 
 
 
 

                                                   
7  Plan Bay Area 2040 is a long-range integrated transportation and land-use/housing strategy through 2040 for 

the San Francisco Bay Area. Plan Bay Area 2040 includes the region’s Sustainable Communities Strategy 
and the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan. 

Attachment Four



Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 5 of 6 
  

(12) Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in 
G.C. Section 65352.5. 

The planned development, as well as the potential future buildout of the affected territory 
Lane would result in annual water demands for the City totaling approximately 6.1 acre-
feet or 1,992,900 gallons. This amount is based on current average water demands within 
the City of approximately 210 gallons per day per residence. The City’s water supplies are 
generated from three sources: (1) Lake Hennessey; (2) Milliken Reservoir; and (3) State 
Water Project. Total supplies vary according to hydrologic conditions. A table depicting 
the City’s existing water service demands relative to supplies follows. As reflected in the 
following table, adequate water supplies exist for the projected needs of the City, including 
buildout of the affected territory. In addition, City approval of new development requires a 
range of water management measures both during construction and for the new residences. 

 
 

Baseline 
(Amounts in Acre-Feet) 

   

 
Category 

Normal 
Year 

Multiple 
Dry 

Single 
Dry 

Annual Supply 39,410 26,870 18,840 
Annual Demand 12,015 12,015 12,015 
Total Surplus 27,395 14,855 6,825 

(13) The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in 
achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by the 
appropriate council of governments. 

Approval of the proposal would result in a benefit to the City with respect to achieving its 
fair share of the regional housing needs based on the planned development of 10 new 
single-family residential units on parcels 046-180-016 and 046-180-009, as well as the 
potential buildout of parcels 046-180-017 and 046-180-008 in the future.8 

(14) Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents 
of the affected territory. 

The landowners of the affected territory are the petitioners seeking annexation. No 
additional information or comments were submitted. 

 
(15) Any information relating to existing land use designations. 

 
The affected territory is zoned by the City as Single-Family Residential Hillside Overlay 
District (RS-20:HS), which permits residential development with a minimum lot size of 
20,000 square feet or 0.46 acres with some limitations due to slope. The proposed 
annexation to NSD and planned development projects are consistent with these existing 
land use designations. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                   
8 A recent report with information on local regional housing needs allocations is available online at: 

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/6-3-19_5f_Housing-GeneralPlans.pdf. 

Attachment Four

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/6-3-19_5f_Housing-GeneralPlans.pdf


Proposed Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 6 of 6 
  

(16) The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice. As used in this 
subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment and meaningful 
involvement of people of all races, cultures, incomes, and national origins, with respect 
to the location of public facilities and the provision of public services, to ensure a healthy 
environment for all people such that the effects of pollution are not disproportionately 
borne by any particular populations or communities. 

There is no documentation or evidence suggesting the proposal will have any implication 
for environmental justice in Napa County 

 
(17) Information contained in a local hazard mitigation plan, information contained in 
a safety element of a general plan, and any maps that identify land as a very high fire 
hazard zone pursuant to Section 51178 or maps that identify land determined to be in a 
state responsibility area pursuant to Section 4102 of the Public Resources Code, if it is 
determined that such information is relevant to the area that is the subject of the 
proposal. 

There is no documentation or evidence suggesting a local hazard mitigation plan or safety 
element of a general plan is relevant to the proposed annexation to NSD. Further, the 
affected territory is not located in a high fire hazard zone or a state responsibility area. 
However, the affected territory is within a moderate fire hazard zone. The City’s approval 
of the proposed development includes specific mitigation measures to address fire safety. 

 
(18) For annexations involving special districts, whether the proposed action will be for 
the interest of the landowners or present or future inhabitants within the district and 
within the territory proposed to be annexed to the district. 

Proposal approval would benefit the future landowners and residents within the affected 
territory by providing permanent access to public sewer service. Public sewer service 
eliminates the need for septic systems in an area in which any failings could pose a public 
health and safety threat for immediate and adjacent residents. 

Attachment Four



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7b (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
   Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa 

Sanitation District and Associated CEQA Findings 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt the Resolution of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County Making 
Determinations – Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
(NSD) making California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings and approving the 
proposed annexation (Attachment One). Standard conditions are also recommended. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY
  
Applicant: Landowner (petition) 
Proposed Action: Annexation to NSD 
APNs: 007-231-002, 007-152-030, 007-
103-004, and 007-172-023 
Location: 3660, 4009, and 4213 Linda 
Vista Avenue and 2415 Trower Avenue 
Area Size: 2.76 acres 
Jurisdiction: City of Napa (“City”) 
Sphere of Influence (SOI) Consistency: 
Yes – NSD 

Policy Consistency: Yes 
Tax Sharing Agreement: Yes – master tax 
exchange agreement 
Landowner Consent: 100% 
Protest Proceedings: Waived 
CEQA: Exempt 
Current Land Uses: four single-family 
residences and one detached second unit

 
The purpose of the proposal is to allow the existing single-family residences to eliminate 
their private onsite septic systems and connect to NSD’s public sewer infrastructure. The 
proposal would also satisfy a condition of the Commission’s previous approval of an 
outside service agreement, which was conditioned upon the landowner submitting a 
complete application to annex 3660 Linda Vista Avenue to NSD by September 23, 2020. 
 
Notably, staff sent letters to the landowners of 16 total parcels located along or near Linda 
Vista Avenue inviting them to join the annexation proposal initiated by the landowner of 
3660 Linda Vista Avenue. The landowners of 4009 Linda Vista Avenue, 4213 Linda Vista 
Avenue, and 2415 Trower Avenue agreed to join the proposal. The application materials 
are included as Attachment Two.  
 



Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Individual aerial maps of each parcel within the affected territory are included as 
Attachment Three. A vicinity map of the affected territory showing NSD’s jurisdictional 
boundary is provided below. 
 

 
 



Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Factors for Commission Determinations 
 
See Attachment Four for an evaluation of the mandated factors for Commission 
determinations. 
 
Property Tax Agreement 
 
California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99(b)(6) requires the adoption of a property 
tax exchange agreement by the affected local agencies before LAFCO can consider a 
change of organization. This statute states jurisdictional changes affecting the service areas 
or service responsibilities of districts must be accompanied by a property tax exchange 
agreement, which shall be negotiated by the affected county on behalf of the districts. In 
1980, the County of Napa adopted a resolution on behalf of NSD specifying no adjustment 
in the allocation of property taxes shall result from annexations involving the District. This 
resolution has been applied to all subsequent annexations involving NSD. In processing 
this proposal, staff provided notice to the affected agencies that the Commission would 
again apply this resolution unless otherwise informed. No affected agency responded with 
any concerns to the approach outlined by staff. 
 
Protest Proceedings 
 
Protest proceedings shall be waived in accordance with G.C. Section 56662(a) given that 
the affected territory is legally uninhabited (less than 12 registered voters), all landowners 
have provided their written consent, and no written opposition to a waiver of protest 
proceedings has been received by any agency. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed annexation qualifies for a statutory exemption from further review under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(k), which exempts the installation of new pipeline as 
long as the project does not exceed one mile in length. Staff believes this exemption is 
appropriate given any existing and future residential units within the affected territory 
would connect to NSD by way of installing sanitary sewer main and/or laterals from 
existing sewer mains located in Linda Vista Avenue or Trower Avenue, which will involve 
less than one total mile of new pipeline. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Draft Resolution Approving the Proposal and Making CEQA Findings 
2) Application Materials 
3) Aerial Maps of Affected Territory 
4) Factors for Commission Determinations 



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF  
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

MAKING DETERMINATIONS 
 

LINDA VISTA AVENUE NO. 21 
ANNEXATION TO THE NAPA SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, an application for a proposed reorganization has been filed with the Local Agency 
Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as “Commission,” pursuant to the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal seeks Commission approval to annex approximately 2.76 acres of 

incorporated land to the Napa Sanitation District and represents four entire parcels located at 3660, 4009, and 
4213 Linda Vista Avenue and 2415 Trower Avenue and identified by the County of Napa Assessor’s Office 
as 007-231-002, 007-152-030, 007-103-004, and 007-172-023, respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission’s Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report 

with recommendations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations have been presented to the 
Commission in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission heard and fully considered all the evidence presented at a public 
meeting held on the proposal on August 3, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission considered all the factors required by law under Government Code 
Sections 56668 and 56668.3 as well as adopted local policies and procedures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission finds the proposal consistent with the sphere of influence established 
for the Napa Sanitation District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Commission finds that all owners of land included in said proposal consent to the 
subject annexation; and 
 
  

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 1 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 
 

  

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(hereinafter “CEQA”), the Commission considered available exemptions under CEQA, in accordance with 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations (hereinafter “CEQA Guidelines”); and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 
 

1. The Factors for Commission Determinations provided in the Executive Officer’s written 
report are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and are adequate.  
 

2. The underlying activity, annexation of the affected territory, is exempt from further review 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(k), which exempts the installation of new 
pipeline as long as the project does not exceed one mile in length. The records upon which 
these findings are made are located at the Commission’s administrative office located at 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B, Napa, California 94559. 
 

3. The proposal is APPROVED subject to completion of item number 11 below. 
 

4. This proposal is assigned the following distinctive short-term designation: 
  

LINDA VISTA AVENUE NO. 21 
ANNEXATION TO THE NAPA SANITATION DISTRICT 

 
5.  The affected territory is shown on the map and described in the geographic description in 

the attached Exhibit “A”. 
 

6.  The affected territory so described is uninhabited as defined in California Government Code 
Section 56046. 

 
7. The Napa Sanitation District utilizes the regular assessment roll of the County of Napa. 

 
 8. The affected territory will be taxed for existing general bonded indebtedness of the Napa 

Sanitation District. 
 
 9. The proposal shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Napa Sanitation District. 
 

10. The Commission authorizes conducting authority proceedings to be waived in accordance 
with California Government Code Section 56662(a). 

 
11. Recordation is contingent upon receipt by the Executive Officer of written confirmation by 

the Napa Sanitation District that it is acceptable to record a Certificate of Completion. 
 
12. The effective date shall be the date of recordation of the Certificate of Completion. The 

Certificate of Completion must be recorded within one calendar year unless an extension is 
requested and approved by the Commission. 

 

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 2 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 
 

  

13. The Commission hereby directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption in compliance with 
CEQA. 

 
 The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a public meeting 
held on August 3, 2020, after a motion by Commissioner____________, seconded by Commissioner 
_______________, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners __________________________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  __________________________________________                                      
 
         

 _______________________________ 
Kenneth Leary 

Commission Chair 
 
ATTEST: _____________________ 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer  

 
 
Recorded by: Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 
 
 

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 3 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 4 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 5 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 6 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 7 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 8 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 9 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 10 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 11 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Resolution for Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD Page 12 of 12

Attachment One

DRAFT



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Linda Vista Ave
Trojan Rd

Linda Vista Avenue No. 21
Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District

LAFCO of  Napa County
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B

Napa, California 94559
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov

August 3, 2020
Prepared by LAFCO Staff

Sonoma
Solano

Yolo
Lake

Legend
Napa Sanitation District
Jurisdictional Boundary

Calistoga

St. Helena

Yountville
Napa

American 
Canyon

0 0.0085 0.0170.00425
Miles

Marin

3660 Linda Vista Avenue
(APN 007-231-002)

Attachment Three



Trower Ct

Linda Vista Ave

Trower A
ve

Linda Vista Avenue No. 21
Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B

Napa, California 94559
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov

August 3, 2020
Prepared by LAFCO Staff

Sonoma
Solano

Yolo
Lake

Legend
Napa Sanitation District
Jurisdictional Boundary

Calistoga

St. Helena

Yountville
Napa

American 
Canyon

0 0.0065 0.0130.00325
Miles

Marin

4009 Linda Vista Avenue
(APN 007-152-030)

Attachment Three



Linda Vista Ave

Vine Hill D
r

Las Flores D
r

Linda Vista Avenue No. 21
Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B

Napa, California 94559
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov

August 3, 2020
Prepared by LAFCO Staff

Sonoma
Solano

Yolo
Lake

Legend
Napa Sanitation District
Jurisdictional Boundary

Calistoga

St. Helena

Yountville
Napa

American 
Canyon

0 0.0075 0.0150.00375
Miles

Marin

4213 Linda Vista Avenue
(APN 007-103-004)

Attachment Three



Trower A
ve

Trower Ct

Linda Vista Avenue No. 21
Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B

Napa, California 94559
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov

August 3, 2020
Prepared by LAFCO Staff

Sonoma
Solano

Yolo
Lake

Legend
Napa Sanitation District
Jurisdictional Boundary

Calistoga

St. Helena

Yountville
Napa

American 
Canyon

0 0.0065 0.0130.00325
Miles

Marin

2415 Trower Avenue
(APN 007-172-023)

Attachment Three



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  

We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 

Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) 
Factors for Commission Determinations 

California Government Code (G.C.) Sections 56668 and 56668.3 require the Commission 
to consider the following specific factors for a change of organization involving annexation 
to a special district. No single factor is determinative, and the intent is to provide a uniform 
baseline for LAFCOs to consider boundary changes in context with local policies. 

(1) Population and population density; land area and land use; assessed valuation;
topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated
areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent areas, during the
next 10 years.

Total population within the affected territory is nine. The affected territory is legally 
uninhabited given there are fewer than 12 registered voters. 

The affected territory is approximately 2.76 acres in size, incorporated within the City of 
Napa’s jurisdictional boundary, and lies within a residential area designated under the City 
of Napa General Plan as Linda Vista. The affected territory is currently developed with four 
single-family residences and one detached second unit. The current assessment value of the 
affected territory totals $1,862,598.1 

The affected territory is located within the Salvador Channel drainage basin. Soils within 
the affected territory are classified as Cole silt loam, Haire loam and Clear Lake clay, with 
zero to two percent slopes. 

The affected territory has City General Plan land use designations of SFI-8 (Single Family 
Infill) and SFR-4 (Single Family Residential), and zoning standards of RI-7 (Residential 
Infill, minimum lot size 7,000 sq. ft.), RS-5 (Residential, minimum lot size 5,000 sq. ft.) and 
RS-7 (Residential, minimum lot size 7,000 sq. ft.). The affected territory is currently 
developed with four single-family residences and one detached second unit, and could 
potentially be further built out to include up to 16 total residential units in the future.2 

Adjacent lands on the all sides of the affected territory are within the City’s jurisdictional 
boundary and are developed or have residential use designations in the General Plan. 

11 The assessed value of the affected territory is divided into land at $939,293 and structural improvements at 
$923,305. 

2  At buildout, the projected resident population of the affected territory is 43 based on the California 
Department of Finance’s population per household estimate of 2.73 for the City of Napa. 

Attachment Four



Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 2 of 6 
  

 

(2) The need for municipal services; the present cost and adequacy of municipal services 
and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services and controls; probable 
effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, or exclusion and of 
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the 
area and adjacent areas. 

Core municipal services already provided within the affected territory by the City include 
water, fire protection and emergency medical, and law enforcement. These services are 
provided at adequate levels for the existing single-family residences and second unit. 
 
The need for additional municipal services for the affected territory includes the extension 
of public sewer from NSD to allow existing residential units to connect to public sewer 
instead of relying on private septic systems. If the proposal is approved, septic system 
setback requirements will be eliminated and therefore additional residential development 
can occur. The maximum buildout potential of the affected territory is 16 residential units 
with a projected population of 43 residents. This report analyzes the proposal with potential 
future buildout impacts in mind.  

 
A review of estimated demands for municipal services within the affected territory 
indicates the City and NSD have sufficient capacities and controls to reasonably 
accommodate current and future needs. This statement is based on information collected 
and analyzed in the Commission’s Central County Region Municipal Service Review 
adopted in 2014.3 No service deficiencies for the area were identified in the Municipal 
Service Review. Additional information regarding estimated service demands within the 
affected territory at buildout follows. 

 
Water 

 

All existing residential units within the affected territory currently receive water 
service from the City. At buildout, annual potable water demands within the 
affected territory are projected at 3.8 acre-feet or 1,226,400 gallons. This amount is 
based on the City’s current average daily water demands of 210 gallons per 
residence. The City has established adequate capacities and controls to 
accommodate these demands. 

 
Fire Protection and Emergency Medical 

 

The affected territory currently receives fire protection and emergency medical 
service from the City. At buildout, annual service calls within the affected territory 
are projected at 5.0 based on the City’s ratio of 117.5 annual fire protection and 
emergency medical service calls per 1,000 residents over the last five completed 
years.4 The City has established adequate capacities and controls to accommodate 
these demands into the foreseeable future. 
 
 
 
 

                                                   
3 The Central County Region Municipal Service Review is available online at: 

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf. 
4 The City Fire Department reports total annual fire protection and emergency medical service calls averaged 

9,329.6 over the last five completed years. 

Attachment Four

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/MSR_CentralCounty_FinalReport_2014.pdf


Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 3 of 6 
  

Law Enforcement 
 

The affected territory currently receives law enforcement service from the City. At 
buildout, annual service calls within the affected territory are projected at 34.4 
based on the City’s ratio of 799.5 annual law enforcement service calls per 1,000 
residents over the last five completed years.5 The City has established adequate 
capacities and controls to accommodate these demands into the foreseeable future. 

Sewer 
 

The affected territory needs sewer service from NSD. Proposal approval would 
result in new immediate sewer flows totaling approximately 750 gallons per day 
within the affected territory. This amount is based on NSD’s design standard of 150 
gallons per day per residence. At buildout, the affected territory would result in 
sewer flows totaling approximately 2,400 gallons per day. NSD has established 
adequate capacities and controls to accommodate these immediate and potential 
buildout demands into the foreseeable future. 

 
(3) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on 
mutual social and economic interests, and on local governmental structure. 

The proposal would recognize and strengthen existing social and economic ties between 
NSD and the affected territory. These ties were initially established in 1975 when the 
Commission included the affected territory in NSD’s SOI, marking an expectation the site 
would require public sewer from the District as the region’s sole service provider. 

 
(4) The conformity of the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted 
commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban 
development, and the policies and priorities set forth in G.C. Section 56377. 

The proposal is consistent with the Commission’s adopted policies based on the affected 
territory’s urban land use designation and consistency with NSD’s SOI. Further, the 
affected territory does not qualify as “open-space” under LAFCO law and therefore does 
not conflict with G.C. Section 56377.6  Proposal approval would be consistent with 
planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development. 

(5) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of 
agricultural lands, as defined by G.C. Section 56016. 

The proposal will not have an adverse effect on agricultural lands. The affected territory is 
located within the City of Napa Rural Urban Limit Line (RUL).  
 
(6) The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance 
of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or 
corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecting the proposed 
boundaries. 

The affected territory includes all of the property identified by the County of Napa 
Assessor’s Office as 007-231-002, 007-152-030, 007-103-004, and 007-172-023. The 
applicant has submitted a map and geographic descriptions of the affected territory that 

                                                   
5 The City Police Department reports total annual law enforcement service calls averaged 63,459.6 over the last 

five completed years. 
6  The affected is not devoted to an open-space use under the City General Plan.  

Attachment Four



Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 4 of 6 
  

conform with the requirements of the State Board of Equalization. Approval of the proposal 
would have no impact with respect to unincorporated islands or corridors of unincorporated 
territory given the affected territory is located entirely within the City of Napa. 

 
(7) Consistency with a regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to G.C. Section 
65080. 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s regional transportation plan (RTP), Plan 
Bay Area 2040, was updated in 2017 and outlines specific goals and objectives to direct 
public transportation infrastructure in the Bay Area through 2040.7 No specific projects are 
included in the RTP involving the affected territory. Accordingly, the proposal impact is 
neutral with respect to the RTP. 

 
(8) Consistency with the city or county general and specific plans. 

Approval of the proposal would allow for public sewer service to be provided to the affected 
territory to serve existing and planned uses. The availability and provision of this municipal 
service is consistent with the City’s General Plan land use designation and zoning 
assignment for the affected territory, both of which contemplate single-family residential 
development. 

 

(9) The sphere of influence of any local agency affected by the proposal. 

The affected territory is located entirely within NSD’s SOI, which was comprehensively 
updated by the Commission in October 2015. 

 

(10) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency. 

Staff provided notice of the proposal to all affected agencies, transportation agencies, and 
school districts inviting comments as required under G.C. Section 56658. No comments 
were received. 

 
(11) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are 
the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those 
services following the proposed boundary change. 

Information collected and analyzed as part of the Commission’s Central County Region 
Municipal Service Review adopted in 2014 concluded NSD has developed overall adequate 
financial resources and controls relative to current and projected service commitments. 
This includes regularly reviewing and amending, as needed, NSD’s two principal rates and 
fees to ensure the sewer system remains solvent and sufficiently capitalized to 
accommodate future demands: (a) capacity charge for new connections and (b) annual 
service charge. The capacity charge is currently $9,959 and serves as NSD’s buy-in charge 
for new customers to contribute their fair share for existing and future facilities necessary 
to receive sewer service. The annual service charge for a single-family unit is currently 
$738.60 and is intended to proportionally recover NSD’s ongoing maintenance and 
operation expenses. The 2014 Central County Region Municipal Service Review is relied 
upon and sufficient for this annexation proposal regarding the plan for services required by 
G.C. Section 56653. 

                                                   
7  Plan Bay Area 2040 is a long-range integrated transportation and land-use/housing strategy through 2040 for 

the San Francisco Bay Area. Plan Bay Area 2040 includes the region’s Sustainable Communities Strategy 
and the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan. 

Attachment Four



Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 5 of 6 
  

(12) Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in 
G.C. Section 65352.5. 

The potential future buildout of the affected territory would result in annual water demands 
for the City totaling approximately 3.8 acre-feet or 1,226,400 gallons. This amount is based 
on current average water demands within the City of approximately 210 gallons per day 
per residence. The City’s water supplies are generated from three sources: (1) Lake 
Hennessey; (2) Milliken Reservoir; and (3) State Water Project. Total supplies vary 
according to hydrologic conditions. A table depicting the City’s existing water service 
demands relative to supplies follows. As reflected in the following table, adequate water 
supplies exist for the projected needs of the City, including buildout of the affected territory.  

 
 

Baseline 
(Amounts in Acre-Feet) 

   

 
Category 

Normal 
Year 

Multiple 
Dry 

Single 
Dry 

Annual Supply 39,410 26,870 18,840 
Annual Demand 12,015 12,015 12,015 
Total Surplus 27,395 14,855 6,825 

(13) The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in 
achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by the 
appropriate council of governments. 

Approval of the proposal would be neutral with respect to achieving its fair share of the 
regional housing needs since the affected territory is fully developed.8 

(14) Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents 
of the affected territory. 

The landowners of the affected territory are the petitioners seeking annexation. No 
additional information or comments were submitted. 

 
(15) Any information relating to existing land use designations. 

 
The affected territory has a designation within the City General Plan of SFI-8 (Single 
Family Infill) and SFR-4 (Single Family Residential) and a zoning standard of RI-7 
(Residential Infill, minimum lot size 7,000 sq. ft.), RS-5 (Residential, minimum lot size 
5,000 sq. ft.) and RS-7 (Residential, minimum lot size 7,000 sq. ft.). The affected territory 
is currently developed with four single-family residences and one detached second unit. 
The proposed annexation to NSD is consistent with these existing land use designations. 

 
(16)  The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice. As used in 
this subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment and meaningful 
involvement of people of all races, cultures, incomes, and national origins, with respect 
to the location of public facilities and the provision of public services, to ensure a healthy 
environment for all people such that the effects of pollution are not disproportionately 
borne by any particular populations or communities. 

There is no documentation or evidence suggesting the proposal will have any implication 
for environmental justice in Napa County. 

                                                   
8 A recent report with information on local regional housing needs allocations is available online at: 

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/6-3-19_5f_Housing-GeneralPlans.pdf. 

Attachment Four

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/6-3-19_5f_Housing-GeneralPlans.pdf


Proposed Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to NSD: Factors for Commission Determinations 
Page 6 of 6 
  

(17) Information contained in a local hazard mitigation plan, information contained in 
a safety element of a general plan, and any maps that identify land as a very high fire 
hazard zone pursuant to Section 51178 or maps that identify land determined to be in a 
state responsibility area pursuant to Section 4102 of the Public Resources Code, if it is 
determined that such information is relevant to the area that is the subject of the 
proposal. 

There is no documentation or evidence suggesting a local hazard mitigation plan or safety 
element of a general plan is relevant to the proposed annexation to NSD. Further, the 
affected territory is not located in a high fire hazard zone or a state responsibility area.  

 
(18) For annexations involving special districts, whether the proposed action will be for 
the interest of the landowners or present or future inhabitants within the district and 
within the territory proposed to be annexed to the district. 

Proposal approval would benefit current and future landowners and residents within the 
affected territory by providing permanent access to public sewer service. Public sewer 
service eliminates the need for septic systems in an area in which any failings could pose 
a public health and safety threat for immediate and adjacent residents. 

Attachment Four



 

 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

             Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7c (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Public Comments Received on Draft Countywide Water and 

Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Commission discuss the public comments received on the draft 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR) and provide 
direction to staff to incorporate any desired revisions to the MSR. The Commission may 
also consider directing staff to provide written responses to any of the comments. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 directs 
LAFCOs to prepare municipal service reviews (MSRs) every five years to inform their 
other planning and regulatory activities. This includes, most notably, preparing and 
updating all local agencies’ spheres of influence as needed. MSRs vary in scope and can 
focus on a particular agency, service, or geographic region as defined by LAFCOs. MSRs 
may also lead LAFCOs to take other actions under its authority such as forming, 
consolidating, merging, or dissolving one or more local agencies. MSRs culminate with 
LAFCOs making determinations on a number of factors addressing growth and population 
trends, disadvantaged unincorporated communities, infrastructure needs or deficiencies, 
financial standing, opportunities for shared facilities, and accountability for community 
service needs as required by California Government Code Section 56430. 
 
The Commission previously scheduled a comprehensive Countywide Water and 
Wastewater MSR and hired a private consultant, Policy Consulting Associates (PCA), to 
prepare the report. PCA is subcontracting with Berkson Associates. PCA developed a 
project-specific website to provide opportunities for ongoing interaction with the subject 
agencies and members of the general public. The website is available to the public online 
at https://sites.google.com/pcateam.com/napamsr/home.  
 

https://sites.google.com/pcateam.com/napamsr/home


Public Comments Received on Draft Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
The draft MSR was released to the public on May 18, 2020, and is available online at 
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_P
ublicReviewDraft_5-18-20.pdf. Written comments on the draft MSR were welcome 
through July 20, 2020. Comments were also solicited at the Commission’s virual public 
workshop on July 13, 2020.  
 
Overview of MSR 
 
The draft MSR provides a comprehensive review of water, wastewater, and recycled water 
service in Napa County as provided by 14 local governmental agencies. The 14 subject 
agencies are listed below: 
 

• City of American Canyon 
• City of Calistoga 
• City of Napa 
• City of St. Helena 
• Town of Yountville 
• Circle Oaks County Water 

District  
• Congress Valley Water District 
• Lake Berryessa Resort 

Improvement District 

• Los Carneros Water District 
• Napa Berryessa Resort 

Improvement District 
• Napa County Flood Control and 

Water Conservation District 
• Napa River Reclamation District 

No. 2109 
• Napa Sanitation District 
• Spanish Flat Water District 

 
It is important to note the draft MSR includes an overview of potential effects of climatic 
shifts on utility systems, likely trends that may negatively affect Napa County water supply 
in the future, and potential implications to water supply and water resources management 
resulting from these likely trends. Acknowledging the various trends set forth in the 
numerous hydrological and climatological studies that inform the draft MSR serves to 
provide the baseline from which to forewarn policy makers, water managers, and resource 
management practitioners of the potential repercussions of climatic shifts to water 
resources, including governance issues such as water rights. With this in mind, the draft 
MSR includes several key recommendations related to the governance structure and shared 
service opportunities for many of the subject agencies. Toward this end, the draft MSR 
identifies potential governance structure options for the subject agencies in Figure 3-14, 
included as Attachment One. 
 
  

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_PublicReviewDraft_5-18-20.pdf
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_PublicReviewDraft_5-18-20.pdf


Public Comments Received on Draft Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Public Comments on Draft MSR 
 
All public comments received by the stated deadline of July 20, 2020, are included as 
Attachment Two. This includes verbal comments received at the Commission’s virtual 
public workshop on July 13, 2020. The comments range in topic and generally involve the 
following areas of focus: 
 

• Clarifications and technical corrections 
• Positions on recommended governance structure options, including formation of a 

county water agency or countywide water district 
• Water security for all users, including groundwater sustainability and possible 

future expansion of municipal groundwater wells for emergencies 
• Trucked water and the need for uniform policies 
• Request for clarification of LAFCO’s sphere of influence policies 
• Environmental considerations 
• Water quality issues and high utility rates in Berryessa Estates 
• Need for scenario planning related to drought and other emergencies 

 
The public comments will be included in a final report along with changes throughout the 
report to address certain comments. Not all comments will result in changes to the report. 
However, any technical corrections provided by a subject agency will be incorporated.  
 
The Commission is invited to discuss the public comments and provide direction to staff 
to incorporate any desired revisions to the MSR. The Commission is also invited to provide 
direction to staff to provide written responses to any of the comments. Staff recommends 
the Commission pay particular attention to comments related to the governance structure 
options and consider the merits of any changes to the MSR.  
 
A final report with revisions based on today’s discussion will be presented to the 
Commission for possible adoption as part of a noticed public hearing on October 5, 2020.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) MSR Figure 3-14: Governance Structure Options 
2) All Public Comments on Draft MSR 



Figure 3-14: Governance Structure Options 

Napa County Water and Wastewater Agency Governance Structure Options 

Affected Agency Governance Options 

City of American Canyon • Clarification of LAFCO-approved service area

• Inclusion of non-contiguous city-owned property in SOI
or clarification of LAFCO policy 

• Participation in a county water agency 

City of Calistoga • Participation in a county water agency 

City of Napa • Reorganization of Congress Valley Water District 

• Contract service to other agencies

• Merger with Napa Sanitation District 

• Creation of a Water Commission

• Inclusion of non-contiguous city-owned property in SOI
or clarification of LAFCO policy 

• Participation in a county water agency 

City of St. Helena • Elimination of Municipal Sewer District No. 1 

• Inclusion of non-contiguous city-owned property in SOI
or clarification of LAFCO policy 

• Participation in a county water agency 

Town of Yountville • Collaboration with California Department of Veterans
Affairs to develop a water management plan

• Continued collaboration with County regarding potential
annexation of Domaine Chandon property

• Participation in a county water agency 

Circle Oaks County Water District • Contracting for services with City of Napa and/or Napa
Sanitation District 

• Reorganization into a county water agency or a
countywide county water district 

Congress Valley Water District • Reorganization of Congress Valley Water District 

o Expansion of City of Napa SOI and annexation of
Congress Valley community 

o Formation of a subsidiary district of City of Napa

o Formation of a county service area

o Dissolution and continued service by City of Napa

Attachment One



Napa County Water and Wastewater Agency Governance Structure Options 

Affected Agency Governance Options 

Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement 
District 

• Reorganization as a county service area 

• Reorganization into a county water agency or countywide 
county water district 

Los Carneros Water District • Reorganization with Napa Sanitation District 

Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement 
District 

• Reorganization as a county service area 

• Reorganization into a county water agency or countywide 
county water district 

Napa County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District 

• Establish zones of benefit 

• Reorganization with Napa River Reclamation District No. 
2109 

• Participation in a county water agency 

Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 • Expansion of services to include levee construction and 
maintenance 

• Reorganization into a community services district 

• Reorganization as zone of Napa County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District 

Napa Sanitation District • Merger with City of Napa 

• Annexation of Los Carneros Water District 

• Contract service to other agencies 

• Expansion of services to Monticello Park 

Spanish Flat Water District • Contracting for services with City of Napa and/or Napa 
Sanitation District 

• Reorganization into a county water agency or countywide 
county water district 

• Transition to a county service area 

 

 

Attachment One



From: William Ross <wross@lawross.com> 
Date: May 14, 2020 at 6:47:30 PM PDT 
To: Jennifer Stephenson <JENNIFER@PCATEAM.COM> 
Cc: Jason Holley <jholley@cityofamericancanyon.org>, Rick Kaufman 
<RKaufman@cityofamericancanyon.org> 
Subject: RE:  Admin Draft 2 Napa Water/Wastewater MSR 

This responds informally to your email of May 5, 2020 concerning additional changes to the Draft 
Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR (“draft MSR”), prior to its being published. 

You have indicated that the draft MSR will not consider the current existing economic impact of the 
COVID-19 Pandemic in all involved local agencies analyzed in the draft MSR. 

Government Code section 56430 requires that an MSR address the financial ability of agencies to 
provide services.  Even though the draft MSR involves enterprise services, those services are directly 
related to the overall financial ability of the involved local agencies to provide those services. 

The Governor’s Executive Order N-28-20 prohibits commercial or residential evictions on the basis of 
non-payment of utility bills, an immediate impact on enterprise services. The possibility that the 
Legislature will make permanent some aspects of that Executive Order, which is effective until May 31, 
2020, is real. 

Also, each of the local agencies subject to the draft MSR are dealing with budget issues resulting from 
the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic crisis on dedicated revenue streams.  

In addition, much of the draft MSR relies on Urban Water Management Plans formulated in either 2014 
or 2015 becoming effective the next year, which are due for revision this fiscal year.  

Respectfully, the document would go forward with information that is either presently out of date or 
will be out of date during its consideration, and certainly with respect to its prospective implementation 
within the next fiscal year. 

The City again raises the issue about the portrayal of its Water Service Area, which was created 
concurrently with the City’s incorporation with the merger of the American Canyon County Water 
District. 

Although LAFCO does have the power to define extension of services in Resolution No. 07-27, it cannot 
do so in a way which contradicts the original LAFCO change of organization, which confirmed the City 
succeeding to the entire service area of the former County Water District. 

We refer again to our March 5, 2020 communication with respect to the original LAFCO documents 
dealing with the City incorporation as being different from the consultant’s baseline assumption for the 
MSR preparation. Representations of the City Water Service Area should be consistent with the LAFCO 
documents presented. 

Stated plainly, actions of a quasi-legislative body (LAFCO) must comply with the equal dignity 
doctrine.  See, Richmond v. Shasta Community Services Dist. (2002) 95 Cal. App. 4th 1227-1228.  What 

Comments on Draft MSR - City of American Canyon Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:wross@lawross.com
mailto:JENNIFER@PCATEAM.COM
mailto:jholley@cityofamericancanyon.org
mailto:RKaufman@cityofamericancanyon.org


was created by a change of organization must be changed by a change of organization. This issue is 
relevant in consideration of alternative forms of service from the plain perspective of the MSR not 
dealing with the possibility that if some other entity is to provide service to the service area of the City, 
then it must be done by a change of organization with provisions for compensation. 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft MSR prior to publication. 
  
William D. Ross, Esq. 
Law Offices of William D. Ross 
A Professional Corporation 
400 Lambert Avenue, Palo Alto, California 94306 
Tel: (650) 843-8080; Fax: (650) 843-8093 
E-Mail:  wross@lawross.com 
 

Comments on Draft MSR - City of American Canyon Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:wross@lawross.com


Law Offices of 

William D. Ross 
A Professional Corporation 

File No.199/6.20 

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 

TO: Jason Holley, City Manager 
City of American Canyon 

DATE: June 8, 2020 

FROM: William D. Ross, City Attorney CC:     

RE:  Further Analysis of Incorporation Documents and Incorporation FEIR 
Subsequent to Meeting with LAFCO Staff on  County LAFCO Water and 
Wastewater MSR 

Subsequent to the Friday, June 5, 2020 teleconference meeting with selected 
individuals associated with the Napa County LAFCO (“LAFCO”) concerning the proposed 
Water and Wastewater MSR (the “MSR”), documents were again reviewed for any 

evidence or inference of a contraction of the Water Service Area (“WSA”) of the American 
Canyon County Water District (“ACCWD”) prior to incorporation of the City of American 
Canyon (“City”).  The incorporation was one change of organization including the City 
succeeding to the ACCWD WSA and the formerly independent American Canyon Fire 
Protection District (“ACFPD”) becoming a successor special district to the City. 

The documents reviewed were: 

1. The 1990 Incorporation Draft Environmental Impact Report (“DEIR”), including
Appendices Parts 1, 2 and 3;

2. The Final Environmental Impact Report (“FEIR”), both exclusive and inclusive of
all DEIR documents; and,

3. The 1991 City Incorporation Documents (LAFCO Resolution 91-18, et al.)

Comments on Draft MSR - City of American Canyon Attachment Two



Jason Holley, City Manager 
City of American Canyon 
June 8, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Consistent with the prior analysis that has now been expressed several times, taking 
into account the differences in formats for both the environmental documents from 1990-
1992 and present as well as those associated with LAFCO documents then and now, there 
is no evidence, or inference, that the size of the ACCWD WSA was decreased prior to 
final action on the final City Incorporation and related changes in organization by LAFCO 
in 1991.  

 
Both the DEIR and the FEIR explain the prior incorporation proposal and explore the 

required Project Alternatives including the no Project Alternative.   
 
None of these alternatives describe a reduction in the geographic footprint of the 

ACCWD WSA.  
 
Also, a review of the analysis text in the DEIR and FEIR did not indicate an alternative 

provider for local agency water within ACCWD WSA. 
 
It is noted that where alternative service providers were present in the area of 

wastewater analysis for the Project, alternative providers are analyzed. For example, the 
Napa Sanitation District (“NSD”) and its overlapping service areas with those of the 
ACCWD.  In that instance, there was a clarification, both in the environmental documents 
and in the final City Incorporation documents as to how the service areas for NSD and 
ACCWD were to be resolved. 

 
Pending review of the information which Brendan Freeman is going to forward  

concerning a claimed 1990 LAFCO action regarding the ACCWD, it is recommended that 
for the formal LAFCO hearing on the MSR, that a comprehensive communication be 
forwarded to LAFCO, executed by the Mayor, setting forth the City position.  

 
If upon review you have questions, please contact me.  

 
W.D.R.  

Comments on Draft MSR - City of American Canyon Attachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

DRayner
Polygonal Line

DRayner
Polygon

DRayner
Line



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Calistoga Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Napa Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Comments on Draft MSR - City of Napa Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



July 14, 2020 

RE: Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Public Review Draft 

Dear Mr. Freeman: 

This letter is to provide clarification and/or corrections to data included in the Municipal Service 
Review. Please see the comments below: 

Page 193 
Municipal Sewer District No. 1 appears to be a relic of previous circumstances and no longer provides 
a benefit to the City’s operations but instead creates an extra layer of unnecessary process. It is 
recommended that the District be eliminated, and its functions continued as part of the City’s Finance 
and Public Works Departments, similar to other cities.  
Public Works Director Comments: Agree. The adopted General Plan Policy LU1. 2 essentially covers 
no utilities beyond urban limit line therefore those within should be allowed to connect without 
annexation. 

Page 200 
Land Use Element 
Public Works Director Comments: What about: LU1.2 Allow urban development to occur only within 
the Urban Limit Line. Consider an exception for on-site employee housing on Agricultural lands. 
Urban services, such as sewer, water, and storm drainage, will only be extended to development within 
the Urban Limit Line. 

Page 201 
Additionally, the recent General Plan Update has precluded connections to the municipal water, sewer 
and storm drainage system outside of the City’s ULL. LU1.2 

Page 203 
Overlapping Service Providers 
There are no overlapping water service providers within the City of St. Helena; however, both the City 
of Napa and St. Helena provide water services to the Rutherford property (Beaulieu Vineyard), which 
is outside both cities. There is an opportunity for greater collaboration between the two cities to ensure 
that duplicative services to not occur in other locations. 
Public Works Director Comments: Agree 

Page 205 
A third well, also near the Napa River but just north of Pope Street, provides untreated water that is 
used for irrigation in nearby areas, including Jacob Meily Park.  

Comments on Draft MSR - City of St. Helena Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Public Works Director Comments: Just serves the park  
 
When an application for an agricultural well is submitted, the applicant must also submit a study by a 
hydrogeologist to determine the project’s actual effects on the groundwater system and provide for 
mitigation of any resulting negative impacts.  
Public Works Director Comments: May be required to submit a study by the Public Works Director 
per SHMC 13.16.070 Permit approval/denial, Section C 
 
The amount of water purchased from the City of Napa has been gradually increasing. The last such 
increase was brought about by the necessity to allocate more water for fish habitats. 
Public Works Director Comments: It has? If we went over the 600 AF allocation it was due to an 
operational overage and not bypass requirements. 
 
Page 206 
As part of the lawsuit settlement, the City agreed to divert more water from the reservoir to the creek. 
Thus, water lost due to the diversion is now purchased from the City of Napa.  
Public Works Director Comments: This is an inaccurate statement. The 2018 interim bypass plan study 
concluded that the plan would have a minimal impact on the storage volume of the reservoir and would 
not require the City to tap any other sources of water to make up for the difference 
 
Page 208 
Demand/Supply Analysis  
As was already mentioned prior, annual yield from Bell Canyon in recent years has been significantly 
less than in prior years, primarily because more water is now diverted to support fish habitat. Most 
recently, City of Napa water supply has become an increasing percentage of St. Helena’s total supply. 
St. Helena is also seeking to reduce its withdrawal of groundwater in non-drought years, in order to 
give the aquifers in the area of the Stonebridge Well Complex an opportunity to recharge. 
Public Works Director Comments: Inaccurate statement  
 
Often “safe yield” is thought of as the supply that can be reliably delivered under worst-case (drought) 
conditions. However, it was also apparent that under such an approach, the demand on the City’s water 
system, even at the reduced levels of recent years, exceeded the “safe annual yield.” 
Public Works Director Comments: Which years? 
 
Page 211 
The three Meadowood tanks are constructed of redwood, have leakage, and are considered to be in 
poor condition. The City has not yet addressed this issue as a funding source is yet to be identified.  
Public Works Director Comments: Inaccurate, funding is available with the adoption of the 2017 rate 
study 
 
Page 212 
Infrastructure Needs 
6) installation of smart meters, and 7) software upgrade for meters.  
Public Works Director Comments: Where in the CIP? 
 
Page 215 
Wastewater Services  
Land Use Element  
Public Works Director Comments: LU1.2 should be added here as well 

Comments on Draft MSR - City of St. Helena Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 
 
Page 216 
Service Area 
All sewer connections are located within the city boundaries, with no out-of-agency sewer services 
provided.459 However, Meadowood, which is to the north of St. Helena, has expressed interest in 
connecting to the City’s system and the State is supportive of the City taking on these services. 
Public Works Director Comments: Is this referencing the States general goal of consolidation private 
to public utility agencies? 
 
Page 217 
The three licensed water treatment operators who are employed in the Water Treatment Division of the 
Public Works Department are also licensed in wastewater treatment and provide standby operation of 
the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
Public Works Director Comments: The City has three licensed water treatment and three wastewater 
treatment operators. The goal is to have overlap licenses to have reciprocal backup. 
 
Page 219 
The next step is determining a funding plan consisting of some combination of a general fund loan, 
bonds, and a USDA rural fund loan, and then issuing a Request for Proposals in February 2020 for 
construction of the plant improvements, in order to stay on track to meet the required deadlines. 
Public Works Director Comments: This is outdated information; the project is now on a design bid 
build approach. 
 
Page 222 
5) The City makes reservoir water available for trucking of non-potable water for irrigation and 
construction. At present, there are no limitations on who may make use of the water for trucking. In 
order to ensure that trucked water does not promote development and growth in unincorporated areas 
where water supply is not sustainable and which may adversely affect agricultural uses, it is 
recommended that approved uses and locations for trucking of water be defined in the City’s municipal 
code. 
Public Works Director Comments: This is outlined in SHMC 13.04.080 B. Nontreated (Raw) Water 
from Lower Reservoir 
 
Page 225 
 The City makes reservoir water available for trucking of non-potable water for irrigation and 

construction. At present, there are no limitations on who may make use of the water for 
trucking. In order to ensure that trucked water does not promote development and growth in 
unincorporated areas where water supply is not sustainable and which may adversely affect 
agricultural uses, it is recommended that approved uses and locations for trucking of water be 
defined in the City’s municipal code.  

Public Works Director Comments: SHMC 13.04.080 B. Nontreated (Raw) Water from Lower 
Reservoir 
 
Regards, 
 
City of St. Helena  
Department of Public Works 

Comments on Draft MSR - City of St. Helena Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Sent by email  
Confirmation of Receipt Requested 
 
 
July 20, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Brendon Freeman 
Executive Director 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California 94559 
bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov 
 
 
RE:  Draft Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
 City of St. Helena Comments 
 
Dear Mr. Freeman, 
 
On behalf of the City of St. Helena and the St. Helena City Council, I would like to thank you and the 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) of Napa County for your important work on the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR). On July 14, 2020, the City of 
St. Helena City Council had the opportunity hear public comment and provide additional direction on 
the MSR Draft in addition to my earlier document clarification letter submitted on July 14, 2020. We 
understand that written comments on the draft MSR report will be incorporated into a final report that 
will be adopted as part of a future public meeting.  
 
The following are comments specific to the MSR recommendations for the City of St. Helena:  
 

1. The City concurs with the recommendations to update water service planning documents and 
is currently working on an Integrated Utility Master Plan addressing Water, Wastewater and 
Stormwater needs for the City with a virtual City Council workshop being held on July 30, 
2020 to discuss the draft documents. 

2. The City concurs with the recommendations to further water supply studies assessing future 
use of existing sources and identifying potential new sources.  

3. The City will need to further evaluate and potentially consider LAFCO’s recommendation to 
eliminate the St. Helena Municipal Sewer District No. 1.  

4. The City concurs with the recommendations to evaluate existing duplicative water services 
provided by the City of St. Helena and the City of Napa in the Rutherford Road area, which is 
outside both cities. It is important to note that the City of St. Helena does not allow for new 
water services outside the City limits therefore new duplicative services are unlikely. 

5. The City believes the recommendation regarding unlimited non-potable water services is in 

Comments on Draft MSR - City of St. Helena Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



error since the St. Helena Municipal Code 13.04.080 B. Nontreated (Raw) Water from Lower 
Reservoir specifically restricts usage to within the City and users are required to have a permit 
and/or contract agreement. However, there is room for improvement at the specific raw water 
station which is operated on the honor system. Improvements to the raw water station were 
identified in the 2017 adopted rate study as a future capital improvement project. 

6. The City concurs with Napa LAFCO's recommendation to consider including the 
noncontiguous city-owned properties in the City of St. Helena's SOI during its next update, or 
if LAFCO wishes to continue the practice of excluding these properties from the City's SOI, 
then it may consider clarifying its intent in its policies. 

 
In addition to the comments specific to the City of St. Helena MSR recommendations, the City has the 
following: 
 

7. LAFCO should include recommendations in the MSR study regarding the protection of all 
municipal watersheds throughout the County by creating water quality buffer zones in the 
Agricultural Watershed Districts and to establish regulations related to oak tree and oak 
woodland removal due to development and vineyard conversions. 

8. LAFCO should include a recommendation in the MSR study that the County of Napa 
establishes a policy to consult with and require joint jurisdiction approval in conjunction with 
a County permit if a proposed project, such as a vineyard conversion, is within another 
jurisdictions municipal watershed. 

9. LAFCO should include a recommendation in the MSR study for the County of Napa and City 
of St. Helena to jointly engage in a Bell Canyon watershed study. Such a study could include 
the creation of a watershed runoff computer model which considers weather patterns, 
topography, land use, land cover, air quality, septic systems, water diversions and potential 
projects that threaten the City’s municipal water supply.  

10. Additionally, the City is currently in design and the start of environmental review of the 
planned upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant to tertiary level treatment. The completed 
project presents an opportunity to eliminate septic or other stand alone treatment systems both 
within the City and potentially other nearby unincorporated properties. Therefore, the City is 
recommending LAFCO’s support now for any private unincorporated properties that may be 
interested in establishing a city sewer connection under the pilot provisions of Government 
Code 56133.5. 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment and for your consideration. 
  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Erica Ahmann Smithies, P.E. 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
esmithies@cityofsthelena.org 
 
cc: St. Helena City Council 
 Mark T. Prestwich, City Manager, mprestwich@cityofsthelena.org  

Jennifer Stephenson, PCA Project Manager, jennifer@pcateam.com     

Comments on Draft MSR - City of St. Helena Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:esmithies@cityofsthelena.org
mailto:mprestwich@cityofsthelena.org
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com


Comments on Draft MSR - Town of Yountville Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: "Valerie E. Clemen" <VClemen@coombslaw.com> 
Subject: Napa Countywide Water & Wastewater Study 
Date: July 13, 2020 at 9:05:05 AM PDT 
To: Jennifer Stephenson <jennifer@pcateam.com> 

Dear Ms. Stephenson, 

Our office represents the Board of the Congress Valley Water District. The Congress Valley 
Water District has reviewed the draft report, and will be preparing formal comments. In 
advance of those comments, the District notes that while the Report discusses the possibility of 
dissolution of the District, such an action would not advance the efficient provision of services 
for this area, and does not serve the best interests of the landowners within the District’s 
boundaries. 

The District’s formal comments will be submitted before the July 17, 2020 deadline. Thank you. 
_____________________ 
Valerie E. Clemen 
Coombs & Dunlap, LLP 
1211 Division Street 
Napa, CA 94559 
(707) 252-9100 - Main
(707) 252-8516 - Fax
vclemen@coombslaw.com

Comments on Draft MSR - CVWD Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:VClemen@coombslaw.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:vclemen@coombslaw.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

1195 Third Street, Suite 301 

Napa, CA 94559 

Main: (707) 253-4521 

Fax: (707) 259-8220 

 

County Counsel 

Jeffrey M. Brax 
 
Chief Deputies 

Sherri S. Kaiser 

Thomas C. Zeleny 

Deputies   x  

Silva Darbinian 

Laura J. Anderson 

Chris R. Y. Apallas 

Susan B. Altman 

Thomas S. Capriola 

Jason M. Dooley 

John L. Myers 

Rachel L. Ross 

Shana A. Bagley 

Corey S. Utsurogi 

Douglas V. Parker 

NAPA COUNTY 

OFFICE OF COUNTY COUNSEL 
 

 
June 24, 2020 

 

LAFCO of Napa County 

c/o Ms. Jennifer Stephenson 

1030 Seminary St Ste B 

Napa, CA 94559 

(Sent via e-mail: jennifer@pcateam.com) 

 

RE:  NRRD Initial Response to 2020 Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal 

        Service Review Public Review Draft 

 

Dear LAFCO of Napa County 

 

I have been requested, as legal counsel for the Napa River Reclamation District (District or 

NRRD), to provide an initial response to the May 2020 Napa Countywide Water and 

Wastewater Municipal Service Review Public Review Draft (Review).  The NRRD’s responses 

and recommended changes to the draft Review are as follows: 

 

Page 398, Capital Assets: … 

 

“The District has no CIP, however, it has recently commissioned technical studies to evaluate 

capital improvements for its wastewater system and for flood control.”  

 

RESPONSE:  The following changes as shown in red are recommended:  “The District 

has no CIP, however, it has recently commissioned technical studies to evaluate capital 

improvements for its wastewater system and for potential flood control alternatives for 

its facilities and for the community.” 

 

Page 400, Type and Extent of Services 

 

RESPONSE:  The following statements should be added to this section:  Water Code 

section 50652 specifies that reclamation districts have powers over the reclamation 

works that the districts own.  The NRRD did not construct and does not own the 

Comments on Draft MSR - NRRD Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com


LAFCO of Napa County 

June 24, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

residential levees within the District.  It does own one flood control pump station and 

the levees/berms on NRRD property.  Therefore, the District does not have power over 

the resident owned/non-NRRD levees.  Residents are responsible for maintaining their 

own levees. 

 

Page 405, Governance Structure Options 

 

The Review suggests that the District reorganize into a Community Service District (CSD). 

 

RESPONSE:  Several years ago, the District voted against converting to a CSD.  The 

property owners within the District formed the District to have some control over the 

costs of services.  The Review does not discuss the projected costs of reorganization. 

 

The Review suggests that the District “reorganize as a zone of NCFCWCD for the purpose of 

providing reclamation services –this option would place the area under the jurisdiction of 

NCFCWCD and enable the creation of assessments, with the approval of residents, to fund 

increased reclamation and flood control services.” 

 

RESPONSE:  The NRRD does not have a formal reclamation plan and primarily 

provides sewer services.  The NCFCWCD does not provide sewer services.  The Review 

does not address what entity would provide sewer services or what reclamation 

services the NCFCWCD would provide.  If an entity (NRRD, NCFCWCD, or otherwise) 

were to purchase property rights to the private levees and ultimately improve them, it 

is likely that such an action would result in increased assessments against the parcels.  

The Review does not address the anticipated amount of the increase in assessments. 

 

Page 406:  Recommendations 

 

“NRRD should expand the content available on its website to include financial documents 

such as past and current budgets and financial reports.  Additional content can be added, as 

resources permit, to improve public access to District information and to comply with 

Assembly Bill 2257 (Government Code Section 54954.2).” 

 

RESPONSE:  The NRRD website is compliant with Government Code section 54954.2.  

Section 54954.2 does not require the NRRD to post budgets and financial reports on the 

website.  These documents are available at the NRRD Board meetings, at the NRRD 

office, and upon request.  

 

 

/ / / 

Comments on Draft MSR - NRRD Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



LAFCO of Napa County 

June 24, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Page 407, Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities: 

 

The Review recommended that “NRRD and its residents should explore opportunities to work 

with the Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRCD) to educate constituents with 

regard to activities to control settlement along their portion of the levee.” 

 

RESPONSE:  At this time, the NCRCD does not have expertise regarding levee 

maintenance.  However, this fact should not to discourage the NRRD or residents from 

utilizing the NCRCD in other capacities. 

 

Please contact the NRRD or me should you have any questions. 

 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Shana A. Bagley 
Deputy County Counsel 

NRRD District Counsel 

 

 

CC:  Penny Wilson, NRRD Assistant Manager 

Comments on Draft MSR - NRRD Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: agalbraith94574@gmail.com
To: Freeman, Brendon
Subject: Fwd: Bell Canyon Storage Right
Date: Sunday, July 12, 2020 4:40:17 PM

[External Email - Use Caution]

See below.  You can publish as a public comment if you like.  Alan

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: agalbraith94574@gmail.com
Date: February 21, 2020 at 11:27:07 AM PST
To: Mark Prestwich <MPrestwich@cityofsthelena.org>
Cc: Erica Smithies <esmithies@cityofsthelena.org>
Subject: Bell Canyon Storage Right

Per our conversation, the GP incorrectly states that the City has the right to divert
and store 3800AF.  This error continues to be repeated in city documents.  E.g.,
Attachment 1 (Synopsis of Chapter 4-Public Facilities Services Element of St.
Helena 2040 General Plan Update Regarding Water) attached to Old Business
outside City water policy matter on CC October 22 Agenda.

The 3800 AF combines the storage “right” on State Water Board Permits 9157
(1800 AF and 14810 (2000 AF).  However, the City never raised the Bell Canyon
Dam in accordance with Permit 14810.  Hence, the City never earned the 2000
AF storage right conferred in that permit.  Our storage right is 1800AF.

Now, actual storage capacity at Bell Canyon is about 2300 AF.  Two points: (1) a
storage right to my understanding is not issued in excess of the physical storage
capacity of a reservoir; (2) a certain amount of capacity is reserved for fire
protection (roughly 500 AF at Bell Canyon).  The Coty’s  storage right is in
consequence well under the reservoir’s capacity.

Now, as I mentioned, I thought I had this corrected in the GP Update (years ago, I
worked out appropriate language with John Ferons after significant discussion of
this issue), but somehow the error came back in.

Hope this is helpful.

Alan

Sent from my iPhone

Comments on Draft MSR - Alan Galbraith Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:agalbraith94574@gmail.com
mailto:bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov


1 

Thursday, July 16, 2020 

Mr. Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 
NAPA LAFCO 

Thanks so much for providing me with a hard copy earlier this week of the 
Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Public Review 
Draft (May 18, 2020).   

I offer the following comments (some are just nits) concerning the Executive 
Summary (as it pertains to St. Helena) and concerning Chapter 7 (St. Helena): 

Executive Summary: 

1. Page 1:  Note one (repeated in note one on page 13): I am not sure what is
meant by “reclaims” (“The City of St. Helena reclaims water for use on city-owned
irrigation fields etc.”).  The City uses non-potable water from a well in the small park
to the north just before the Pope Street Bridge to irrigate Jacob-Meily Park and other
nearby areas, as correctly noted on page 205, second paragraph, under Stonebridge
Wells.  As noted on page five under “Recycled Water,” the City has no capability at
this time to make recycled water services feasible.  (I am assuming that reclaimed
water is the same as recycled water.)

2. Page 4:  First paragraph under Recycled Water, the second sentence states:
“The City of St. Helena is considering implementing a recycled water program.” As
noted in the third sentence of the third paragraph under the same heading, the City
must complete substantial improvements at its wastewater facility to “make
recycled water services feasible.”   It seem that any meaningful consideration of
“implementation” is significantly premature at this time, and the second sentence
should be stricken.

Chapter 7: 

1. Page 187:  Manner of Selection under Governing Body is not correct.  The St.
Helena mayor stands for election every two years.  Also, under Governing Body all
members are “Council members,” including the mayor and vice-mayor.

2. Page 187:  Under Purpose (Municipal Services Provided:  “solid waste (Upper
Valley Disposal & Recycling). “  St. Helena residents contract directly with Upper
Valley to provide waste disposal; the City is not involved.  Now, it may be that the
intent is that Upper Valley also provides disposal services to the City itself (like any
other customer).  This could be clarified in further discussion with City staff.

3. Page 190: First sentence; see comment 1 immediately above.

Comments on Draft MSR - Alan Galbraith Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



2 

4. Page 194: Balanced Budget, second paragraph.  Insert “projects” after capital.
More importantly, the statement about the adequacy of recently adopted rate
increases on the wastewater side seems inconsistent with the statement on page
219, addressing the financing of the planned wastewater upgrades (as required
under a RWQCB Cease & Desist Order): “The next step is determining a funding plan
consisting of some combination of a general fund loan, bonds, and a USDA rural fund
loan etc.”    It would appear, in short, that the current wastewater rates are not
sufficient to fund regulatory required upgrades at the wastewater plant.  The same
would also appear to be true with respect to Water Enterprise capital projects; see
discussion under point 11, addressing the obsolete Meadowood tanks.

5. Page 195:  First sentence.  See comment 4 immediately above.  The sentence
appears to be stating that fund balances and reserves are sufficient to fund longer-
term capital needs, but per page 219 (wastewater) and 211 (water) that does not
appear to be correct.

6. Page 204:  Bell Canyon Reservoir, second paragraph.  As explained in a prior
email to LAFCO, the City’s storage diversion and storage right is 1800AF under
Division of Water Rights Permit 9157 (1952).  Division of Water Rights Permit
14810 (1973) would have increased the City’s diversion and storage right by an
additional 2000AF, bringing the total to 3800AF.  However, the Bell Canyon Dam
was never raised as contemplated in Permit 14810, so that the diversion and
storage right remains at 1800AF.  See page 209, correctly stating that Bell Canyon
Reservoir has a storage [right] capacity of 1800 AF.  (The estimated total capacity of
the Reservoir is around 2350AF.)

7. Page 205:  Second paragraph, under Napa water.  The 2020 annual cost is
approximately $1.5 million ($2500 per AF).  City Finance Staff can provide the
precise annual cost figure.

8. Page 206:  First paragraph under Lower Reservoir; the third sentence reads:
“In 2019, 11 customers pumped water from the reservoir.”  Customers do not pump
from Lower Reservoir (which is fenced in) but from a water station adjacent to RLS
Middle School.

9. Page 206:  Under Emergency Preparedness, after mention of the capped well
on the city-owned Adams Street property, the text continues: “It is unknown what
volume of water might be expected from the well as it is capped.”  The City in fact
tested flow rate of the well in, I believe, 2011, with a written report.  The well’s
productivity was not unknown, at least then.  (My understanding is that the well
was drilled shortly before the City’s purchase in 2000 of the Adams Street property.
The purpose was to support a high price for the property (at that time).)

10. Page 210:  First full sentence states: “The City is in the design phase of
replacing the intake tower.”  My memory is that the intake tower was replaced

Comments on Draft MSR - Alan Galbraith Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 3 

perhaps two years ago (when I was mayor) at considerable cost (more than $1.5 
million).  My recollection is that there was controversy over the final contract 
amount, and the matter was settled.  City staff should verify this information. 
 
11. Page 211: Under Storage Facilities, the statement is made that the City has 
yet to find a funding source to replace the three Meadowood storage tanks.  To be 
clear, the Meadowood tanks are assets of the City’s Water Enterprise, and are so 
listed as among the owned assets of the Enterprise in a formal listing on file with 
State Water Board (State Assigned Nos. T003, T004, T005).  As they are capital 
assets of the Water Enterprise, their replacement cost is a responsibility of Water 
Enterprise ratepayers.   The fact that the City is looking for funding sources not just 
shows that the replacement cost is not sufficient as estimated in the current rate 
base (if included at all) but also indicates that the Water Enterprise does not have 
the capital in the current rate base (after the recent increases) to address an 
immediate and and major (around $500,000 but check with City staff) capital 
improvement need. 
 
12. Page 214:  First full paragraph states that the Public Works Department “set 
aside funds to replace the obsolete redwood tanks that serve the Madrone Knoll 
area and the Meadowood resort.”  See point 11 immediately above.  It seems clear 
that the City has not set aside funds for replacement of the three tanks because it is 
looking for a funding source to replace them.   
 
13. Page 225:  Fourth paragraph under “Relationship with Regional Growth 
Goals and Policies,” third sentence: the word “not” should be “now” in the sentence 
that in the Draft reads: “New water connections to parcels located outside the City’s 
jurisdictional boundary are not prohibited by municipal code, which aligns with 
State legislation and LAFCO policy.”  St. Helena Municipal Code section 13.04.050 H. 
prohibits connections outside City limits except for fire safety.  My understanding is 
that this is a long outstanding prohibition in the City’s water ordinance (going back 
decades) so that the word “now” is also not appropriate. 
 
 You can post or not post these comments as public comment as you see fit.  I 
am copying the St. Helena City Manager (Mark Prestwich), Finance Director (April 
Mitts), and Public Works Director (Erica Smithies).   I am sure they will advise of any 
inaccuracy in the foregoing. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Alan Galbraith 
(Mayor, City of St. Helena, 2014-18) 
 

Comments on Draft MSR - Alan Galbraith Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Saturday, July 25, 2020 

Mr. Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer  
NAPA LAFCO 

AMENDED PUBLIC COMMENT 

It has come to my attention that my Comment 10 in my comment letter of 
July 16, relating to the Intake Tower at Bell Canyon, is mistaken.  In fact, as stated in 
a City-prepared “Capital Improvement Project Updates” dated July 24, 2020, the Bell 
Canyon Intake Tower Replacement (Project W-109) is in the design stage (at 65% 
according to the Update), as was correctly on page 210 of the MSR. 

I would urge your consultants to review the City Staff Report and 
attachments for the Special City Council meeting scheduled for July 30.  The Staff 
memo includes CIP costs for water, wastewater, and storm drain.   The Staff Report 
contains the following concerning sentence:  “Given the scale and projected cost of 
system deficiencies and future needs, it will be necessary to prioritize system 
improvements, as the monetary extent of system needs were not considered in the 
current utility rate structure and likely exceeds the overall ability for City ratepayers 
to absorb these expenses in future rate studies.”  Italics added.  This is directly 
relevant to comments 4, 5, 11, and 12 in my public comment of July 16, 2020. 

I also suggest that your consultants review the slide presentation of Carolla 
Engineers, Inc., which is attachment four to the City Staff Report for the Special City 
Council Meeting of July 30. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Alan Galbraith 
St. Helena Mayor, 2014-18 

Comments on Draft MSR - Alan Galbraith Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: Bruce and Carol Barge <2barges@gmail.com> 
Date: July 17, 2020 at 7:55:26 PM PDT 
To: jennifer@pcateam.com 
Subject: Napa Oaks II 

Hello Jennifer, 
I am submitting the following comments to the Countywide Municipal Service Review in 
which Napa Oaks II was briefly described in its summary and overview. As background 
to these ensuing comments, Napa Oaks II is a neighboring property to our home and as 
such, we are intimately knowledgeable about the proposed development.  

Napa Oaks II 

*Approximately 2.5 acres as part of the 80.63 parcel is located along Casswall Street and has
access/hook-ups to city water. Part of the 2.5 acre parcel consists of an occupied rental home.
The remainder of the property - approximately 78 acres of hillside property has no infrastructure
and would need city water/sewer services installed if it were to be developed.
*Napa Oak would create runoff due to hard surfaces to accommodate the subdivision, such such
driveways, roadways, gutters, sidewalks, etc.
*To mitigate this runoff, the most recent proposal included constructing a six foot high,
approximately half acre holding pond to slow the runoff from the steep hillside during winter
rains and release it slowing into the sewer system. This holding pond was to be located on
Casswall Street, bordering an existing neighborhood. This could potentially threaten existing
homes by breaching during exceptionally wet winters such as we experienced in 2016. It could
also pose a safety hazard for people, pets and wild animals breeching the proposed fencing
surrounding the pond to gain access to it.
*The holding pond would not address the underground water that leeches from the hillside.
Homes located at the base of the hillside experience runoff in their streets, driveways and yards
for weeks after a single rain. For those homes who have basements, residents have installed
sump pumps to drain away the excess runoff to avoid flooding their homes and yards.
*The most recent Napa Oaks EIR determined that more than 500 mature oaks trees would have
to be removed in order to build out the development. These decades, and in some cases,
centuries-old trees support ground stability, prevent runoff and sequester carbon emissions.
*Earthquake faults are located on, and run throughout the property. This could threaten the
proposed new homes and existing homes below the hillside. Burst water/sewer lines that
crisscross the faults and the proposed holding pond below could fail. In a Napa Register updated
article dated August 23, 2019 - "In 2018 new state maps show the locations of the West Napa
Fault and associated faults in greater detail than ever before in such places as western city of
Napa neighborhoods. To the south, the line runs through the hills near Old Sonoma Road that is
the site of the proposed Napa Oaks II subdivision. The project’s environmental impact report
using post-South Napa earthquake research found surface fault rupturing. It calls for having
geological setback zones and in some cases strengthened foundations.”
*Residents of the development would have to “shelter in place” since the hillside is too steep for
a fire truck. Given there is only one ingress/egress for the property, if residents tried to flee, there
could be difficulty leaving the property.This is a very real threat to the lives of these residents,
given the increasing duration and intensity of the fire season we are experiencing in California.

Comments on Draft MSR - Bruce and Carol Barge Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:2barges@gmail.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com


*A Roundabout was proposed at the bottom of the hill on Old Sonoma Road to slow the traffic 
coming down the hill. The U.S. Transportation Department guidelines do not support a 
roundabout on a grade as steep as the entrance to the property 
*In addition to the many concerns about the physical viability of building on the hillside, 
the type of housing proposed does not mitigate the substantial need for affordable and workforce 
housing for the City of Napa. In fact, these proposed homes that would purportedly start in the 
high $800k, increasing to well over a million dollars, do not address the “missing middle” 
housing need. 
*Both the Planning Commission and City Council voted to deny the developer a zoning change 
that would allow for the housing development on the grounds listed above. Not all of which are 
listed. 
*The City of Napa is currently in the midst of their General Plan Update. In this update, Land 
Use Designations are being created and proposed. Currently Napa Oaks II has a land use 
designation identified as RA (Resource Area) for specific parcels that are sensitive in nature. 
Currently, this designation allows for 4 homes to be built on the property. The new land use 
designation proposed for Napa Oaks II is known as Very-Low Density Residential – Primarily 
rural edges of the City. Density range 1.0 to 2.0 units per acre. If allowed to pass, between 78 - 
156 homes could be built on the property. This would substantially increase the strain of water 
and other resources needed to build the development. 
 *During this same General Plan Update, many large and small parcels are being considered for 
housing to meet the needs of its current and future residents. Among these parcels is the 
Ghisletta Property, south of Napa that runs parallel to the 29. Napa Pipe, also south of Napa, 
Stanly Ranch (currently being build out), Big Ranch Road and a myriad of other infill projects.   
 
Thank you, 
Carol 
 
Bruce and Carol Barge 
251 Casswall Street 
Napa, CA  94558 
949-533-6747 

Comments on Draft MSR - Bruce and Carol Barge Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



NapaVision2050.org, PO Box 2385, Yountville, CA 94599 

Water Studies Everywhere - Not A Drop to Drink? 

A comprehensive analysis on Napa County's current situation, 
and a strong recommendation for a better future approach 

by Daniel Mufson, Ph.D. 

Where We Are Now 

Suddenly it appears that water is the topic of study by numerous governmental bodies here in 
Napa. That would seem to imply that people believe that water is important and it needs to be 
cared for. We certainly agree with that premise. When you look at it, no other factor will have 
such a profound influence on what our lives look like in the coming years. Yes, climate change is 
important, and it is especially so on how it will influence our water supplies. 

Let’s take a look at the studies underway. In 2014 the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act became law. The legislative intent is to provide for sustainable management of 
groundwater basins, enhance local management of groundwater, and establish minimum 
standards for sustainable groundwater management.  

The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has asked Napa County to come up with a plan for 
water sustainability in what is termed the Napa subbasin which they have determined is a high 
priority subbasin. 

In late December 2019, the Board of Supervisors declared themselves the Napa County 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GWSA) and just this past week selected 25 members of the 
community to sit on a groundwater advisory committee. This committee has two years to 
develop a plan to ensure the sustainability of our groundwater supplies. 

In Addition, A Task Force Formed 

In September 2019 a group of water managers from the county and the municipalities also 
formed a task force to prepare for and respond to drought. This collaborative planning group 
will develop the following: 

Drought Contingency Plans: How will we recognize the next drought in the early stages?   How 
will drought affect us? How can we protect ourselves from the next drought? 

Comments on Draft MSR - Dan Mufson Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 

NapaVision2050.org, PO Box 2385, Yountville, CA 94599 
 

Drought Resiliency Projects: Drought Resiliency is defined as the capacity of a region to cope 
with and respond to drought.  The US Bureau of Reclamation provides grant assistance for 
drought resiliency projects identified in a DCP. 

The area that they will study is larger than the study area of the GWSA as it will encompass the 
following critical sources and users: 

• The Napa River watershed which drains into the northern edge of San Pablo Bay and 
includes an area of 430 square miles 

• Urban and residential areas, extensive vineyards and agriculture, and diverse 
environmental habitats 

• Water users in the area rely on a mixture of water supplies that include local surface 
water, imported surface water, groundwater, and recycled water 

Let’s focus on that last point that describes from where we get our water. If you live in the 
municipalities your water comes from reservoirs (surface water) and from the State/Sierras via 
the North Bay Aqueduct (imported surface water). In fact, more than half of Napa City’s water 
comes from the state. 

If you live in rural Napa County your water likely comes from a well (groundwater). Agriculture 
uses groundwater and some surface water from the Napa River. 

The county has set aside the groundwater for agriculture as stated in the General Plan Goal 
CON-Reg 11: “Prioritize the use of available groundwater for agricultural and rural residential 
uses rather than for urbanized areas and ensure that land-use decisions recognize the long-
term availability and value of water resources in Napa County.”  

There are some known water-deficient areas in the county such as the MST (Milliken-Sarco- 
Tulucay) where the county has placed limits on development and has encouraged the use of 
recycled water for irrigation. 

The Problems and The Big Questions 

The big issue is how much water will be available for use by residences, industrial, agricultural, 
and environmental uses in the coming years? The state has issued numerous reports on water 
security i.e., “Safeguarding California Implementation Action Plans 2016” to ensure that 
people and communities are able to withstand the impacts of climate disruption: 

• Loss of snow-pack storage may reduce the reliability of surface water supplies and result 
in greater demand on other sources of supply”. 

• “As climate change reduces water supplies and increases water demands (as a result of 
higher temperatures), additional stresses are being placed on the Delta and other 
estuaries along the California coastline.” 

Comments on Draft MSR - Dan Mufson Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 

NapaVision2050.org, PO Box 2385, Yountville, CA 94599 
 

• “Each local water agency will have to contend with impacts to their local watershed, as 
well as upstream and downstream watersheds that influence local water supply or 
water quality constraints.” 

With 80% of Napa residents living in the cities, what is the master plan to supply them with 
water when the state water project is no longer able to deliver and the reservoirs are 
compromised by drought and/or polluting runoff?  

The Problem We Collectively Must Solve 

How much water from all sources will be available and who gets to have it? We can study this 
to death; we can hire consultant engineering firms and pay them to develop numerous 
scenarios but we think we all truly know that the earth is warming, fire dangers are increasing, 
the weather is changing dramatically and therefore we ought to focus on planning for the 
worst-case. 

In 2017 Napa Vision 2050 stated in a letter to the DWR that if all users of water in Napa County 
were to need to rely solely upon the groundwater we would be in an unsustainable situation. 
We still believe this to be the case. 

Going Forward: A Clear, Consolidated Approach vs a Fractured System  

Within the past month, LAFCO (our Local Agency Formation Commission) issued a most 
comprehensive draft report, “Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Services 
Review” (May 18, 2020).  The report thoroughly covers the history and operation of the many 
water service providers with recommendations regarding their administration and operation. 

It is of great significance that this report introduced the concept of a county water agency 
and/or a countywide county water district. Benefits to forming such a county water district 
include: 

• Efficient use of the County’s water resources 
• Enhanced water resource management 
• Solidarity amongst Napa water purveyors with greater leveraging power 
• Greater scrutiny of all utility providers 
• Enhanced technical and operational support for local providers 
• Elimination of redundancies and duplication of efforts amongst the smaller systems 
• Improved economies of scale. 

Unlike the other two study groups mentioned above that cover a portion of the county’s 
water supply e.g. Napa County Groundwater Sustainability Agency-covers the Napa Valley 
subbasin (and just groundwater); Drought Contingency Plan Task Force-covers the watershed 
(with multiple sources of water), 

Comments on Draft MSR - Dan Mufson Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 

NapaVision2050.org, PO Box 2385, Yountville, CA 94599 
 

LAFCO suggests an alternative governance structure, an agency that will cover the entire 
county. We think that LAFCO gets it right and we recommend that the Ground Water 
Sustainability Agency and the Drought Contingency Task Force come up with a format so that 
their work product will be a plan for all of Napa’s water users to share the diminishing supply 
that belongs to the commons and will meet the human right to water. 

 

 

Comments on Draft MSR - Dan Mufson Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: Eve Kahn <evekahn@yahoo.com> 
Date: July 18, 2020 at 4:21:57 PM PDT 
To: "jennifer@pcateam.com" <jennifer@pcateam.com> 
Subject: Napa LAFCO Countywide MSR 
Reply-To: Eve Kahn <evekahn@yahoo.com> 

Many thanks for consolidating the relevant information from all the cities/town and various 
water districts. 

I was happy that Jay Gardner owner of the Meyers Water Company [that serves 100 homes at the 
South edge Napa alongside the Napa River] spoke of his challenges and issues.  He seemed very 
interested in joining in a countywide agency/district that could provide stability for this small, 
isolated community.  There are 10 other private water companies listed on page 14.  I don't know 
if they have any interest in joining a larger, comprehensive water district/water agency - but this 
should be explored. 

I spoke at the workshop of the importance of including surface and groundwater in a broader 
picture of Napa County's water supplies and water stability - and want to reinforce the comments 
made on page 44 regarding the need for County of Napa trucked water policies (referenced 
below.)  Sadly, the County approves development on parcels with constrained water availability 
and often supports the use of trucked water as an option for business sustainability. 

The County's Conservation Regulations clearly state that the priority use for groundwater is 
agriculture and rural residential.  In essence, cities are to use surface water, unincorporated users 
are to rely upon groundwater. But when potable water is used to sustain agricultural operations 
(vineyards or winery operations) in non-emergency situations, the lines are blurred between rural 
and urban uses.  When looked at from a broader perspective questions like "Should the cities 
have access to groundwater in a severe emergency?" can be addressed.  

Many thanks,  Eve Kahn 
Alternate Napa Public LAFCO Commissioner  

Six agencies make water available at truck filling stations for use outside of the agency’s 
boundaries. Based on the exceptions outlined for Government Code §56133 for nonpotable or 
nontreated water or the provision of surplus water to agricultural lands and facilities, these 
agencies are not required to seek LAFCO approval to provide this service outside of 
jurisdictional bounds. However, provision of trucked water without limitations has the potential 
to promote development and growth in unincorporated areas where water supply is not 
sustainable and may adversely affect agricultural uses. Of the six providers that make water 
available for hauling, only Napa Sanitation District has adopted policies that clearly define the 
priority of use of trucked water. It is recommended that approved uses and locations for 
trucking of water be defined in each City’s municipal code. In addition, the County should 
establish policy for approved uses and locations of transported water to manage the use of 
trucked water in the unincorporated areas.  

Comments on Draft MSR - Eve Kahn Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:evekahn@yahoo.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:evekahn@yahoo.com


On Jul 13, 2020, at 12:56 AM, <franzi@sonic.net> <franzi@sonic.net> wrote: 

Hello Jennifer Stephenson and Brendon Freeman 
This comment is written for the water wastewater workshop 
Living in Berryessa Estates is been a challenge for many of us, due to the rising water/sewer bill. 
Our community is considered a low income community. Napa supervisors receiving millions of grant 
money because of this.  
Money that was given to them to help our community. Not one cent of it was spent to do just that. 
At the contrary the Napa supervisors spending all of it to fix a neglected water sewer system that out 
community cannot afford to maintain. 
The Napa supervisors are well aware of this situation that more and more of us are loosing their homes 
because they can’t afford to pay the water bill. 
I pay @ $600 per month for water/sewer charges. 

Francis 

Comments on Draft MSR - Francis Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:franzi@sonic.net
mailto:franzi@sonic.net


From: Geoff Ellsworth <GEllsworth@cityofsthelena.org> 
Sent: Monday, July 20, 2020 4:53 PM 
To: Freeman, Brendon <bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov> 
Subject: On LAFCO MSR 

These are a few comments from myself individually as Mayor of the City of St. Helena, not 
attached to the comments submitted by the City of St.Helena/St.Helena City Council. 
I very much appreciate this work and the included documents. 
I believe cross-referencing this work with the documents from the current Napa County 
GSA/GSPAC work, as well as the Napa County Drought Contingency Plan, will give an 
important and insightful overview to our countywide water management. 
I also think it important to recognize in the conversation the hydrogeological 
interconnectedness of surface water and groundwater. 

Thank you, 
Geoff Ellsworth 
Mayor- St. Helena 

Comments on Draft MSR - Geoff Ellsworth Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:GEllsworth@cityofsthelena.org
mailto:bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov


INSTITUTE FOR CONSERVATION ADVOCACY RESEARCH AND EDUCATION

PO BOX 4256


NAPA, CA. 94558

cmalan1earth@gmail.com


icarenapa.org

707.322.8677


The Institute for Conservation Advocacy Research & Education, (ICARE) established in 2004, is a non profit community-based organization 
located in Napa County, California. ICARE's mission is to restore and conserve the biological integrity and ecosystems health of watersheds, the 

Napa River estuary and the greater San Francisco Bay Area through science-based advocacy, research and education. 

July 19, 2020 

Napa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Jennifer Stephenson, Primary Consultant 
Policy Consulting Associates, LLC. and Berkson Associates jennifer@pcateam.com 

Re: Comments on the Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review, 
Public Review Draft, and Public Comment 

Ms. Stephenson, Commissioners; 

Below are the comments of the Institute for Conservation, Advocacy, Research and Educa-
tion (“ICARE”). 

Chapter 1. 
Page 5, item 2: We recommend that any/all data information collected by agencies is not 
only readily available in a format that is easily interpretable, but completely public and are 
requesting written assurance that this will be the case. 
Page 6, item 6: We recommend that any/all reporting requirements are also readily available 
and accessible to the public, and also request written assurance that this will be the case. 

Chapter 3. 
Page 17, item 7: It should be noted that the trend for greater urgency in developing ground-
water storage and banking is not without controversy  due to: 

• the potential for mismanagement-powerful agricultural pumpers of groundwater are dis-
proportionally positioned to take groundwater (drill deeper; pump harder and longer)  for

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

http://icarenapa.org


	
their economic gain at the disadvantage of other users of groundwater such as rural resi-
dential or disadvantaged communities living off wells.

•  concerns over ownership and privatization of this public trust resource,  groundwater, and 
how this will harm disadvantaged communities

• adverse environmental impacts aka in the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act as,  
undesirable results: degraded surface and groundwater quality, salt water intrusion, de-wa-
tered streams, land subsidence, dry wells and dropping groundwater elevations.

Page 24: The statement that “there are currently no Napa County water bodies on the Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency/EPA’s  303(d) list of impaired waters” is incorrect. The Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency/EPA must list according  Clean Water Act/CWA all waterbod-
ies such as rivers, lakes and streams on the 303(d) list for development of programs to ad-
dress the pollutant that is causing the listing so as to reduce the pollution. Napa County has 
several waterbodies listed on the 303(d) list: James Creek, Kimball Creek, Napa River, Lake 
Berryessa, Suisun Creek, and Ledgewood Creek.

For example:

The Napa River watershed is considered a biological ‘hot spot’ on the planet. In the Bear 
Creek tributary alone there is higher biodiversity (richness and distribution) of aquatic in-
sects than in old growth forests which ICARE discovered in 2000-2006 after taxonomy of 
benthic macro-invertebrate/BMI, aquatic insects, sampling results. BMI are like the canary 
in the mine, as they are excellent water quality indicators.  In the study of ichthyology, lead-
ing scientist are astounded, given the land use pressures in Napa County to convert natural 
habitats to monoculture wine grapes, that there is an amazing assemblage of intact commu-
nities of 16 native fish such as: steelhead, fall run Chinook, Pacific and river lamprey, hard-
head, hitch, tule perch and Sacramento split tail. This rare Napa River community of fish 
assemblage is not seen throughout the Central Valley nor the Sierra streams, yet this assem-
blage is threatened more each year as more and more warm water species are taking over 
much of the Napa River watershed due to riparian area losses, habitat degradation and  
plummeting water quality.

2

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



	
There are three vegetation communities that provide the food and energy to this rich Napa 
River ecosystem: the coastal temperate rain forest to the west, the shrub/chaparrals and oak 
woodlands to the east. Historical ecology mapping proved that the valley floor historically 
was a mosaic of tidal marsh, fresh water marsh, vernal pools, lakes and numerous wetlands as 
the River flowed 55 miles south from the headwaters at Mt. St. Helena to the confluence of 
the Carquinez Straits comprising 426 square miles of a past flourishing and rich aquatic eco-
system.

The Napa River is the second major source of fresh water flows and biomass to the San 
Francisco Bay. This Bay estuary supports world wide commerce, recreation, beauty and most 
of all it is a vital aquatic ecosystem that supports the life cycle of important fish such as 
salmonids. 

Coho salmon first rang the alarm bell for declining health of the Napa River when they were 
extirpated from this watershed in 1960 where once their numbers were 2-4,000. Coho are 
sensitive to temperature and water quality declines. As recently as 1940 Chinook had a de-
cent run. Steelhead migrations were in the 6-8,000 fish but now only a few hundred Chi-
nook and Steelhead successfully spawn. California Fresh Water Shrimp are still spotted in 
the upper reaches of the Napa River around Garnett Creek and Sulphur Creek had spotting 
in the early 2000, but their range has been significantly diminished due to habitat en-
croachment and degradation.

The Napa River is suffering rapid declining health due to pollution and over extraction of 
water for the development of vineyards and wineries. Flows have been diminishing since 
1950 such that more than 1/2 of the streams now run dry during the warm months as vine-
yards vigorously pump groundwater and surface water for vines. Steelhead struggle for clean 
flowing water, as groundwater dependent ecosystems are in peril due to a steadily dropping 
groundwater levels throughout the Napa Valley. 

The federal CWA, requires that all water bodies be listed as polluted if pollutants reach a 
numeric end point set by the State Regional Water Quality Control Boards (aka Water 
Boards) and know as Total Maximum Daily Load/TMDL.  This is a powerful environmental 
law that citizens can use to force polluters to conform to limits of pollutants discharged to 
the waters of the State. The San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board/SFBR-
WQCB must develop an implementation plan to reduce any pollutant listed for the Napa 
River.

In 1988, the EPA along with the SFBRWQCB listed the Napa River for nutrient enrichment 
and again in 2016 for the tidal portion of the River.  Nutrients from agricultural fertilizers 
flow off vineyards into the streams and the Napa River creating a super abundance of food 
for naturally occurring algae.  With this huge supply of nutrients way beyond the natural nu-
trient levels supplied by nature, massive algae blooms occur. These algae blooms deplete 
oxygen in the water and can suddenly with little warning can form neurotoxins, which 

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



	
may cause mortality to aquatic and terrestrial animals (including humans) that may drink it. 
Also, accelerated algae blooms, deplete oxygen from the water, causing additional mortality . 
Since 1988 hazardous and nuisance algae blooms have been occurring  in Napa County water 
bodies  wreaking havoc on municipal water supplies and postings to stay out of the water.  
In May of 2020 Lake Berryessa, eastern Napa County, reported a toxic algae bloom along 
with other reports on the western coastline of 17 sea lions stranded, ill and dying due to tox-
ic algae which originated from nutrient (runoff from fertilizer) enrichment from the rivers 
and streams that flow into the Bay and then the ocean. Sometimes these harmful algae 
blooms of the ocean are known as the red tide. Outdated wastewater treatment plants (St. 
Helena and Calistoga, sewer reclamation)  contribute  significantly to the nutrient enrich-
ment problem of the Napa River, Bay and ocean due to outdated infrastructure and broken 
pipes. In 2005, Lake Hennessy was plagued with harmful algae bloom and the City of Napa 
treated the lake with copper sulfate, in violation of the SFBRWQCB’s Basin Plan for the 
San Francisco Bay. This warranted fines and a potential lawsuit was filed but was settled 
when the City of Napa agreed not to use copper sulfate in the future. 

Current daily monitoring of harmful algae blooms state wide, by the State’s Regional Water 
Boards,  shows that all the Reservoirs in Napa are at risk of harmful algae blooms. 

The San Francisco Bay is now at risk of high nutrient enrichment designated by the EPA in 
2015, thereby putting a highly valued estuary in harms way of toxic algae blooms.

Also, the Napa River became listed on the 303(d) CWA list for sediment in 1990 where the 
major land use is converting thousands of acres/year from natural vegetation to vineyards. 
This conversion of natural vegetation, largely  to a monoculture of wine row crops on steep 
slops causes up to 256 tons/acre/year to erode into the Napa River hence San Francisco Bay 
destroying fish habitat along the way, warming the water and obstructing navigation for ves-
sels. This is in comparison to natural background erosion of 3-6 tons/acre/year in pristine 
forests. Only recently, did the SFBRWQCB begin to regulate sediment pollution.

Additionally, in 2006 the SFRWQCB finally implemented a pathogen TMDL  after 60 years 
of highly elevated harmful bacteria like, E-Coli and fecal Coliform, were repeatedly detected 
throughout the Napa River watershed since 1960. In 2017, monitoring shows that the Napa 
River still has high levels of harmful bacteria after 11 years of regulations of pathogens. 

Land uses such as past mining, logging, landfills, urbanization, sewer plants and wineries 
continue to discharge pollutants to the near-by streams hence the Napa River to the San 
Francisco Bay Estuary.  The discharge of pollutants  from these land uses while they must 
comply with the Clean Water Act, with numeric limits of pollution permitted by regulatory 
agencies that issue permits to pollute, there are new TMDL listings such as in 2018 the 
Napa River was newly listed for: PCBs, legacy pesticides and mercury.
4

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



	
To date, the Napa River watershed continues to be impacted by serious water quality issues 
putting our public water supply at extreme risk. Over extraction of surface and ground water 
intensifies this pollution as contaminants are then in higher concentration as the amount of 
water in the watershed depletes due to over extraction of groundwater and too many pump-
ing allocations of surface water. Combine this with climate change where droughts become 
more frequent and prolonged, our fresh water supply is in peril.

LAFCO would be remiss not to take a deep dive into the water quality problems and lack of 
availability of fresh water supply locally.
 
Page 33: While unincorporated areas of Napa County rely principally on groundwater re-
sources and surface water collection and incorporated areas typically rely on local reservoirs 
and regional water providers, we recommend that all agencies using reservoirs behind dams 
for water supply are in regulatory compliance in their public trust duties to bypass for fish 
and wildlife pursuant to California Fish and Game Code Section 5937; if not, these dams 
remain vulnerable to litigation, whose expense should be anticipated and prepared in their 
respective plans and budgets. If municipalities became compliant with 5937, less water would 
be available for future development. The water is NOT all for agricultural pumpers and mu-
nicipalities, as the streams must be healthy for fishing, swimming and recreation as dictated 
by the Public Trust Doctrine.

Page 51: An additional challenge to reorganization are those dams deemed risky and there-
fore, unsafe, by California's Division of Safety of Dams, as any updating and/or failure would 
affect rates, such as Milliken Dam at risk of failure due to stress fractures at the face of the 
dam, whereby Napa City Public Works signed an engineering contract with the Division of 
Dams and Safety several years ago to reduce the surface elevation of stored water behind the 
dam to try to lessen the stress on the cement surface of the dam. It has been determined by 
Division of Dams and Safety  engineers that Milliken Dam could fail given an 8 Richter 
scale earthquake. This dam is on the ‘watch list’ of the State due to it’s degraded condition. 

Chapter 5. 
Page 126: Correction: “The City of Calistoga's water system has grown from a small munici-
pal reservoir in Feige Canyon in the first half of the century...”. The year was 1918, and the 
first half of the former century.

Page 127: Although Kimball Dam is categorized as a high-risk dam with high downstream 
hazards, a second, city owned and operated dam has not been included in this review: Feige 
Dam on Cyrus Creek is out of compliance with CFGC Section 5937 and remains vulnerable 
to litigation.

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



	
Page 133: The statement that, “Similar to the water system, most of the wastewater cus-
tomers are residential” needs clarification. A large volume of used geothermal water utilized 
by municipal spas flows into the the City of Calistoga's Dunaweal Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. The method by which each spa's input has been calculated needs to be specified, i.e., 
whether one spa considered a single customer and single connection, whether customers/
connections calculated by the number of rooms, etc. 

Page 134: The statement that “Inputs to the sewer system are mainly domestic in origin and 
include residences, hotels, and geothermal spas” needs additional clarification as well since 
as restaurants, micro-breweries, and mineral water bottling companies that also discharge to 
the sanitary system are considered commercial in the review. Please clarify how commercial 
spas and hotels are considered residential. 

Page 135: Correction: Following tertiary treatment, effluent from the Dunaweal WWTP is 
permitted to be discharged to the Napa River from Nov. 1 – June 15, and not Oct 1. – May 15. 
(Page 124 records the dates correctly.)

Pages 137 & 141: Correction: The dates of the Cease and Desist Orders (CDO) were 2010 
and 2014, and were related to resolving effluent discharge requirements because of inade-
quate dilution to the Napa River and non-compliance with antimony, dichlorobro-
momethane, chlorobromomethane, and BOD limits. 

Chapter 7. 
Page 203: We inquired with the City of St. Helena for the distance from the Stonebridge 
Wells to Napa River, but did not receive benefit of an answer to our request.

ICARE has seen de-watering of the Napa River at the site of the St. Helena groundwater 
wells which are located near the riparian area of the Napa River. This is considered an unde-
sirable results of excessive groundwater pumping according to the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act/SGMA which must be identified and regulations implemented to stop 
over pumping. When regulations are implemented by the newly formed Groundwater Sus-
tainable Agency, St. Helena will need to reduce their groundwater pumping and be sustain-
able for future generations.

6

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



	
 
Page 205: We also requested the distance from a third well cited as being near the Napa Riv-
er, but did not receive benefit of a reply.

Page 207: Of the City of St. Helena's 268 commercial water supply connections, please clari-
fy how each inn, hotel, and other lodging facility are accounted for.

213: We inquired with the City of St. Helena as to the specifics of contaminants impairing 
the Stonebridge Wells originating with the sewer collection system, but did not receive ben-
efit of a response.

216: We requested the communications from the State of California that support a Mead-
owood resort connection to the City's wastewater treatment system, but did not receive the 
benefit of a response.  Because the Napa River continues to be impaired due to pathogens 
since 2006, it is the opinion of ICARE that the City of St. Helena should initiate a ban on  
new sewer connections to their wastewater treatment system. The ban should include 
Meadowood resort, until the wastewater treatment plant and other wastewater in-
frastructure upgrades and improvements are completed and approved by the SFBRWQCB. 
The City must demonstrated that their wastewater treatment systems are adequate so the 
public can be assured that future violations will not occur. 

7

Comments on Draft MSR - ICARE Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: Leon Brauning <leon.brauning@yahoo.com> 
Date: July 12, 2020 at 10:49:56 AM PDT 
To: "jennifer@pcateam.com" <jennifer@pcateam.com> 
Subject: Napa Water agencies 
Reply-To: Leon Brauning <leon.brauning@yahoo.com> 

Dear Ms. Stephenson: 

As a citizen of Napa County for the past 40 years and a resident of the city of Napa for 
25 of those years, I oppose any cooperative organization of municipal facilities that 
includes the city of American Canyon. 

According to local news media articles over the years American Canyon has never 
seemed to have had adequate water, sewage disposal, schools, or traffic controls for its 
own town and citizens.  But, they have kept building houses and growing businesses 
and industry for the past 25 years in the city as if they had an unlimited supply of 
facilities.  Now they have approved the Watson Ranch housing development of 
approximately 1,200 new homes while the water supply and all other infrastructure 
seem tenuous.  

Because of these issues I can’t perceive what facilities American Canyon has to offer to 
this new county organization.  

Respectfully, 

Leon Brauning 
(707)227-2812 (phone/text)

Comments on Draft MSR - Leon Brauning Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:leon.brauning@yahoo.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:leon.brauning@yahoo.com


From: "mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com" <mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com> 
Subject: Napa County Water & Waste Water Study 
Date: July 13, 2020 at 5:19:28 AM PDT 
To: "jennifer@pcateam.com" <jennifer@pcateam.com> 
Reply-To: "mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com" <mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com> 

Hello Jennifer, 
I am a homeowner in Berryessa Estates, LBRID is our water provider. The quality of our water 
is so bad that I have not been able to drink it since I moved here July 2019. I have received two 
notices from LBRID in the past few months about our drinking waters high levels of 
Trihalomethanes above drinking water standards.....but supposedly it is "safe" to drink. Our 
water tastes like dirt or algae with a noticeable smell. I am billed $600 every 2 months for water I 
can't drink and have reservations bathing in and giving to my animals. I realize the payments are 
this high due to the small amount of residents to spread it over, but for that amount of money the 
residents should be able to have CLEAN and SAFE water to drink for themselves and their 
animals.  
I believe this is a problem that needs to be solved for our communities well being and health. 
Thank you, 
Mary O'Brien 
Berryessa Estates 

Comments on Draft MSR - Mary O'Brien Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com
mailto:mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com
mailto:mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com


 

Comments on Draft MSR - Mary O'Brien Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



 
 

Comments on Draft MSR - Mary O'Brien Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



From: Patricia Damery <damery17@icloud.com> 
Subject: LAFCO Public Workshop, Public comment 
Date: June 28, 2020 at 3:14:49 PM PDT 
To: jennifer@pcateam.com 

Dear LAFCO, 

First, your suggestion of the formation of a county agency coordinating water security in Napa 
County is a critically important move as we face climate disruption and the real possibility of 
losing the water of the North Bay Aqueduct. I am in full support of coordinating the efforts of 
the forming Groundwater Sustainability Agency with the Drought Contingency Task Force, and 
troubleshooting in advance various emergency scenarios.  

I want to address the issue of trucked-in water. Around our ranch, we’ve observed that water is 
being trucked regularly to many customers on Redwood and Dry Creek Roads. 

In recent years, as more wells have been drilled, our well, once performing at about 40 gallons 
per minute, is, at best, 1.5 gallons per minute. On Redwood Road, after a neighbor drilled eight 
wells to supply a winery , several residents’ wells have gone dry and they are now forced to 
truck water because they cannot afford to drill another well.  

Still, vineyards and wineries are being permitted by the Napa Board of Supervisors and Planning 
Commission. These are properties with multiple, low-performing wells, approved, despite the 
fact that hydrologists have warned that additional newly drilled wells are almost certainly 
affecting other established Redwood Road wells and Redwood Creek flow. 

When trucked water is not taken into consideration, a skewed perspective on water availability is 
perpetrated. Trucked water from Napa City is a source of revenue for the City, but in the event of 
severe drought and the possibility that the North Bay aqueduct does not deliver the water the 
municipalities in Napa County depend upon, the trucked water to these rural residences will also 
dry up. 

Napa County does not require vineyards, wineries, or any businesses it permits, to live within the 
resources (water, sewage, etc) of the parcel share it is located. It does not require transparency of 
water usage via internet postings. Most importantly, transparency of trucked water usage is an 
essential piece of any resource evaluation of the property and parcel: Trucked water is an 
Indicator and an enabler of water overuse and the depletion of an area’s resources.  

Consider the following points: 

Comments on Draft MSR - Patricia Damery Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:damery17@icloud.com
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com


 

• •      1. Groundwater is a public resource, and is not under the ownership of the parcel 
owner. It is a finite resource that must be shared, maintaining the viability of all parcels 
and permits using the same public resource. The county and the GSA must prioritize care 
of the water tables in the upstream of the water basin. The state of the hillside aquifers is 
a leading indicator of the health of the basin. If water sources upstream are sucked dry, 
that water basin is in trouble. 

•  
•      Assessing and documenting the quantity of trucked water is critical knowledge. 

Trucking of water creates a false sense of abundance and adequacy. Water trucking is 
covering up the emergency that is already at hand. To the county, it looks like all is well 
because the city is supplying the water that is trucked. When the city has an emergency, 
the greater problem will be exposed. 

o  
•      This is a social justice issue. Many of the residents whose wells run dry and are forced 

into hauling water are often long time, older residents. They have been impacted by the 
excessive drilling of new wells near them and they cannot afford to another deeper well. 
Continued development in the hillsides means more wells drilled and more water 
extracted leading to two things: The neighbors adjacent to the developments are left high 
and dry, and the flow to the basin, where all those corporate straws are stuck, will also get 
depleted. We’re already experiencing loss of water and hardship in the hillsides, as the 
county allows more and more vineyard, winery and large home developments. 

•  
•       A county agency or department (such as what LAFCO has suggested) could and 

should monitor trucking of water. We also need our Board of Supervisors (who have 
appointed themselves as the members of the GSA) to direct the Planning Commission to 
consider the overall cumulative impacts of more drilling and water usage on the larger 
area in permitting and intensifying use of water before we end up in a position in which 
rural and municipal faucets are fighting with agricultural driplines. We are approaching 
that point now. 

 

A quote from L.A. Times Journalist Mark Arax says it all.  “All that pumping requires deep 
pocket. The small farmer who can’t afford to keep chasing groundwater falls by the wayside. 
….Water isn’t the equalizer that the state and federal projects promised. Water is the means by 
which the valley has become one of the most unequal places on earth.” He was speaking of the 
Central Valley, but this applies increasingly to Napa County as well.  
 
Patricia Damery 
 

Comments on Draft MSR - Patricia Damery Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



Notes on the LAFCO report. 
Roland Dumas, Ph.D.1 

The nature of the report 
These notes are in reference to The Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal 
Service Review, Public Review Draft, dated May 18, 2020. 

This LAFCO report is an audit. As such, it compares practices and performance of the various 
agencies against standards, regulations, and charters. It does this extremely well, impressively 
well as far as I can tell.  

I was particularly impressed at the discussion of climate variability and change. The authors 
highlighted areas of uncertainty and the trends toward water availability being ‘front loaded’ in 
the season, as well as the correlation between state water supply and local sources. They went 
beyond the mission of an audit to point at these important factors in projecting water supplies.  

Please add, request, challenge 
My strong suggestion is that the document be expanded to address critical scenarios that are 
increasing in probability. The report is clear that climate change will impact water availability, 
and that we face increasing demand and less predictable supply, but it needs to go into 
scenarios in which the water supply is dramatically changed in a short period of time. LAFCo 
should either explore the scenarios or challenge the county agencies to develop and plan for 
them. We cannot be secure with agencies that are fulfilling their charters, but collectively 
unprepared for a future that looks nothing like its history. We cannot be secure if the most 
challenging recommendation is to consolidate water agencies into a county-wide agency. We 
need to plan for two classes of inevitable scenarios. 

Uncertainty, improbability, and inevitable surprises 
Seismologists like to say the improbable is inevitable. It is improbable that there will be an 
earthquake on the west coast that registers a 9 and causes historic damage. It’s improbable on 
a year-by-year basis, that is. We also know that it is inevitable over a longer time frame. It could 
happen tomorrow or 40 years from now, but It’s going to happen. We put it out of mind and 
out of planning, because in short time frames, it’s pretty unlikely. We do code and build for 
earthquakes that register 5 and 6, because they are frequent enough that they are in our 
awareness. There is a class of events and conditions that we know will occur with some 
certainty, but effectively ignore. We have not planned for the combinations of events that lurk 

1 3068 Soscol Ave, Napa CA 94558. radumas@servqual.com 415-412-9300 

Comments on Draft MSR - Roland Dumas Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

mailto:radumas@servqual.com


in the future, particularly events that have some correlation. That is, they are likely to occur in 
the same time period because they have common causes.  

By way of example, let’s start with the current situation, a pandemic. We’ll set aside civil unrest 
for the moment and just consider the pandemic. We have (or had) frameworks and standards 
for addressing pandemics. We had early warning data gathering and analysis. We had protocols 
for responding and minimizing the social, health, and economic impact while vaccines are 
developed. We had communication protocols that were designed to be highly credible and gain 
high compliance. It was all in place and tested. We had trained people in place all across the 
country. Those practices, processes, and systems have been effective in recent times, even.  

What did we not take into consideration? The breakdown in our own government. The plans 
didn’t take into consideration that our own government would oppose and politicize science 
and health and fail to execute its own plans – actively fail by interfering with the process. Our 
planning didn’t consider that we would take out scientists closest to the outbreak. We didn’t 
plan on the failure being us.  

An audit of the pandemic response processes would have come up as A+. In practice, it is a 
contentious D. We did not have plans for the correlation of pandemic and a failure of major 
political institutions.  

When we look at the water report, there are failure scenarios within the information provided, 
and others that include factors that come in like asteroids from the outside. The A audit could 
easily become an F in execution with some improbable – and inevitable – scenarios.  

Failures within the study’s information 
The report reflects the influences on water input: weather. It notes the La Niña and el Niño 
influences and global warming. It lists qualitative impacts of climate change (P16-17), but not a 
projection or estimate of the quantitative impact or the trends. I know it’s risky to put numbers 
to things, particularly when they are not extrapolations from current patterns, but give it a 
shot. It could say that in the event of a drought, which has probability of x and going toward y, 
the state water will dry up and local supply will decrease by 25% and be front loaded in the 
season. They could speculate the conditions in which the state will turn off the spigot and show 
the probability of those conditions over time. They can include scenarios with probability 
ranges.  

Suggestion: lay out some scenarios. This document gives the elements of scenarios, but 
doesn’t built them.  

For instance, a scenario might be that state water spigot is turned off completely and local 
supply is off by 50%. What happens in that scenario? 

What about a scenario in which the front loading of water is so strong that it breaks parts of the 
infrastructure, and then severe drought sets in? 

Look at some extreme cases with multiple failures and then play out how it impacts each 
stakeholder, including watersheds and fire responses. Such scenarios will impact each 

Comments on Draft MSR - Roland Dumas Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



municipality differently, and cause conflicts between stakeholders. Commons problems will 
occur. We should look for and plan for them, and consider what principles are at play.  

Failures due to asteroids and other exogenous influences 
Ok, asteroids are really extremely improbable, and would represent a game-over scenario, but 
there are scenarios that are just over the horizon, or perhaps lurking in that dark closet. They 
are not meteorological, hydrologic, etc. They may be in plain sight, but out of the perview of 
assessments.  

The pandemic is an example, and should be considered a warning shot that a stressed process 
can become vulnerable to a failure in another system, or even trigger a failure in another 
system. Influences outside of the traditional modeling domain can exert sudden and dramatic 
influence on the capability of our systems. Human systems are not easily predicted, because 
humans are irrational. Political force exerted by economic interests can drive suboptimal 
decisions.  

A prime example is seismic events. Earthquakes can damage infrastructure at moments when 
integrity of the infrastructure is critical. When I was young, a minor seismic fault with a series of 
minor quakes caused a municipal dam to fail and wash out a section of a neighborhood. I’m 
always conscious of what’s built on fault lines.  

Political events and trends are also a category of exogenous influences that can occur rapidly. 
Whether it is southern California laying a claim on delta water or a failure of the county’s 
political system2 to allow discussion of critical analyses, there are failure modes in systems that 
are not hydrologic that will impact our preparedness for water events.  

Failures due to political constraints on knowledge are also a distinct possibility. Before the 
current pandemic, we couldn’t imagine such a scenario, but we are now experiencing that force 
being a multiplier of the damage.  

The county has an analogous political constraint, to wit: 

The county has just established a Groundwater Sustainability Agency, after a contentious fight 
with the state Department of Water Resources. The first move of the county elected officials 
was to appoint themselves as the GSA, making the Agency a political body in one stroke, 
beholding to the political and economic interests that the elected officials represent. The 
elected politicians then were required to appoint an advisory board. They selected 
representatives from various water interests, but selected by the politicians, so the most 
aligned with the political interests that the supervisors could do with the applicant pool. The 
county supervisors, operating as the GSA, passed an “anti-lobbying” rule that prohibits advisors 
from communicating freely, thereby constraining knowledge.  

                                                        
2 Of course, the GSA is not capable of discussing failures of elected political systems because the GSA is inhabited 
by the country board of supervisors, and therefore less interested in discussing their own blind spots, political 
dependencies, or objectivity.  

 

Comments on Draft MSR - Roland Dumas Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two



The county officials had previously suppressed inquiry and discussion of modeling methods; the 
inquiry that was suppressed was how the modeling addressed the compound effect of multiple 
influences that had not been experienced before. That is, inquiry was suppressed into 
Improbable and inevitable scenarios.  

The LAFCo report needs to surface forces and issues like these that can have a material impact 
on planning for inevitable surprises3.  

The request: offer or request 
LAFCO should challenge the county to discover and address classes of events that represent 
interactions of forces within the agency responsibility and those from outside those 
responsibilities.  

LAFCO should lay out the need for scenario planning using the “edge cases” for various 
contributors to water availability. LAFCO might list some ‘starter’ scenarios that should be 
considered and anticipated. A strong recommendation should be made to use the services of a 
qualified scenario planning consultant along with the traditional water-focused resources. The 
Global Business Network was the spin-off of SRI that was the home of scenario planning 
expertise. It has been acquired by a large consulting firm and many of the primary consultants 
spun off; they are easily found. (https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Global_Business_Network) 

                                                        
3 Schwartz, Peter. Inevitable Surprises. 2003, Gotham. New York.  

Comments on Draft MSR - Roland Dumas Attachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment TwoAttachment Two

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Global_Business_Network


LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 
 JULY 13, 2020 VIRTUAL WORKSHOP 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public comments were received from the following: 

• Geoff Ellsworth, Mayor of St. Helena, said he appreciates the conversation and where it’s going, and
supports what Commissioner Mohler said in terms of the Groundwater Sustainability Agency and Plan
Advisory Committee.  He believes the cross-pollination of information between these two boards will be
very informative in to directions to go in terms of understanding how we quantify the resource (water)
and make sure we have equitable distribution. In addition, Mayor Ellsworth suggested the Drought
Contingency Plan has a lot of information in there that can be woven in to give a more complete picture.

• Jay Gardner, President of Meyers Water Company, said Meyers serves 100 homes with unmetered
water connections in the Edgerly Island area on the Napa River, and is regulated by CPUC and the Napa
County’s Environmental Health Dept.  In 2004, Mr. Gardner took over the operations of Meyers
Water Company when the owners put the system up for sell.  Since 2004, they have seen significant
problems and improvements happen including re-casing the well in 2005, complete destruction of the
tankage system in the 2014 earthquake, and currently a water emergency happening due to the failure
of the 70-year old well.  Due to the way the CPUC regulates the water company, the water company is
unable to plan for long-term capital improvements.  Rather than building up a fund for needed replacements,
like the 70-year old well, they had to go to their bank for a loan for a new well, however, the bank refused
the loan request due to their financial condition.  They eventually got a loan from RCAC (a lender for small
rural systems), but only if Mr. Gardner and his wife would personally guarantee that loan.  This easily
added 6 months to this emergency situation of the failing well, and then COVID-19 made the matter worse.
Still, they will need to go CPUC and get the loan and a new well approved.
Mr. Gardner stated he believes this is backwards as to how to fund capital improvements, as it seems
they have to wait for things to fail under the current system rather than planning and preparing for the
inevitable replacement.  Some of the issues the water company is facing is it must meter all customers
within 5 years, and replace the 55-year old main line. These are things in their future, yet they have no
funding source for these improvements. Mr. Garner stated he and his wife have no desire to further dip
into their retirement funds, which they have had to do in the past.
As a small water agency, they are required to adhere to the same water standards as the larger providers,
however, they are finding it increasingly difficult to do this job, as this is an unsustainable model.
Mr. Gardner said he appreciates the current water study, as well as LAFCO staff for their efforts.

• Bill Ross, Attorney for City of American Canyon, spoke fondly of the tribute for the late Bill Chiat.
Mr. Ross also acknowledged the assistance of LAFCO staff as observed in the presentation, in addressing
the issue of the clarification of LAFCO-approved water service area for the City of American Canyon,
which goes back to actions taken at the time of incorporation of the City, and the treatment of the former American
Canyon County Water District. That clarification is essential to the desired goals and options
presented for governance in the County as a whole with respect to water.  He hopes to have a resolution
of the matter in order to address what is a detailed and complex problem.
Mr. Ross appreciates the assistance of staff, and we will continue to work with them to reach resolution.

Comments on Draft MSR - LAFCO Public Workshop July 13, 2020 Attachment TwoAttachment Two



 

 

• Dan Mufson, Representing Napa Vision 2050, thanked LAFCO staff for this comprehensive report  
on water which really shows the magnitude of some of the issues that are affecting us, and believes a  
county-wide service is important, now maybe more than ever, given the growth of the County.  
He proposes putting together a very comprehensive water budget for metering of all users and reporting  
so we can ascertain how much water is being used in Napa County.  
  
• Ron Rhyno, City of Napa Resident, spoke about limits to growth, and what is not examined, such as  
more wineries and vineyards, and how the water requirements used for those activities are not revealed.   
He also believes the county should begin to monitor water used for wine/agriculture and focus on  
sustainability of the water for future generations. 

Comments on Draft MSR - LAFCO Public Workshop July 13, 2020 Attachment TwoAttachment Two



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

  
 

Agenda Item 7d (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
   Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Legislative Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Commission authorize the Executive Officer to submit letters to the 
Assembly Appropriations Committee and Senator Anna Caballero opposing the proposed 
pending amendments to Senate Bill 414. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
This report includes an update on legislative activities affecting LAFCOs, including a 
review of all bills tracked by CALAFCO. 
 
The Commission’s standing Legislative Committee (the “Committee”) is comprised of 
Vice Chair Dillon and Commissioner Mohler along with the Executive Officer. The 
Committee met on March 9, 2020, and reviewed 30 bills that were being tracked by 
CALAFCO at the time. The Committee agreed to watch several bills and potentially return 
with recommended positions for the full Commission’s consideration at a future meeting. 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Legislature adjusted its priorities and many 
bills that affected LAFCOs were suspended or withdrawn including all bills being watched 
by the Committee. At this time, the Legislature’s focus is on bills related to COVID-19, 
education, fire response and prevention, and public safety reform.  
   
CALAFCO’s Daily Legislative Report (dated July 27, 2020) is included as Attachment 
One and provides a summary and status update for each tracked bill affecting LAFCOs. 
Only one of the tracked bills, Senate Bill (SB) 414, is relevant to the Commission and was 
being watched by the Committee. CALAFCO recently released an urgent call for action 
requesting all individual LAFCOs take a formal position opposing the proposed pending 
amendments to SB 414 as described on the following page.  
 
 



Legislative Report 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Senate Bill 414 (Caballero) – Small System Water Authority Act 
 
SB 414 was introduced by Senator Anna Caballero on February 20, 2019. The bill would 
create the Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 and state legislative findings and 
declarations relating to authorizing the creation of small system water authorities that will 
have powers to absorb, improve, and competently operate noncompliant public water 
systems. The intent is to give the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) authority 
to mandate the dissolution of existing drinking water systems (public, mutual and private) 
and authorize the formation of a new public water authority. The focus is on non-
contiguous systems. The SWRCB already has the authority to mandate consolidation of 
these systems, this will add the authority to mandate dissolution and formation of a new 
public agency. LAFCO will be responsible for dissolving any state mandated public agency 
dissolution, and the formation of the new water authority. 
 
The bill was amended three times in 2019 and remains in Suspense in Assembly 
Appropriations. The bill text as last amended on June 25, 2019, is available online at: 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB414.  
 
On July 23, 2020, the author introduced substantial amendments to the bill, which have not 
gone to print as of the date of this report and therefore cannot be included as an attachment. 
However, CALAFCO has reviewed the amendments and asserts they would have a 
substantive negative impact to LAFCOs and set a dangerous precedent by giving the 
SWRCB quasi-legislative authority to form a new water authority. The amendments would 
remove LAFCO’s existing authority from the formation process of a public agency service 
provider while also imposing new unfunded mandates on LAFCO. In addition, LAFCO is 
excluded from several critical notification points throughout the process to form the new 
authority. The negative impacts of the amendments to SB 414 are further described in the 
draft letters of opposition, included as Attachments Two and Three. 
 
The Commission has not taken a position on SB 414 to date. However, given the urgent 
nature and the bill’s potential relevance to certain recommendations in the Commission’s 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review, staff believes it is 
imperative to take a position on the pending amendments. With this in mind, it is 
recommended the Commission authorize the Executive Officer to submit the draft letters 
with any desired changes to the Assembly Appropriations Committee (Attachment Two) 
and Senator Anna Caballero (Attachment Three) opposing the pending amendments. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 
1) CALAFCO Daily Legislative Report (July 27, 2020) 
2) Draft Letter to Assembly Appropriations Committee 
3) Draft Letter to Senator Anna Caballero 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB414


��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 ���

"#$#%"&'()*+,'$-.*/+)0*1-'2-3450)/'46'7489),:';<+,'=>:'=?=?''@''#A'@=BC''''D2*1)/:'24E-50''(F'''$4G)+').-8G,'645H)0*48'G4HH*//*48/I'.5)80'354.5)HJ''"<55-80'K-L0I'MNOPQRSTURV'WXWYXWZY['''\O] '̂''_R̀a80549<G-9I'WXWYXWZY[b0)0</I'cXYZXWZY[defĝUR'hUfR̂gNU'_SPiSfNO'OQ'jŜU'kYlfmlYZmn'lofiO'̂QTfOgQN'pfi'qrsn't'en'QNkXkXWZY[mlufv'wU'fTOUR'S_QN'xfN'WZWZmhUiy zQ̂gTv egiTf̂ êQQP hUiy =',-)5 %*/G)+ %+445 "486J"48GJ {854++-9 |-04-9 "})30-5-9YiO'~QSiU WNR'~QSiUb<HH)5,I�\gi'wĝ̂'pQŜR'PU�SgPU'O\U'�OPfOU�gT'qPQpO\'�QSNTĝ�'SNOĝ'xŜv'�Y�'WZW��'OQ'UiOfŵgi\'fNRfR]gNgiOUP'f'̂QTf̂'f�UNTv'̀QP]fOgQN'TQ]]giigQNi'�PfNO'_PQ�Pf]'̀QP'O\U'_fv]UNO'Q̀'TQiOifiiQTgfOUR'pgO\'gNgOgfOgN�'fNR'TQ]_̂UOgN�'O\U'RgiiQ̂SOgQN'Q̀'RgiOPgTOi'̂giOUR'fi'gNfTOg�U�'O\U'_fv]UNOQ̀'TQiOi'fiiQTgfOUR'pgO\'f'iOSRv'Q̀'O\U'iUP�gTUi'_PQ�gRUR'pgO\gN'f'TQSNOv'wv'f'_SŵgT'f�UNTv'OQ'fRgifR�fNOf�UR'TQ]]SNgOv�'fi'RÙgNUR�'fNR'̀QP'QO\UP'i_UTg̀gUR'_SP_QiUi�'gNT̂SRgN�'O\U'gNgOgfOgQN'Q̀fN'fTOgQN�'fi'RÙgNUR�'O\fO'gi'̂g]gOUR'OQ'iUP�gTU'_PQ�gRUPi'iUP�gN�'f'RgifR�fNOf�UR'TQ]]SNgOv'fNR'giwfiUR'QN'RUOUP]gNfOgQNi'̀QSNR'gN'O\U'iOSRv�'fi'f__PQ�UR'wv'O\U'TQ]]giigQNn'�\U'wĝ̂'pQŜR'i_UTg̀vf__̂gTfOgQN'iSw]giigQN�'PUg]wSPiU]UNO�'fNR'PU_QPOgN�'PU�SgPU]UNOi'̀QP'f'̂QTf̂'f�UNTv'̀QP]fOgQNTQ]]giigQN'OQ'PUTUg�U'�PfNOi'_SPiSfNO'OQ'O\U'wĝ̂n'�\U'wĝ̂'pQŜR'PU�SgPU'O\U'TQSNTĝ�'f̀OUPTQNiŜOgN�'pgO\'O\U'�f̂g̀QPNgf'�iiQTgfOgQN'Q̀'oQTf̂'��UNTv'eQP]fOgQN'�Q]]giigQNi�'OQ'RU�ÛQ_'fNRfRQ_O'�SgRÛgNUi�'Og]ÛgNUi�'fNR'f__̂gTfOgQN'fNR'PU_QPOgN�'TPgOUPgf'̀QP'RU�ÛQ_]UNO'fNRg]_̂U]UNOfOgQN'Q̀'O\U'_PQ�Pf]�'fi'i_UTg̀gUR�'fNR'pQŜR'U�U]_O'O\UiU'�SgRÛgNUi�'Og]ÛgNUi�'fNRTPgOUPgf'̀PQ]'O\U'PŜU]fygN�'_PQ�gigQNi'Q̀'O\U'�R]gNgiOPfOg�U'zPQTURSPU'�TOn'�\U'wĝ̂'pQŜR']fyUO\U'�PfNO'_PQ�Pf]'iSw�UTO'OQ'fN'f__PQ_PgfOgQN'̀QP'O\U'_PQ�Pf]'gN'O\U'fNNSf̂'�SR�UO'�TO�'fNR'pQŜRPU_Uf̂'O\UiU'_PQ�gigQNi'QN'xfNSfPv'Y�'WZWkn'�\gi'wĝ̂'TQNOfgNi'QO\UP'U�giOgN�'̂fpin#00)G}H-80/Io�e�Q'�S__QPO'oUOOUP'�U]_̂fOU��o�e�r'�S__QPO'̂UOOUP'eUw'WZYk�4/*0*48I''�_QNiQPb<E�-G0I''hgifR�fNOf�UR'�Q]]SNgOgUi�'o�e�Q'�R]gNgiOPfOgQN�'uSNgTg_f̂'�UP�gTUi�'�_UTgf̂'hgiOPgTO�QNiQ̂gRfOgQNi"#$#%"&'"4HH-80/I''�zh���'��'re'ZcXZ�XWZWZ'd'��o�e�r'̂UfPNUR'OQRfv'O\fO'O\U'fSO\QP'RQUiNQO'_̂fN'OQ']Q�U'O\gi'wĝ̂'̀QPpfPR'fNR'pĝ̂'wU'�g�gN�'O\U'wĝ̂'S_'OQ'fNQO\UP'oU�gîfOQP'̀QP'O\UgP'SiU'fif'�SOdfNRdf]UNRn'�\gi'gi'f'��o�e�r'i_QNiQPUR'wĝ̂'̀Q̂Q̂pgN�'S_'QN'O\U'PUTQ]]UNRfOgQN'Q̀'O\U'ogOÔU'~QQ�UP�Q]]giigQN'PU_QPO'Q̀'WZYc'̀QP'O\U'oU�gîfOSPU'OQ'_PQ�gRU'o�e�Qi'QNUdOg]U'�PfNO'̀SNRgN�'̀QP'gNdRU_O\'iOSRgUi'Q̀'_QOUNOgf̂'PUQP�fNg�fOgQN'Q̀'̂QTf̂'iUP�gTU'_PQ�gRUPin'ofiO'vUfP�'O\U'qQ�UPNQP'�UOQUR��'WW��'d'O\gi'gi'O\U'if]U'wĝ̂n'�\U'�OPfOU�gT'qPQpO\'�QSNTĝ'l�q�m'pĝ̂'fR]gNgiOUP'O\U'�PfNO_PQ�Pf]n'qPfNO'̀SNRi'pĝ̂'wU'SiUR'i_UTg̀gTf̂v̂'̀QP'TQNRSTOgN�'i_UTgf̂'iOSRgUi'OQ'gRUNOg̀v'fNR'iS__QPOQ__QPOSNgOgUi'OQ'TPUfOU'�PUfOUP'Ù g̀TgUNTgUi'gN'O\U'_PQ�gigQN'Q̀']SNgTg_f̂'iUP�gTUi�'OQ'_QOUNOgf̂v̂gNgOgfOU'fTOgQNi'wfiUR'QN'O\QiU'iOSRgUi'O\fO'PU]Q�U'QP'PURSTU'̂QTf̂'TQiOi'O\Si'gNTUNOg�g�gN�'̂QTf̂f�UNTgUi'OQ'pQPy'pgO\'O\U'o�e�Q'gN'RU�ÛQ_gN�'fNR'g]_̂U]UNOgN�'PUQP�fNg�fOgQN'_̂fNi�'fNR'O\URgiiQ̂SOgQN'Q̀'gNfTOg�U'RgiOPgTOi'l_SPiSfNO'OQ'��'����'�gUTyQpyig�'WZYcmn'�\U'�PfNO'_PQ�Pf]'pQŜRiSNiUO'QN'xŜv'�Y�'WZW�n'�\U'wĝ̂'f̂iQ'T\fN�Ui'O\U'_PQOUiO'O\PUi\Q̂R'̀QP'o�e�Q'gNgOgfOUR'fTOgQNi�'iQ̂Ûv'̀QP'O\U'_SP_QiUi'Q̀fTOgQNi'̀SNRUR'_SPiSfNO'OQ'O\gi'NUp'iUTOgQNn'MO'f̂Q̂pi'o�e�Q'OQ'QPRUP'O\U'RgiiQ̂SOgQN'Q̀'f'RgiOPgTOlQSOigRU'Q̀'O\U'QNUi'gRUNOg̀gUR'wv'O\U'��rm'_SPiSfNO'OQ'�UTOgQN'YYWWY'Q̀'O\U'�̂UTOgQNi'TQRU�'p\gT\gi'f'OgUPUR'f__PQfT\'wfiUR'QN'PU�giOUPUR'�QOUPi'gN'O\U'f̀ ÙTOUR'OUPPgOQPv'l̀PQ]'�Z�'RQpN'OQ'YZ�RU_UNRgN�mn'�\U'̀QTSi'gi'QN'iUP�gTU'_PQ�gRUPi'iUP�gN�'RgifR�fNOf�UR'TQ]]SNgOgUin'�\U'wĝ̂'f̂iQ'PU�SgPUi'o�e�Q_fv'wfTy'�PfNO'̀SNRi'gN'O\UgP'UNOgPUOv'g̀'O\U'iOSRv'gi'NQO'TQ]_̂UOUR'pgO\gN'OpQ'vUfPi'fNR'PU�SgPUiO\U'�q�'OQ'�g�U'_PÙUPUNTU'OQ'o�e�ri'p\QiU'RUTgigQNi'\f�U'wUUN'f̂g�NUR'pgO\'O\U'�Qf̂i'Q̀iSiOfgNfŵU'TQ]]SNgOgUi'iOPfOU�gUin'

Attachment One



��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 ���

"#$%#&#$'()'**#))+',$-($.#//-(.$/0#$1234$5$-(/6$/0#$7'8.#/$)6$/0#$9'/06&$09)$8#*-8#8$/6$:9;#$/0-)9$<=>#9&$7-,,$9(8$/&>$9.9-($-($/0#$(#?/$7'8.#/$-($9$7'8.#/$/&9-,#&$7-,,3$@ABCDEF$G/$-)$(6/$,-;#,>$/0#$C))#:7,>:#:7#&$%-,,$:6H#$/0#$7-,,$+6&%9&8$9)$/0#&#$%-,,$7#$(6$:6(#>+6&$/0#$.&9(/$I&6.&9:3$$JK$LMNL$$$$OPQRS$TU$$$VWXYZ$W[\$]Ŷ YZ$]_]XỲ $abZcbZWXRb[]d$ab[]beR\WXRb[$bf$]YZgRaYh$$PSZZY[X$iYjXd$C:#(8#8F$kl4l<m2n$$$0/:,$$$I8+o[XZb\SaY\d$<l<<l<m2npW]X$J̀ Y[\Y\d$kl4l<m2nqXWXS]d$rlsml<m2n=t9-,#8$B#98,-(#$I'&)'9(/$/6$u',#$v2w9xw2<x3$wy9)/$,6*9/-6($%9)$CAAu3z@zAE{zE$tGyE$6($rl2<l<m2nxw59>$7#$9*/#8$'I6($|9($<m<mxB#); A6,-*> t-)*9, t,66& B#); A6,-*> }$_YWZ ~ebbZ Pb[fhPb[ah �[ZbeeY\ �YXbY\ PQWcXYZY\2)/$�6')# <(8$�6')#qS̀ `WZ_dD0#$�9,-+6&(-9$z9+#$B&-(;-(.$"9/#&$C*/$I&6H-8#)$+6&$/0#$6I#&9/-6($6+$I'7,-*$%9/#&$)>)/#:)$9(8-:I6)#)$6($/0#$z/9/#$"9/#&$u#)6'&*#)$�6(/&6,$�69&8$&#,9/#8$&#)I6()-7-,-/-#)$9(8$8'/-#)3$�'&&#(/,9%$9'/06&-�#)$/0#$)/9/#$769&8$/6$6&8#&$*6()6,-89/-6($6+$I'7,-*$%9/#&$)>)/#:)$%0#&#$9$I'7,-*$%9/#&)>)/#:$6&$)/9/#$):9,,$%9/#&$)>)/#:$)#&H-(.$9$8-)98H9(/9.#8$*6::'(-/>$*6()-)/#(/,>$+9-,)$/6I&6H-8#$9($98#�'9/#$)'II,>$6+$)9+#$8&-(;-(.$%9/#&�$9)$I&6H-8#83$D0-)$7-,,�$/0#$�6()6,-89/-6($+6&$z9+#B&-(;-(.$"9/#&$C*/$6+$<m2n�$%6',8$9'/06&-�#$9$%9/#&$6&$)#%#&$)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$+-,#$9(9II,-*9/-6($9(8$67/9-($9II&6H9,$+&6:$/0#$*6::-))-6($/0&6'.0$9($6&8#&$9'/06&-�-(.$/0#$%9/#&$6&)#%#&$)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$*6()6,-89/#$%-/0$9$I'7,-*$%9/#&$)>)/#:$6&$)/9/#$):9,,$%9/#&$)>)/#:/09/$09)$+#%#&$/09($s�smm$)#&H-*#$*6((#*/-6()$9(8$)#&H#)$9$8-)98H9(/9.#8$*6::'(-/>�$6&$/6-:I,#:#(/$&9/#)$+6&$/0#$)'7)':#8$%9/#&$)>)/#:3�b]RXRb[d$$"9/*0qS��YaXd$$"9/#&PJpJ~P�$Pb̀ `Y[X]d$$D0-)$7-,,$%6',8$9'/06&-�#$9$%9/#&$6&$)#%#&$)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$+-,#$9(9II,-*9/-6($9(8$67/9-($9II&6H9,$+&6:$/0#$A@�$/0&6'.0$9($6&8#&$9'/06&-�-(.$/0#$%9/#&$6&$)#%#&)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$*6()6,-89/#$%-/0$9$I'7,-*$%9/#&$)>)/#:$6&$)/9/#$):9,,$%9/#&$)>)/#:$/09/$09)+#%#&$/09($s�smm$)#&H-*#$*6((#*/-6()$9(8$)#&H#)$9$8-)98H9(/9.#8$*6::'(-/>�$6&$/6$-:I,#:#(/&9/#)$+6&$/0#$)'7)':#8$%9/#&$)>)/#:3$D0#$7-,,$%6',8$&#�'-&#$/0#$*6::-))-6($/6$9II&6H#$6&$8#(>/0#$9II3$@(,#))$/0#$*6::-))-6($8#)-.(9/#)$9$8-++#&#(/$I&6*#8'&#$7#*9')#$-/$8#/#&:-(#)$9*6()6,-89/-6($%9&&9(/)$9$:6&#$*6:I&#0#()-H#$&#H-#%�$/0#$7-,,$%6',8$9'/06&-�#$9$%9/#&$6&$)#%#&)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$-()/#98$+-,#$9($98H-*#$,#//#&$9(8$67/9-($9II&6H9,$+&6:$/0#$*6::-))-6(/0&6'.0$9$&#)6,'/-6($9'/06&-�-(.$/0#$%9/#&$6&$)#%#&$)>)/#:$*6&I6&9/-6($/6$*6()6,-89/#$%-/0$9$I'7,-*%9/#&$)>)/#:$6&$)/9/#$):9,,$%9/#&$)>)/#:$/09/$09)$+#%#&$/09($s�smm$)#&H-*#$*6((#*/-6()$9(8)#&H#)$9$8-)98H9(/9.#8$*6::'(-/>�$6&$/6$-:I,#:#(/$&9/#)$+6&$/0#$)'7)':#8$%9/#&$)>)/#:3$$qK$�L�$$$$OPW�WeeYZb$TU$$$q̀ Wee$q_]XỲ $VWXYZ$JSXQbZRX_$JaX$bf$}�L�h$$PSZZY[X$iYjXd$C:#(8#8F$vl<4l<m2n$$$0/:,$$$I8+o[XZb\SaY\d$<l<ml<m2npW]X$J̀ Y[\Y\d$vl<4l<m2nqXWXS]d$rlsml<m2n=t9-,#8$B#98,-(#$I'&)'9(/$/6$u',#$v2w9xw2<x3$wy9)/$,6*9/-6($%9)$CAAu3z@zAE{zE$tGyE$6($rl<2l<m2nxw59>$7#$9*/#8$'I6($|9($<m<mxB#); A6,-*> t-)*9, t,66& B#); A6,-*> }$_YWZ ~ebbZ Pb[fhPb[ah �[ZbeeY\ �YXbY\ PQWcXYZY\2)/$�6')# <(8$�6')#qS̀ `WZ_d"6',8$*&#9/#$/0#$z:9,,$z>)/#:$"9/#&$C'/06&-/>$C*/$6+$<m2n$9(8$)/9/#$,#.-),9/-H#$+-(8-(.)$9(88#*,9&9/-6()$&#,9/-(.$/6$9'/06&-�-(.$/0#$*&#9/-6($6+$):9,,$)>)/#:$%9/#&$9'/06&-/-#)$/09/$%-,,$09H#I6%#&)$/6$97)6&7�$-:I&6H#�$9(8$*6:I#/#(/,>$6I#&9/#$(6(*6:I,-9(/$I'7,-*$%9/#&$)>)/#:)3$D0#$7-,,�(6$,9/#&$/09($59&*0$2�$<m<m�$%6',8$&#�'-&#$/0#$)/9/#$769&8$/6$I&6H-8#$%&-//#($(6/-*#$/6$*'&#$/6$9,,I'7,-*$9.#(*-#)�$I&-H9/#$%9/#&$*6:I9(-#)�$6&$:'/'9,$%9/#&$*6:I9(-#)$/09/$6I#&9/#$9$I'7,-*$%9/#&)>)/#:$/09/$09)$#-/0#&$,#))$/09($s�mmm$)#&H-*#$*6((#*/-6()$6&$/09/$)#&H#)$,#))$/09($2m�mmm$I#6I,#�9(8$9&#$(6/$-($*6:I,-9(*#�$+6&$/0#$I#&-68$+&6:$|',>$2�$<m2r�$/0&6'.0$B#*#:7#&$s2�$<m2n�$%-/0$6(#6&$:6&#$)/9/#$6&$+#8#&9,$I&-:9&>$8&-(;-(.$%9/#&$)/9(89&8$:9?-:':$*6(/9:-(9(/$,#H#,)�$9))I#*-+-#83JXXWaQ̀ Y[X]dyCt��$D#:I,9/#$�II6)#$A#(8-(.$C:#(8:#(/$/6$C'/06&�CyCt��$�II6)#$A#(8-(.$C:#(8:#(/)$/6$CEzD5�C,Ct��$�II6)#$A#(8-(.$C:#(8:#(/)$/6$C'/06&�CyCt��$�II6)#$A#(8-(.$C:#(8:#(/)$/6$z�t��CyCt��$�II6)#$A#(8-(.$C:#(8:#(/)$/6$zE�

Attachment One



��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 !��

"#$%&'()*+,-.)'&++/0)'1)23425'#*)23*)2.0'./'#00*'#++6/+64-.4/20%#"#$%&'&++/0)'1)23425'#*)23*)2.0'./'#"7%%#"#$%&'&++/0)'1)23425'#*)23*)2.0'./'#00*'#++6/+64-.4/2089:;<;9=>''&++/0)'1)23425'#*)23*)2.0?@ABCD<>''E-.)6FGHGIFJ'F9KKC=<:>''L1M#(N'#O'&$'PQRSTRSPU'(V)6)'-6)'WX66)2.,Y'+6/+/0)3'+)23425-*)23*)2.0'2/.'Y).'42'+642.'Z)425'2)5/.4-.)3'ZY'.V)'-X.V/6'-23'0+/20/60'[4.V'#00*U#++6/+64-.4/20'.V-.'6)*/\)'"#$%/'-X.V/64.Y'42'.V)']/6*-.4/2'/]'.V)'2)['[-.)6'-X.V/64.Y'-23'54\).V-.'̂X-04_,)540,-.4\)'-X.V/64.Y'./'.V)'OE %̀aU'$X6.V)6'"#$%&'[4,,'2/',/25)6'V-\)'-2Y'-X.V/64.Y'42.V)'3400/,X.4/2'/]'-'+XZ,4W'[-.)6'0X++,4)6'-0'+-6.'/]'.V)']/6*-.4/2'/]'.V)'2)['-X.V/64.Yb'-23'-,,"#$%/']X23425']/6'[V-.'40'6)̂X46)3'./'Z)'3/2)'ZY'"#$%/'40'Z)425'),4*42-.)3U'(V)6)'-6)'2X*)6/X0/.V)6'400X)0'[4.V'.V)'+)23425'-*)23*)2.0b'-,,'/]'[V4WV'-6)'3).-4,)3'42'/X6'/++/04.4/2',)..)6U'(V40'Z4,,'40'\)6Y'04*4,-6'./'#a'SPcP'd%-Z-,,)6/e']6/*'SPfgU'O)\)6-,'WV-25)0'V-\)'Z))2'*-3)U'(V40Z4,,'40'0+/20/6)3'ZY'N-0.)62'hX24W4+-,'E-.)6'M40.64W.'-23'.V)'%#'hX24W4+-,'L.4,4.4)0'#00/WU'(V)'42.)2.40'./'54\)'.V)'O.-.)'E-.)6'̀)0/X6W)0'%/2.6/,'a/-63'dOE %̀ae'-X.V/64.Y'./'*-23-.)'.V)'3400/,X.4/2/]')i40.425'3642j425'[-.)6'0Y0.)*0'd+XZ,4Wb'*X.X-,'-23'+64\-.)e'-23'-X.V/64k)'.V)']/6*-.4/2'/]'-2)['+XZ,4W'[-.)6'-X.V/64.YU'(V)']/WX0'40'/2'2/2'W/2.45X/X0'0Y0.)*0U'(V)'OE %̀a'-,6)-3Y'V-0'.V)-X.V/64.Y'./'*-23-.)'W/20/,43-.4/2'/]'.V)0)'0Y0.)*0b'.V40'[4,,'-33'.V)'-X.V/64.Y'./'*-23-.)3400/,X.4/2'-23']/6*-.4/2'/]'-'2)['+XZ,4W'-5)2WYU'"#$%/'[4,,'Z)'6)0+/204Z,)']/6'3400/,\425'-2Y'0.-.)'*-23-.)3'+XZ,4W'-5)2WY'3400/,X.4/2b'-23'.V)]/6*-.4/2'/]'.V)'2)['[-.)6'-X.V/64.YU'(V)'OE %̀al0'-++/42.)3'#3*4240.6-./6'[4,,'-W.'-0'.V)-++,4W-2.'/2'Z)V-,]'/]'.V)'0.-.)U'"#$%/'[4,,'V-\)'-Z4,4.Y'./'-++6/\)'[4.V'*/34]4W-.4/20'.V)-++,4W-.4/2b'-23'.V)'2)['-5)2WY'[4,,'V-\)'./'6)+/6.'./'.V)'"#$%/'-22X-,,Y']/6'.V)']460.'T'Y)-60U''?m'nop''''qF9KK;<<CC'9='r9sCt=u=DC'u=v'I;=u=DCw'''xuy;vu<;9=:z''F@ttC=<'{C|<>'}2.6/3XW)3~'SRcRSPSP'''V.*,'''+3]�=<t9v@DCv>'SRcRSPSP?<u<@:>'�RfgRSPSP_̀)])66)3'./'%/*U'/2'"U'7&�UM)0j 1/,4WY $40W-, $,//6 M)0j 89y;D� I;:Duy Iy99t F9=�zF9=Dz �=t9yyCv xC<9Cv F�u�<CtCvf0.'�/X0) S23'�/X0)?@KKut�>(V40'Z4,,'[/X,3')2-W.'.V)'$460.'�-,43-.425'#W.'/]'SPSPb'[V4WV'[/X,3'\-,43-.)'.V)'/65-24k-.4/2bZ/X23-64)0b'-W.0b'+6/W))34250b'-23'Z/230'/]'.V)'0.-.)'-23'W/X2.4)0b'W4.4)0b'-23'0+)W4]4)3'340.64W.0b-5)2W4)0b'-23')2.4.4)0U89:;<;9=>''OX++/6.FGHGIFJ'F9KKC=<:>''(V40'40'.V)']460.'/]'.V6))'-22X-,'\-,43-.425'-W.0U''?m'non''''qF9KK;<<CC'9='r9sCt=u=DC'u=v'I;=u=DCw'''xuy;vu<;9=:z''F@ttC=<'{C|<>'}2.6/3XW)3~'SRcRSPSP'''V.*,'''+3]�=<t9v@DCv>'SRcRSPSP?<u<@:>'�RfgRSPSP_̀)])66)3'./'%/*U'/2'"U'7&�UM)0j 1/,4WY $40W-, $,//6 M)0j 89y;D� I;:Duy Iy99t F9=�zF9=Dz �=t9yyCv xC<9Cv F�u�<CtCvf0.'�/X0) S23'�/X0)?@KKut�>(V40'Z4,,'[/X,3')2-W.'.V)'O)W/23'�-,43-.425'#W.'/]'SPSPb'[V4WV'[/X,3'\-,43-.)'.V)'/65-24k-.4/2bZ/X23-64)0b'-W.0b'+6/W))34250b'-23'Z/230'/]'.V)'0.-.)'-23'W/X2.4)0b'W4.4)0b'-23'0+)W4]4)3'340.64W.0b-5)2W4)0b'-23')2.4.4)0U89:;<;9=>''OX++/6.FGHGIFJ'F9KKC=<:>''(V40'40'.V)'0)W/23'/]'.V6))'-22X-,'\-,43-.425'-W.0U''?m'n��''''qF9KK;<<CC'9='r9sCt=u=DC'u=v'I;=u=DCw'''xuy;vu<;9=:z''F@ttC=<'{C|<>'}2.6/3XW)3~'SRcRSPSP'''V.*,'''+3]�=<t9v@DCv>'SRcRSPSP?<u<@:>'�RfgRSPSP_̀)])66)3'./'%/*U'/2'"U'7&�UM)0j 1/,4WY $40W-, $,//6 M)0j 89y;D� I;:Duy Iy99t F9=�zF9=Dz �=t9yyCv xC<9Cv F�u�<CtCvf0.'�/X0) S23'�/X0)?@KKut�>(V40'Z4,,'[/X,3')2-W.'.V)'(V463'�-,43-.425'#W.'/]'SPSPb'[V4WV'[/X,3'\-,43-.)'.V)'/65-24k-.4/2b

Attachment One



��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 ���

"#$%&'()*+,-'./+,-0(#.**&)%1+,-'%&-"#%&+-#2-/3*-+/'/*-'%&-.#$%/)*+,-.)/)*+,-'%&-+0*.)2)*&-&)+/()./+,'1*%.)*+,-'%&-*%/)/)*+45678986:;--<$00#(/=>?>@=A-=6BBC:97;--D3)+-)+-/3*-/3)(&-#2-/3(**-'%%$'E-F'E)&'/)%1-'./+4--G-->H-GIJ----KLCMC7-NO---?6PQR-S6TCU:BC:9-V8:Q:PC;-WU6WCU9M-9QX-UCTC:YC-QRR6PQ986:7;-TCZ8PRC-R8PC:7C-VCCQ[\Y79BC:97]--=YUUC:9-̂CX9;-_%/(#&$.*&̀-abacbdeaf---3/gE---0&2h:9U6[YPC[;-abacbdeafi9Q9Y7;-jbkebdeaflm')E*&-n*'&E)%*-0$(+$'%/-/#-o$E*-paq'rqadr4-qs'+/-E#.'/)#%-t'+-uvvo4<w<vxy<x-m_sx-#%-jbafbdeafrqz'{-"*-'./*&-$0#%-|'%-dedern*+} v#E).{ m)+.'E mE##( n*+} v#E).{ G-MCQU @R66U =6:V]=6:P] ~:U6RRC[ �C96C[ =ZQW9CUC[a+/-�#$+* d%&-�#$+*iYBBQUM;�#$E&,-2#(-/3*-deaf�de-2)+.'E-{*'(,-(*�$)(*-/3*-F*3).E*-E).*%+*-2**-'&�$+/g*%/-'g#$%/-/#-"*-/3*+$g-#2-/3*-F*3).E*-E).*%+*-2**-'&�$+/g*%/-'g#$%/-)%-/3*-deaj�af-2)+.'E-{*'(,-/3*-0(#&$./-#2-/3'/+$g-'%&-/3*-0*(.*%/'1*-.3'%1*-)%-1(#++-/'�'"E*-'++*++*&-F'E$'/)#%-t)/3)%-/3*-�$()+&)./)#%-#2-/3'/*%/)/{-"*/t**%-/3*-deaj�af-2)+.'E-{*'(-/#-/3*-deaj�af-2)+.'E-{*'(,-'%&-/3*-0(#&$./-#2-/3*-'g#$%/#2-+0*.)2)*&-g#/#(-F*3).E*-E).*%+*-2**-(*F*%$*+-/3'/-/3*-�#%/(#EE*(-'EE#.'/*&-/#-/3*-'00E).'"E*-.)/{-)%|$E{-deae-'%&-a4a�4>99QPZBC:97;�usum��-<$00#(/-s*//*(5678986:;--<$00#(/iY�\CP9;--D'�-uEE#.'/)#%=>?>@=A-=6BBC:97;--<0#%+#(*&-"{-/3*-s*'1$*,-/3)+-")EE-t)EE-(*)%+/'/*-xoum-2$%&)%1-2#(-)%3'")/*&'%%*�'/)#%+4-D3)+-")EE-)+-/3*-+'g*-'+-u�-ddpj-qo*{*+r-2(#g-deaj4--J-->H-IJ�----KHR66B-NO---iQVC-NU8:�8:S-�Q9CU-LC796UQ986:]--=YUUC:9-̂CX9;-ug*%&*&̀-cbdebdeaf---3/gE---0&2h:9U6[YPC[;-adbcbdeaj?Q79->BC:[C[;-cbdebdeafi9Q9Y7;-�baebdeaflm')E*&-n*'&E)%*-0$(+$'%/-/#-o$E*-paq'rqaer4-qs'+/-E#.'/)#%-t'+-x4�4-#%pbadbdeafrqz'{-"*-'./*&-$0#%-|'%-dedern*+} v#E).{ m)+.'E mE##( n*+} G-MCQU @87PQR @R66U =6:V]=6:P] ~:U6RRC[ �C96C[ =ZQW9CUC[a+/-�#$+* d%&-�#$+*iYBBQUM;�#$E&-(*�$)(*-/3*-</'/*-�'/*(-o*+#$(.*+-�#%/(#E-�#'(&-/#-(*0#(/-/#-/3*-s*1)+E'/$(*-"{-|$E{-a,dedc,-#%-)/+-0(#1(*++-)%-(*+/#()%1-+'2*-&()%})%1-t'/*(-/#-'EE-�'E)2#(%)'-.#gg$%)/)*+-'%&-/#-.(*'/*-'%)%/*(%*/-t*"+)/*-/3'/-0(#F)&*+-&'/'-/('%+0'(*%.{-2#(-'EE-#2-/3*-"#'(&�+-'./)F)/)*+-&*+.()"*&-)%-/3)+g*'+$(*4-D3*-")EE-t#$E&-(*�$)(*-/3*-"#'(&-/#-&*F*E#0-g*/().+-/#-g*'+$(*-/3*-*22).'.{-#2-/3*-2$%&-)%*%+$()%1-+'2*-'%&-'22#(&'"E*-&()%})%1-t'/*(-2#(-'EE-�'E)2#(%)'%+45678986:;--�'/.3iY�\CP9;--�'/*(-->H-GJ��----K?8B�:-NO---�C:9YUQ-56U9-N879U8P9;-Q�YQPYR9YUC-WR697;-VC[CUQR-�Q9CU7]--=YUUC:9-̂CX9;-ug*%&*&̀-kbapbdede---3/gE---0&2h:9U6[YPC[;-dbajbdede?Q79->BC:[C[;-kbapbdedei9Q9Y7;-kba�bdedelo*l(*2*((*&-/#-�#g4-#%-s4-���4n*+} 56R8PM @87PQR @R66U NC7� 56R8PM @87PQR @R66U =6:V]=6:P] ~:U6RRC[ �C96C[ =ZQW9CUC[a+/-�#$+* G:[-�6Y7CiYBBQUM;w%&*(-/3*-�#(/*+*l�%#�l�*(/�"*(1-s#.'E-�#F*(%g*%/-o*#(1'%)�'/)#%-u./-#2-deee,-'-.)/{-#(-&)+/()./g'{-#%E{-0(#F)&*-%*t-#(-*�/*%&*&-+*(F).*+-"{-.#%/('./-#(-'1(**g*%/-#$/+)&*-#2-)/+-�$()+&)./)#%'E

Attachment One



��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 ���

̂ *ZL__WPOMQ**<8+0*+0*'*5#1'5*"+55*'$-8#(+A+%9*H.%-$('*I#(-*J+0-(+1-*-#*.:-.%&*#4.('-+#%0+%-#*,.&.('5*3'-.(0;*=EBÈ=a*3+55*3#(b*3+-8*H.%-$('*BÈ=#;*cIJE<de*=EBÈ=a*5.'(%.&*-8'-*-8.*'$-8#(*8'0*4$55.&*-8.*"+55*,#(*FGFG;**[f*gghi****jklmn*op***\LXmq*mrWPXn*sLl_mONLPQ*mPPWtmONLPQ*ZNOn*Ls*uWlXWvw**ZTllWPO*xWtOQ*E7.%&.&e*yzF{zFGFG***8-75***4&,|POlLvTXWvQ*FzF}zFGFG\mMO*[_WPvWvQ*yzF{zFGFGSOmOTMQ*yzF{zFGFG>̀(#7*1#77+--..*18'+(6*3+-8*'$-8#(~0*'7.%&7.%-0e*E7.%&6*'%&*(.>(.,.(*-#1#77+--..;*D.'&*0.1#%&*-+7.6*'7.%&.&6*'%&*(.>(.,.((.&*-#*=#7;*#%*CaH;*�*̀;J.0b I#5+1) +̀01'5 5̀##( J.0b KLqNXn ]NMXmq ]qLLl ZLPswZLPXw �PlLqqWv �WOLWv Z�m�OWlWv}0-*@#$0. F%&*@#$0.ZmqWPvmlQyzF�zFGFG**}e{G*4;7;*>*�#8%*B;*�$(-#%*@.'(+%9*D##7*��FG{�**Yd�E<d*CaHdD�E�=d*E�J�̀�E�=d6*�=Cc�Dd6*=8'+(ST__mlnQR#$5&*'$-8#(+A.*-8.*'%%.:'-+#%*#,*-.((+-#()*1#74(+0+%9*-8.*7'+%*1'74$0*#,*-8.*c%+2.(0+-)*#,='5+,#(%+'6*�.(1.&6*'0*04.1+,+.&6*'%&*'%)*(#'&*0-(+46*'0*&.,+%.&6*-#*-8.*=+-)*#,*�.(1.&6%#-3+-80-'%&+%9*-8.*(./$+(.7.%-*-8'-*-8.*-.((+-#()*".*1#%-+9$#$0*3+-8*-8.*1+-)6*+,*#-8.(*1#%&+-+#%0'(.*7.-6*+%15$&+%9*-8'-*-8.*-.((+-#()*+0*3+-8+%*-8.*1+-)�0*048.(.*#,*+%,5$.%1.;*<8.*"+55*3#$5&*4(#2+&.-8'-*'*0$"0./$.%-*'%%.:'-+#%*-#*-8.*',,.1-.&*-.((+-#()*04.1+,+.&*+%*-8.*"+55*08'55*".*1#%-+9$#$0*-#*-8.4(#4.(-)*1#74(+0+%9*-8.*7'+%*1'74$0*#,*-8.*c%+2.(0+-)*#,*='5+,#(%+'6*�.(1.&;KLMNONLPQ**R'-18STUVWXOQ**E%%.:'-+#%*I(#1..&+%90Z[\[]Ẑ *ZL__WPOMQ**<8+0*+0*'*5#1'5*"+55*,#(*�.(1.&;*�-*'55#30*'*&.,+%.&*0.1-+#%*#,*-8.*c=*�.(1.&1'74$0*'%&*'11.00*(#'&*-#*".*'%%.:.&*+,*1.(-'+%*1#%&+-+#%0*'(.*7.-*'%&*b..40*-8.*BÈ=#*4(#1.00+%-'1-;*=EBÈ=a*3+55*3'-18*-8.*"+55*-#*.%0$(.*-8.*BÈ=#*4(#1.00*(.7'+%0*4(#-.1-.&*'%&*3#(b*3+-8�.(1.&*BÈ=#;**Sf*�i�****jflmvsLlv*op***ZWPOlmq*fmMNP*uTPNXN�mq*�mOWl*oNMOlNXOQ*lWXWN�WlM�N�w**ZTllWPO*xWtOQ*E7.%&.&e*�z�zFGFG***8-75***4&,|POlLvTXWvQ*FzFFzFG}�\mMO*[_WPvWvQ*�z�zFGFGSOmOTMQ*�z}�zFGFG>D.>(.,.((.&*-#*=#7;*#%*DBY;*4$(0$'%-*-#*Y.%'-.*D$5.*F�;}G�&�;J.0b KLqNXn ]NMXmq ]qLLl oWM� KLqNXn ]NMXmq ]qLLl ZLPswZLPXw �PlLqqWv �WOLWv Z�m�OWlWv}0-*@#$0. iPv*�LTMWST__mlnQR#$5&*&+00#52.*-8.*"#'(&*#,*&+(.1-#(0*#,*-8.*=.%-('5*�'0+%*�$%+1+4'5*R'-.(*J+0-(+1-*�=��RJ�*'%&3#$5&*4(#2+&.*-8'-*-8.*�#2.7".(*{6*FGFG6*.5.1-+#%*,#(*&+(.1-#(0*#,*=��RJ*08'55*%#-*#11$(;*<8.*"+553#$5&*(./$+(.*-8.*R'-.(*D.45.%+087.%-*J+0-(+1-*#,*Y#$-8.(%*='5+,#(%+'*�RDJ�*-#*'1-*'0*-8.*(.1.+2.(,#(*=��RJ6*3#$5&*2.0-*RDJ*3+-8*'55*%.1.00'()*4#3.(0*$%&.(*-8.*�$%+1+4'5*R'-.(*J+0-(+1-*B'3*#,}�}}*-#*-'b.*1#%-(#5*#,*=��RJ6*'%&*3#$5&*-('%0,.(*'55*4#3.(0*2.0-.&*+%*-8.*"#'(&*#,*&+(.1-#(0*#,=��RJ*-#*-8.*"#'(&*#,*&+(.1-#(0*#,*RDJ6*.:1.4-*'0*04.1+,+.&;*<8.*"+55*3#$5&*(./$+(.*=��RJ�0"#'(&*#,*&+(.1-#(0*-#*0$((.%&.(*'55*1#%-(#5*#,*=��RJ*'%&*+-0*(.0#$(1.0*-#*RDJ;[OOmX�_WPOMQBÈ=#*Y$44#(-*5.--.(*-.745'-.=EBÈ=a*Y$44#(-��$%.*}F6*FGFGKLMNONLPQ**Y$44#(-STUVWXOQ**�$%+1+4'5*Y.(2+1.0**Sf*���****jklL�W*�p***�Ll�Wl*MOmOTMQ*W_�qLnWWMQ*NPvW�WPvWPO*XLPOlmXOLlMw**

Attachment One



��������� ����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	

����	
�����������
������	�����	���
�������������������������� � ��!��� ��!���	 ���

"#$$%&'()%*'+(,-./0.01(234534646(((78-9(((:0;<&'$=>#?%>+(@3534646ABC'(DE%&>%>+(234534646F'B'#C+(G3@H34646IJKL(@2(M.8(;NO(;POM8(7.KOP/QR(SKP9.0(:KMMKQ.(P/(TN--P88..R(U,L.M(@R(VN.M(2RWX.TN/MP0.OK8PN/(QOK/8.0RY.MZ [=\]?̂ _]C?B\ _\==$ %̀Ca [=\]?̂ _]C?B\ _\==$ "=&bc"=&?c d&$=\\%> e%'=%> "fBg'%$%>@M8(hNiM. j&>(k=#C%F#EEB$̂+lNi90(.M8Km9PM7(K(/.n(8.M8(87K8o(;NO(:iO:NM.M(N;(M:.TP;PT(:ONpPMPN/M(N;(87.(qKmNO(rN0.(QNp.O/P/Q(87.O.9K8PN/M7P:(N;(.-:9NL.O(K/0(.-:9NL..Mo(K(:.OMN/(:ONpP0P/Q(9KmNO(NO(M.OpPT.M(;NO(O.-i/.OK8PN/(PMTN/MP0.O.0(K/(.-:9NL..(OK87.O(87K/(K/(P/0.:./0./8(TN/8OKT8NOo(i/9.MM(87.(7POP/Q(./8P8L0.-N/M8OK8.M(87K8(87.(:.OMN/(PM(U@W(;O..(;ON-(87.(TN/8ON9(K/0(0PO.T8PN/(N;(87.(7POP/Q(./8P8L(P/TN//.T8PN/(nP87(87.(:.O;NO-K/T.(N;(87.(nNOZo(mN87(i/0.O(87.(TN/8OKT8(;NO(87.(:.O;NO-K/T.(N;(87.nNOZ(K/0(P/(;KT8o(0.8.O-P/.0(mL(K(:O.:N/0.OK/T.(N;(;KT8NOMo(nP87(/N(MP/Q9.(;KT8NO(N;(TN/8ON9(m.P/Q0.8.O-P/K8Pp.o(K/0(.P87.O(87K8(U4W(87.(:.OMN/(:.O;NO-M(nNOZ(87K8(PM(Ni8MP0.(87.(iMiK9(TNiOM.(N;(87.7POP/Q(./8P8LsM(miMP/.MMo(NO(87.(nNOZ(:.O;NO-.0(PM(Ni8MP0.(87.(:9KT.(N;(miMP/.MM(N;(87.(7POP/Q(./8P8LoNO(87.(nNOZ.O(PM(O.M:N/MPm9.(;NO(87.(TNM8M(N;(87.(:9KT.(N;(87.(miMP/.MM(n7.O.(87.(nNOZ(PM(:.O;NO-.0oNO(87K8(UtW(87.(:.OMN/(PM(TiM8N-KOP9L(./QKQ.0(P/(K/(P/0.:./0./89L(.M8Km9PM7.0(8OK0.o(NTTi:K8PN/o(NOmiMP/.MM(N;(87.(MK-.(/K8iO.(KM(87K8(P/pN9p.0(P/(87.(nNOZ(:.O;NO-.0R[=C]']=&+((lK8T7F#uv%?'+((w87.O"DAD_"x("=EE%&'C+((y7PM(mP99(:ON:NM.M(K-./0-./8M(8N(,z(G(P/(8.O-M(N;(87.(.{.-:8PN/(8.M8Mn7PT7(-KL(P-:KT8(87.(TN/8OKT8iK93.-:9NL..(O.9K8PN/M7P:(N;(r,q,Srw(K/0(P8M(8nN(:OP-KOLTN/8OKT8NOMR(yN8K9(J.KMiO.M1(@4yN8K9(yOKTZP/Q(SNO-M1(@4���������( |��|��(}~

Attachment One



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
August 3, 2020 
 
 
The Honorable Lorena Gonzalez   
Chair, Appropriations Committee 
California State Assembly 
State Capitol, Room 2114 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
 
Subject:  Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
 
Dear Chair Gonzalez: 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) of Napa County (“Napa LAFCO”) 
joins the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) 
to oppose the proposed pending amendments for Senate Bill (SB) 414 (Caballero). The bill 
is currently being held in your committee. While there are vast policy issues with the 
proposed amendments, this letter will focus our concerns to you and your committee on 
the fiscal issues of the proposed amendments. 
 
According to the sponsors, in an effort to reduce costs associated with the bill, the role of 
LAFCOs that exist in the current version of the bill (dated June 25, 2019) is being 
drastically reduced. The proposed amendments strip LAFCOs of their authority in the 
formation of the new water authority – a public agency that would otherwise be formed at 
the discretion of and by the authority of LAFCO. Additionally, they remove LAFCOs’ 
authority to dissolve a public water system as authorized by the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB) and as part of the formation process of the new authority.  
 
The sponsors have also indicated the proposed amendments that change numerous 
processes in SB 414 are intended to reflect closer alignment with processes and SWRCB 
authority existing in SB 88 (2015, Committee on Budget & Fiscal Review) and AB 2501 
(2018, Chu). These laws deal with consolidation of existing water systems, whereas SB 
414 creates a new type of public water system and reflects the formation of a new public 
entity (as well as dissolving existing public and private systems). One simply should not 
be compared to the other.  
 
  

Attachment Two

DRAFT



Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
The current version of the bill, as noted in last fiscal analysis on August 21, 2019 in your 
committee, reflects a cost of up to $10.65 million to LAFCOs for authority formations, 
which represents only 11.5% of the total cost estimate of $89.15 million. Using the fiscal 
projections in the current bill, the costs associated with LAFCO are far below every other 
entity and related provision (with one exception) of the dissolutions; formations; 
administration; SWRCB support and support for the authorities once formed. The cost for 
LAFCOs to perform the dissolution of public water systems and to form the new authority 
are far likely to be less than having the SWRCB perform these functions. Consequently, 
we believe this creates a false perception that the overall cost will be reduced by removing 
LAFCO from the process. Transitioning these processes to a state agency rather than 
keeping them at the local level does not in fact reduce costs – it simply transfers the cost 
from the local level to the state level. Further, we would assert the cost is less at the LAFCO 
level.  
 
Finally, the proposed pending amendments require LAFCOs to (1) review the proposed 
plan and provide recommendations to the SWRCB; (2) hold a public hearing to allow for 
public comment on the dissolution of the public water system mandated by the SWRCB 
for dissolution and provide all comments to the SWRCB: (3) hold two public hearings to 
receive input on the proposed plan for the new authority, summarize comments received 
and provide a report to the SWRCB; (4) review a report on the authority’s performance for 
the first three years; (5) hold a public hearing as directed by the SWRCB if the new 
authority is failing to comply with the plan to review the authority’s performance and 
provide a report back to the SWRCB on comments received at the hearing.  
 
The proposed pending amendments remove all the funding for LAFCO for all the actions 
still required by the bill as noted above. Section 78038(a) adds a clause to address funding 
for only the two public hearings to consider the draft conceptual plan and prepare the 
required report – and only if – they (LAFCO) “incur extraordinary costs over and above its 
normal budgeted operating expenses for conducting the public hearing and preparing the 
report to the state board”.  All of the LAFCO expenses related to SB 414 are over and 
above normal operating budget costs and in order to cover them should the state not, it is 
likely we will have to increase fees to the local government agencies that pay into the 
LAFCO annually (cities, counties, and special districts).  
 
LAFCOs need to be added to the language in Section 78115 (a)(1). All other entities, 
including the Public Utilities Commission, have some level of funding in the proposed 
pending amendments. To eliminate the funding for the one local agency involved and retain 
funding for all state agencies involved is inappropriate and puts the collection of that 
funding on the backs of local government.   
 
For these fiscal reasons, we oppose the proposed pending amendments to SB 414 and 
strongly urge your committee to reject the amendments and hold the bill.  
 
  

Attachment Two

DRAFT



Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions about our OPPOSE position 
to the proposed amendments on SB 414. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 

 
Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 
(707) 259-8645 
bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov  
 
 
 
cc: Members, Assembly Appropriations Committee 
 Honorable Senator Caballero 
 Jennifer Galehouse, Assembly Appropriations Committee Deputy Chief Consultant  
 Suzanne Sutton, Consultant, Senate Republican Caucus  
 Pamela Miller, Executive Director, CALAFCO 

Kenneth Leary, Napa LAFCO Chair 

Attachment Two

DRAFT

mailto:bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov


 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  

We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

August 3, 2020 

The Honorable Anna Caballero 
California State Senate 
State Capitol, Room 5052 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Subject:  Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Dear Senator Caballero: 

The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) of Napa County (“Napa LAFCO”) joins 
the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) in opposing 
the proposed pending amendments for your bill, Senate Bill (SB) 414. It is our understanding 
you are planning amendments to be done in Assembly Appropriations where the bill is 
currently being held in Suspense. 

We support efforts to ensure all Californians have safe, affordable drinking water. However, 
the proposed amendments have such a substantive negative impact to local agency formation 
commission (LAFCOs) that we must now oppose them.  

It is our understanding these changes are an effort to reduce the cost of the bill, and to closer 
align processes and State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) authority existing in SB 
88 (2015, Committee on Budget & Fiscal Review) and AB 2501 (2018, Chu).  These laws deal 
with consolidation of existing water systems, whereas SB 414 creates a new type of public 
water system and reflects the formation of a new public entity (as well as dissolving existing 
public and private systems). One simply should not be compared to the other.  

The proposed amendments strip LAFCOs of their part and authority in the formation of the 
new water authority – a public agency that would otherwise be formed at the discretion of and 
by the authority of LAFCO. Additionally, they remove LAFCOs’ authority to dissolve a public 
water system as authorized by the SWRCB and as part of the formation process of the new 
authority. As you know, formation of a new, local public agency has been the authority of 
LAFCO since 1963 when the Legislature created them. To now turn that authority over to the 
SWRCB in an effort to “save money” or “streamline the process”, we believe, creates a false 
perception that the cost will be reduced and sets a dangerous precedent.  

DRAFT

Attachment Three



Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
SECTION 1 of the bill is being completely stricken and therefore divests LAFCO of all 
involvement in the formation process and it removes LAFCO from the process of dissolving 
any public water system identified by the SWRCB as mandated for dissolution and inclusion 
into the new authority except for holding a public hearing on the matter. Not only does this 
removal divest LAFCO of their authority and give it to the SWRCB, it eliminates the Plan for 
Service requirements to be included in the draft conceptual formation plan. All other public 
agencies are subject to submit a comprehensive Plan for Service when applying to provide 
services and exempting the authority from doing so sets a precedent.  
 
Code Section 78038(b) proposes to give quasi-legislative authority to the SWRCB in the action 
to form the new authority. The Legislature created LAFCO as a quasi-legislative body decades 
ago to do this very thing. While the Legislature has exercised its authority to create new service 
providers in the past, until now there has been no state agency with that authority. We fail to 
understand the need to create an entity at the state level to do something LAFCOs have been 
effectively doing for 57 years – forming new districts – that happen at the local level. 
 
LAFCO is being excluded from several critical notification points: 
 
• Code Section 78033(a)(1) excludes LAFCO from the list of entities the SWRCB is to notify 

of their intent to form the authority. LAFCO needs to be included in the list of other local 
agencies receiving such notification (such as cities, county, water districts, etc.). Further, 
this section allows the SWRCB to invite other public water suppliers to consider dissolving 
and join the authority. Without including LAFCO on the notification under this section, we 
would be in the dark regarding those local districts (both independent and dependent) that 
may consider dissolving.  
 

• Code Section 78033(a)(2)(A) excludes LAFCO notification from an entity wishing to 
consolidate into a proposed authority. LAFCO needs to be included in this notification. 
 

• Code Section 78033(a)(2)(B) provides that customers of an entity wishing to join a 
proposed authority petition the SWRCB directly. Not only does this keep LAFCO in the 
dark, it is a run-around of the current service provider as there appears to be no notification 
to them.  
 

• Code Section 78033(b) allows the governing board of a county or city dependent special 
district to notify the formation coordinator they wish to opt into the new authority. Here 
again, without LAFCO receiving this notification there is no way for us to know of the 
pending dissolution.  

 
In addition to removing LAFCOs’ existing authority from the formation process of a public 
agency service provider, we are concerned about Code Section 78037(a)(3) which requires the 
LAFCO to hold a public hearing to allow for public comment on the dissolution of the public 
water system mandated for dissolution by the SWRCB and requires the LAFCO to provide all 
comments back to the SWRCB for consideration (without the funding to do either). The section 
also states the dissolution shall be ordered upon completion of the public hearing. We question 
the purpose of reporting back the public comments to the SWRCB for consideration if the 
dissolution is ordered immediately upon closure of the public hearing.  

DRAFT

Attachment Three



Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
If one of the goals of these amendments is to closer align processes with SB 88, then it would 
stand to reason the SWRCB would be the entity conducting the public hearing (pursuant to 
Code Section 116682 of the Health and Safety Code), especially given the fact that with these 
amendments, the LAFCO no longer has any other part in the actual dissolution. 
 
Ordering a dissolution for a service provider who is currently providing service requires a 
successor agency to assume the delivery of service as well as all the assets and liabilities of the 
entity being dissolved. Code Section 78037(a)(4) requires the order of dissolution to make 
appropriate equitable arrangements for the interim operation of the public water system until 
the formation of the authority is complete, and they are prepared to take over service delivery. 
While that “interim” service provider may be identified in the draft conceptual formation plan, 
78037(a)(4) does not explicitly state to whom the service, assets and liabilities should be 
transferred. We suggest language be added to explicitly state the interim operator as identified 
in the approved conceptual formation plan. 
 
Proposed amendments to the draft conceptual plan 
We have a few concerns relating to the draft conceptual plan as noted below.  
 
• Code Section 78035(c) requires the formation coordinator to submit the draft conceptual 

formation plan to the SWRCB and any applicable LAFCO for comments within 60 days 
of its receipt. Further, the formation coordinator shall finalize the plan for public comment 
no later than 30 days after receiving comments from the SWRCB. What is left out of this 
section are the comments on the plan from the LAFCO. Undoubtedly, as the local agency 
who is responsible for the formation of public agencies, LAFCOs know what to look for 
and consider when reviewing formation plans. The LAFCO comments need to be 
considered by the SWRCB and the formation coordinator before the document is available 
for public comment. 
 

• Code Section 78038 requires LAFCO to hold two public hearings on the draft conceptual 
formation plan and to subsequently submit a report to the SWRCB summarizing public 
comment and any recommendations the LAFCO may have for the SWRCB on the plan. 
We would like to see amendments requiring the SWRCB to specifically adopt or reject 
each of our recommendation on the draft plan and explain their response for those 
decisions.  

 
Removing funding for LAFCO mandates 
The current version of the bill reflects a cost of up to $10.65 million to LAFCOs for authority 
formations, which represents only 11.5% of the total cost estimate of $89.15 million. Using 
these projections, the costs associated with LAFCO are far below every other entity and related 
provision (with one exception) of the dissolutions; formations; administration; SWRCB 
support and support for the authorities once formed. The cost for LAFCOs to perform the 
dissolution of public water systems and to form the new authority are far likely to be less than 
having the SWRCB perform these functions. Consequently, we believe this creates a false 
perception that the overall cost will be reduced by removing LAFCO from the process. 
Transitioning these processes to a state agency rather than keeping them at the local level does 
not in fact reduce costs – it simply transfers the cost from the local level to the state level. 
Further, we would assert the cost is less at the LAFCO level.  
 

DRAFT

Attachment Three



Senate Bill 414 – Small System Water Authority Act of 2020 – OPPOSE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
August 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Finally, the proposed pending amendments require LAFCOs to (1) review the proposed plan 
and provide recommendations to the SWRCB; (2) hold a public hearing to allow for public 
comment on the dissolution of the public water system mandated by the SWRCB for 
dissolution and provide all comments to the SWRCB: (3) hold two public hearings to receive 
input on the proposed plan for the new authority, summarize comments received and provide 
a report to the SWRCB; (4) review a report on the authority’s performance for the first three 
years; and (5) hold a public hearing as directed by the SWRCB if the new authority is failing 
to comply with the plan to review the authority’s performance and provide a report back to the 
SWRCB on comments received at the hearing.  
 
The proposed pending amendments remove all the funding for LAFCO for all the actions still 
required by the bill as noted above. Section 78038(a) adds a clause to address funding for only 
the two public hearings to consider the draft conceptual plan and prepare the required report – 
and only if – they (LAFCO) “incur extraordinary costs over and above its normal budgeted 
operating expenses for conducting the public hearing and preparing the report to the state 
board”.  All of the LAFCO expenses related to SB 414 are over and above normal operating 
budget costs and in order to cover them should the state not, it is highly likely we will have to 
increase fees to the local government agencies that pay into the LAFCO annually (cities, 
counties, and special districts).  
 
We strongly believe LAFCOs need to be added to the language in Section 78115 (a)(1). All 
other entities, including the Public Utilities Commission, have some level of funding in the 
proposed pending amendments. To eliminate the funding for the one local agency involved and 
retain funding for all state agencies involved puts the collection of that funding on the backs of 
local government. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions about our OPPOSE position to 
the proposed amendments on SB 414. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 

 
Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 
(707) 259-8645 
bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov  
 
 
 
cc: Assembly Local Government Committee 
 Assembly Environmental Safety & Toxic Materials Committee 
 Senate Governance and Finance Committee 
 Senate Environmental Quality Committee  
 Pamela Miller, Executive Director, CALAFCO 

Kenneth Leary, Napa LAFCO Chair 

DRAFT

Attachment Three

mailto:bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov


 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7e (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
   Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Outreach Committee Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The recommended action is for the Commission to provide direction to staff and/or the 
Outreach Committee to commence any desired outreach efforts. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
On February 3, 2020, the Commission appointed Chair Leary and Alternate Commissioner 
Kahn to a newly established ad hoc Outreach Committee (“the Committee”) for purposes 
of exploring opportunities and necessary resources to provide outreach and education to 
the general public related to LAFCO activities. 
 
The Committee met on March 11, 2020, to develop an Outreach Plan. The Committee 
evaluated several outreach strategies along with the resources needed to implement those 
strategies. The Committee discussed available resources and the intended audiences for 
various outreach efforts. The Committee agreed to prioritize outreach strategies that 
eliminate or minimize financial impacts, staff time, and printed materials.  
 
The Committee met again on July 20, 2020, and considered the significant impacts of 
COVID-19 with respect to previously discussed outreach strategies. For example, physical 
public workshops are no longer an effective outreach tool within the foreseeable future, 
but virtual meetings provide an efficient and versatile option for government agencies to 
engage the public without the logistical challenges of a well-attended physical meeting. 
The Committee concluded the plan and its implementation should be flexible to 
accommodate changed conditions. The Committee agreed upon a Draft Outreach Plan as 
described on the following page. 
 
 
 



Outreach Committee Update 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Draft Outreach Plan 
 
Title: “Napa LAFCO at a Glance” 
 

Program Status: Pilot Program 
 

Goals:   
1. Build trust in the community 
2. Provide transparency – it is our duty to tell people what we do 
3. Make Napa LAFCO more visible and less obscure 
4. Provide reliable, consistent information and facts 

 

Target Audience:  
1. Elected officials (especially newly elected) 
2. Local agencies 
3. Real estate and land use professionals 
4. Agricultural industry 
5. Hospitality industry 
6. Miscellaneous interest groups and organizations 
7. News media  
8. General public  

 

Principles: 
1. Factual and neutral information 
2. Environmentally sensitive outreach program 
3. Cost effective  
4. Leverage efforts  

Implementation Strategy 
 
The following are examples of outreach strategies discussed by the Committee. The 
Commission is invited to discuss these strategies and potential alternative strategies. With 
respect to available financial resources, it is important to note the Commission’s adopted 
budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 does not include any dedicated funds for outreach efforts. 
 

• Islands Education and Outreach: New Page on Website (Budget Impact: $49.50) 
The Committee recommends performing dedicated education and outreach efforts 
related to annexation of unincorporated islands. Toward this end, staff recently 
authorized the Commission’s website host, Planeteria, to add a new page dedicated 
to island annexation information on the agency’s website. Staff expeditiously 
proceeded with this activity given the timely nature of island annexation 
discussions with City of Napa staff. The next step is for staff to add content to the 
new page. The Committee recommends additional outreach efforts including, but 
not limited to, conducting virtual public workshops, updating the Commission’s 
informational flyer on island annexation, and potentially mailing a copy of the flyer 
to all landowners and residents within the islands. Staff will be contacting agencies 
that have conducted island workshops and developed informational documents. 



Outreach Committee Update 
August 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 

• Social Media Engagement (Budget Impact: $0) 
Staff and interested members of the Commission would collectively allocate up to 
three hours per week creating social media content and engaging with the public. 
Examples of content include short videos of staff or members of the Commissioner 
explaining why LAFCOs are important and can provide a forum for discussion of 
local governmental issues. A student intern could be a valuable resource in the 
development a social media program.  
 

• Informational Handouts (Budget Impact: $0) 
Staff has been attending regular teleconference meetings hosted by CALAFCO and 
the Commission’s Executive Officer expressed concern that LAFCO’s relevance 
would be scrutinized in response to COVID-19’s impact on the economy. Several 
other LAFCOs shared the same concern and agreed to form a committee to focus 
on the right messaging for LAFCOs throughout the state to demonstrate the 
importance and potential of LAFCOs. The Commission’s Executive Officer and 
Analyst II both served on the CALAFCO committee, which held several meetings 
and produced high quality informational handouts that are currently in draft form. 
Once finalized, the Outreach Committee recommends electronically disseminating 
CALAFCO’s handouts as part of the Commission’s outreach efforts.  
 

• Utilize LAFCO’s Neutral Role (Budget Impact: $0) 
LAFCO is uniquely positioned to collaborate with other local government agencies 
and look outside the typical silos. In this role LAFCO can facilitate cooperation, 
sharing of resources, and dissemination of information. The Countywide Water and 
Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR) has identified various agencies, 
some with robust resources and others struggling to survive. Implementation of the 
MSR can include identifying “warning signs” that an agency is in crisis. Although 
LAFCO does not have the authority to resolve all issues, it does have the mandate 
to shine a light on these issues. LAFCO can serve as a “clearinghouse” of 
information, studies, and solutions from across the state and across agency silos. 
The Commission may consider building on this recent success by scheduling more 
countywide MSRs for specific services as opposed to MSRs for individual 
agencies. This can be accomplished in the annual Work Program or through a future 
strategic planning workshop. The Commission is also invited to discuss preferences 
and strategies to disseminate information about MSRs and other relevant LAFCO 
activities to the target audience groups. 

  



Outreach Committee Update 
August 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 

• Leveraging Efforts of Others (Budget Impact: $0) 
The Committee determined leveraging efforts of other agencies and organizations 
would be both cost effective and provide an opportunity to reach a wider audience. 
Methods to accomplish this include: 
 
1. Dedicated efforts to proactively schedule Executive Officer presentations 

(virtual) to various organizations such as service clubs and local groups 
 

2. Interviews and/or press releases to local media (e.g., Napa Valley Register, 
Napa Valley Marketplace Magazine) 
 

3. Request other agencies to include a link to the LAFCO website on their websites 

• Additional Outreach Methods (Budget: $0):  
The Committee recognized that outreach regarding LAFCO has several challenges. 
The first challenge is making people aware that LAFCO exists. The next challenge 
is explaining what LAFCO does and why. Generally, an individual would not know 
to visit the LAFCO website. With this in mind, proactive methods of outreach were 
discussed by the Committee. The following provides a list of possible actions: 
 
1. Biannual Napa LAFCO open house for newly elected officials (when physical 

gatherings are allowed) 
 

2. Electronic distribution of the LAFCO Directory of Local Agencies 
 

3. Develop and electronically distribute a Napa LAFCO newsletter (annually or 
quarterly) 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7f (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: August 3, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: CALAFCO Voting Delegates and Board Nominations 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Commission take the following actions: 
 

1) Appoint one voting delegate and one alternate voting delegate for the California 
Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) Board of 
Directors election; and 
 

2) If interested, nominate a County Member for the CALAFCO Board of Directors. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
The 2020 CALAFCO Annual Conference was originally scheduled for October 21 to 
October 23 in Monterey. However, the Annual Conference has been canceled in response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
The Annual Conference typically includes Board of Directors (“Board”) elections and an 
achievement awards ceremony. Due to the cancellation of the conference, the Board 
elections will occur electronically and there will be no achievement awards. As a 
replacement for the conference, CALAFCO University is offering a series of free webinars 
to members of CALAFCO. A flyer for the webinar series is included as Attachment One. 
 
Board elections are conducted by regions (Central, Coastal, Northern, and Southern). Napa 
County is in CALAFCO’s Coastal Region. Board members serve two-year terms, and there 
are no term limits. A listing of current CALAFCO Board members is included as 
Attachment Two. Notably, Commissioner Mohler is currently serving a second term on the 
Board as the Coastal Region’s City Member with a term expiring in October 2021. 
 
 
 
 



CALAFCO Voting Delegates and Board Nominations 
August 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 
The Commission will consider appointing voting delegates and making Board nominations 
as described below. 
 
Voting Delegates 
 
Each LAFCO may appoint one voting delegate and one alternate voting delegate to 
participate in the Board elections the Annual Conference. The voting delegate will also 
cast votes during a virtual annual business meeting.  
 
Staff recommends the Commission appoint one voting delegate and one alternate voting 
delegate amongst members of the Commission or staff. The past practice has been to 
appoint the Chair and Vice Chair.  
 
Board Nominations 
 
This year’s Board elections for the Coastal Region will occur electronically and involve 
the County and District Member seats. The Commission does not have special district 
representation and therefore the only eligible candidates for a Board seat are Vice Chair 
Dillon, Commissioner Wagenknecht, and Alternate Commissioner Gregory. The 
incumbent Coastal Region County Member is Jane Parker from Monterey LAFCO. 
 
If an eligible member indicates interest in serving on the Board, staff recommends the 
Commission consider a formal nomination of that member. Board nominations must be 
signed by the Chair and include a complete nomination packet for the candidate. The 
deadline to submit a nomination is September 22, 2020. The nomination packet is included 
as Attachment Three. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) CALAFCO Webinar Series Flyer 
2) CALAFCO Board of Directors Current Roster 
3) CALAFCO Board of Directors Nomination Packet 



ABOUT THIS SERIES 
CALAFCO is here for you during the Pandemic with a series of three, no-
cost LAFCo 101 webinars. These are not your ordinary “Just the basics” 
webinars!  Join us for informative and fun (yes, FUN!) webinars that 
explore all the basics of LAFCo. Whether you are looking to jump start 
your level of knowledge or take your skills to the next level, there is 
always something to learn at LAFCo 101. 

SESSION ONE 
Navigating the Basics and Beyond - LAFCo 101 for LAFCo Staff 
DATE: Thursday, August 6, 2020 
TIME: 9:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 
Registration closes July 30, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
SR and Joe will cover LAFCo 101 topics such as the authority and purpose of 
LAFCo; the LAFCo review process; the laws involved in LAFCo decisions and 
updating Spheres of Influence and Municipal Service Reviews. 
Presenters: SR Jones, Executive Officer, Nevada LAFCo and Joe Serrano, Executive 
Officer, Santa Cruz LAFCo 
This session is approved for 1.5 AICP CM credits 

SESSION TWO 
The Magical World of LAFCo Clerking – A Look at Processes and Supporting 
Your Commissioners from a Clerk and Analyst Perspective 
DATE: Thursday, August 13, 2020 
TIME: 9:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 
Registration closes on August 6, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
Martha, Amanda and Terry will delve into LAFCo clerk and analyst best 
practices, taking an application from receipt through to hearing and completion, 
Brown Act and Public Records Act and how to effectively respond to the needs of 
your Executive Officer, Commissioners and the public all while keeping your 
sanity.  
Presenters: Martha Poyatos, Executive Officer, San Mateo LAFCo; Amanda Olivas, 
Clerk, Fresno LAFCo; Terri Tuck, Clerk, Yolo LAFCo 

SESSION THREE 
Being a LAFCo Commissioner – What Does it Really Mean? 
DATE: Friday, August 21, 2020 
TIME: 10 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
Registration closes August 14, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
This session is designed specifically for LAFCo Commissioners. Scott and David 
will cover the role of LAFCo Commissioners, the Brown Act and PRA for 
Commissioners and Conflicts of Interests. Navigating the Brown Act, Open 
Meetings Act and Public Records Act can be a challenge sometimes, so we’ll dive 
into how to keep yourself and your LAFCo out of trouble in these areas. 
Presenters: Scott Browne, Legal Counsel, various LAFCos and David West, 
Commissioner, Imperial LAFCo 

REGISTRATION INFORMATION 

NO REGISTRATION FEE IS REQUIRED FOR 
ANY OF THE SESSIONS FOR MEMBERS OF 
CALAFCO. THIS SERIES IS DESIGNED ONLY 

FOR THE MEMBERS OF CALAFCO. 

Individual registration for each session is 
required. Registrations are online only. 
Click on the links below to register.  

SESSION ONE 

SESSION TWO 

SESSION THREE 

Registration must be received by the date 
noted for each session.  
No late registrations will be accepted.  

Once you register on Eventbrite you will 
receive the Zoom Registration link with 
your confirmation email.  You will then 
need to use that Zoom Registration link 
prior to the session to get the Webinar link 
to join that session. DO NOT WAIT UNTIL 
THE LAST MINUTE TO DO THIS STEP.

You can also find this information on the 
CALAFCO website at www.calafco.org.  

For additional information or questions, 
please contact CALAFCO University lead 
Martha Poyatos at mpoyatos@smcgov.org 

CALAFCO 
1020 12th Street, Suite 222 

Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-442-6536

www.calafco.org

JJooiinn  UUss  ffoorr  aa  VVeerryy  SSppeecciiaall   
LLAAFFCCoo  110011  WWeebbiinnaarr  SSeerriieess  

Attachment One

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/navigating-the-basics-and-beyond-lafco-101-for-lafco-staff-tickets-113707658668
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/the-magical-world-of-lafco-clerking-tickets-113709530266
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/being-a-lafco-commissioner-what-does-it-really-mean-tickets-113709871286
http://www.calafco.org/
mailto:mpoyatos@smcgov.org
http://www.calafco.org/


CALAFCO Board Members 2019-20 
(as of June 19, 2020) 

 Board Member Name LAFCo - Region 
Type 

(Term Expires) 

Cheryl Brothers Orange - Southern City (2020) 

Bill Connelly - Treasurer Butte - Northern County (2021) 

David Couch Humboldt - Northern District (2021) 

Shiva Frentzen  El Dorado - Central County (2020) 

Blake Inscore Del Norte - Northern City (2020) 

Gay Jones Sacramento - Central District (2020) 

Michael Kelley – Vice Chair Imperial - Southern County (2021) 

Michael McGill - Chair Contra Costa - Coastal District (2020) 

Jo MacKenzie San Diego - Southern District (2021) 

Margie Mohler Napa - Coastal City (2021) 

Tom Murray San Luis Obispo - Coastal Public (2021) 

Anita Paque - Secretary Calaveras - Central Public (2021) 

Jane Parker Monterey - Coastal County (2020) 

Daniel Parra Fresno - Central City (2021) 

Josh Susman Nevada - Northern Public (2020) 

David West Imperial - Southern Public (2020) 

Attachment Two



June 19, 2020 

To: Local Agency Formation Commission 
Members and Alternate Members 

From: Shiva Frentzen, Committee Chair 
CALAFCO Board Election Committee 
CALAFCO Board of Directors 

RE: Nominations for 2020/2021 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Nominations are now open for the fall elections of the CALAFCO Board of Directors.  Serving on the 
CALAFCO Board is a unique opportunity to work with other commissioners throughout the state on 
legislative, fiscal and operational issues that affect us all.  The Board meets four to five times each 
year at alternate sites around the state.  Any LAFCo commissioner or alternate commissioner is 
eligible to run for a Board seat. 

CALAFCO’s Election Committee is accepting nominations for the eight (8) seats noted below on the 
CALAFCO Board of Directors. There are two (2) open in each region as follows: 

Central Region Southern Region Northern Region Coastal Region 
County Member City Member City Member County Member 
District Member Public Member Public Member District Member 

The election will be conducted during Regional Caucuses at the CALAFCO Annual Conference prior to 
the Annual Membership Meeting on Thursday, October 22, 2020 at the Hyatt Regency in 
Monterey, CA. If we are unable to have an in-person annual conference due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the elections will be conducted by all mail ballot. This means there will be no nominations 
from the floor as part of the usual caucus procedures.  

Please inform your Commission that the CALAFCO Election Committee is accepting nominations 
for the above-cited seats until Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 

Incumbents are eligible to run for another term. Nominations received by September 22 will be 
included in the Election Committee’s Report and will be on the ballot. The Report will be distributed 
to LAFCo members no later than October 7, 2020 and ballots made available to Voting Delegates at 
the Annual Conference.  Nominations received after this date will be returned; however, nominations 
will be permitted from the floor during the Regional Caucuses or during at-large elections, if required, 
at the Annual Membership Meeting.  

For those member LAFCos who cannot send a representative to the Annual Meeting an electronic 
ballot will be made available if requested in advance. The ballot request must be made no later than 
Tuesday, September 22, 2020.  Completed absentee ballots must be returned by 8:00 a.m., 
Monday, October 19, 2020.   

Should your Commission nominate a candidate, the Chair of your Commission must complete the 
attached Nomination Form and the Candidate’s Resume Form or provide the specified information 
in another format other than a resume.  Commissions may also include a letter of recommendation 
or resolution in support of their nominee.   

CALAFCO 

Attachment Three



The nomination forms and materials must be received by the CALAFCO Executive Director no later 
than Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. Here is a summary of the deadlines for this year’s 
nomination process: 
 

• June 23 – Nomination Announcement and packet sent to LAFCo membership and posted on 
the CALAFCO website. 

• September 22 – Completed Nomination packet due 
• September 22 –Request for an absentee/electronic ballot due 
• September 22 – Voting delegate name due to CALAFCO 
• October 7 – Distribution of the Election Committee Report (includes all completed/submitted 

nomination papers) 
• October 7 – Distribution of requested absentee/electronic ballots.  
• October 19 – Absentee ballots due to CALAFCO 
• October 22 - Elections 

 
Returning the nomination form prior to the deadline ensures your nominee is placed on the ballot. 
Names will be listed in the order nominations were received should there be multiple candidates. 
Electronic filing of nomination forms and materials is encouraged to facilitate the recruitment 
process.  Please send e-mails with forms and materials to info@calafco.org. Alternatively, nomination 
forms and materials can be mailed or faxed to the address or fax number below. Please forward 
nominations to: 
 
 CALAFCO Election Committee c/o Executive Director 
 California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 
 1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
 Sacramento, California 95814 
 FAX: 916-442-6535 
 EMAIL: info@calafco.org  
 
Questions about the election process can be sent to the Chair of the Committee, Shiva Frentzen, at 
sfrentzen@calafco.org or by calling her at 530-621-5390. You may also contact CALAFCO Executive 
Director Pamela Miller at pmiller@calafco.org or by calling 916-442-6536. 
 
Members of the 2020/2021 CALAFCO Election Committee are: 
 

Shiva Frentzen, Chair El Dorado LAFCo (Central Region)  
sfrentzen@calafco.org 530-621-5390 
 

 David Couch Humboldt LAFCo (Northern Region) 
  dcouch@cityofarcata.org 530-242-1112 

 
 Jo MacKenzie San Diego LAFCo (Southern Region) 
 jmackenzie@calafco.org  858-614-7755 
 
 Tom Murray San Luis Obispo LAFCo (Coastal Region) 
 tmurray@calafco.org  805-781-5795 
 
Attached please find a copy of the CALAFCO Board of Directors Nomination and Election Procedures 
as well as the current listing of Board Members and corresponding terms of office. 
 
Please consider joining us! 
 
Enclosures 

Local Agency Formation Commissions       Page 2 
CALAFCO Board of Directors Nominations  June 19, 2020 

Attachment Three

mailto:info@calafco.org
mailto:info@calafco.org


Key Timeframes for 
Nominations Process 

Days*  
90 Nomination announcement 
30 Nomination deadline 
14 Committee report released 

*Days prior to annual membership meeting
  

 
Board of Directors 

Nomination and Election Procedures and Forms 
 

The procedures for nominations and election of the CALAFCO Board of Directors [Board] are designed 
to assure full, fair and open consideration of all candidates, provide confidential balloting for 
contested positions and avoid excessive demands on the time of those participating in the CALAFCO 
Annual Conference. 
 

The Board nomination and election procedures shall be: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF AN ELECTION COMMITTEE: 
 

a. Following the Annual Membership Meeting the Board shall appoint an Election Committee 
of four members of the Board.  The Election Committee shall consist of one member from 
each region whose term is not ending. 8 

 
b. The Board shall appoint one of the members of the Election Committee to serve as 

Chairman.  The CALAFCO Executive Officer shall appoint a CALAFCO staff member to serve 
as staff for the Election Committee in cooperation with the CALAFCO Executive Director. 8 

 
c. Each region shall designate a regional representative to serve as staff liaison to the 

Election Committee. 8 
 
d. Goals of the Committee are to provide oversight of the elections process and to encourage 

and solicit candidates by region who represent member LAFCos across the spectrum of 
geography, size, and urban suburban and rural population if there is an open seat for 
which no nominations papers have been received close to the deadline. 8 

 
2. ANNOUNCEMENT TO ALL MEMBER LAFCOs: 
 

a. No later than three months prior to the Annual Membership Meeting, the Election 
Committee Chair shall send an announcement to each LAFCo for distribution to each 
commissioner and alternate.  The announcement shall include the following: 8 

 
i. A statement clearly indicating which offices are subject to the election. 
 
ii. A regional map including LAFCos listed by region. 
 
iii. The dates by which all nominations must be received by the Election Committee. The 

deadline shall be no later than 30 days prior to the opening of the Annual Conference.  
Nominations received after the closing date shall be returned to the proposing LAFCo 
marked “Received too late for Elections Committee action.” 8 

 
iv. The names of the Election Committee members with the 

Committee Chairman’s LAFCo address and phone number, 
and the names and contact information for each of the 
regional representatives. 8 

 
v. The address to send the nominations forms. 
 
vi. A form for a Commission to use to nominate a candidate 

and a candidate resume form of no more than one page each to be completed for each 
nominee.   

 
b. No later than four months before the annual membership meeting, the Election Committee 

Chairman shall send an announcement to the Executive Director for distribution to each 
member LAFCo and for publication in the newsletter and on the web site. The 
announcement shall include the following: 8 

 

Attachment Three



 
i. A statement clearly indicating which offices are subject to the election. 
 
ii. The specific date by which all nominations must be received by the Election 

Committee. Nominations received after the closing dates shall be returned to the 
proposing LAFCo marked “Received too late for Election Committee action.” 8 

 
iii. The names of the Election Committee members with the Committee Chair’s LAFCo 

address and phone number, and the names and contact information for each of the 
regional representatives. 8 

iv. Requirement that nominated individual must be a commissioner or alternate 
commissioner from a member in good standing within the region.  

 
c.    A copy of these procedures shall be posted on the web site. 

 
3. THE ELECTION COMMITTEE: 
 

a. The Election Committee and the regional representatives have the responsibility to monitor 
nominations and help assure that there are adequate nominations from each region for 
each seat up for election. No later than two weeks prior to the Annual Conference, the 
Election Committee Chair shall distribute to the members the Committee Report organized 
by regions, including copies of all nominations and resumes, which are received prior to the 
end of the nomination period. 8 

 
b. At the close of the nominations the Election Committee shall prepare regional ballots. Each 

region will receive a ballot specific to that region. Each region shall conduct a caucus at the 
Annual Conference for the purpose of electing their designated seats. Caucus elections 
must be held prior to the annual membership meeting at the conference. The Executive 
Director or assigned staff along with a member of the Election Committee shall tally ballots 
at each caucus and provide the Election Committee the names of the elected Board 
members and any open seats. In the event of a tie, the staff and Election Committee 
member shall immediately conduct a run-off ballot of the tied candidates. 8 

c. Make available sufficient copies of the Committee Report for each Voting Delegate by the 
beginning of the Annual Conference. 
 

d. Make available blank copies of the nomination forms and resume forms to accommodate 
nominations from the floor at either the caucuses or the annual meeting (if an at-large 
election is required). 

 
e. Advise the Executive Director to provide “CANDIDATE” ribbons to all candidates attending 

the Annual Conference. 8 
 
f. Post the candidate statements/resumes organized by region on a bulletin board near the 

registration desk. 
 
g. Regional elections shall be conducted as described in Section 4 below. The representative 

from the Election Committee shall serve as the Presiding Officer for the purpose of the 
caucus election. 8 

 
h. Following the regional elections, in the event that there are open seats for any offices 

subject to the election, the Election Committee Chair shall notify the Chair of the Board of 
Directors that an at-large election will be required at the annual membership meeting and 
to provide a list of the number and category of seats requiring an at-large election. 8 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Attachment Three



4. ELECTRONIC BALLOT FOR LAFCO IN GOOD STANDING NOT ATTENDING ANNUAL MEETING6 
Limited to the elections of the Board of Directors 

  
a. Any LAFCo in good standing shall have the option to request an electronic ballot if there will 

be no representative attending the annual meeting. 

b. LAFCos requesting an electronic ballot shall do so in writing no later than 30 days prior to 
the annual meeting. 

c. The Executive Director shall distribute the electronic ballot no later than two weeks prior to 
the annual meeting. 

d. LAFCo must return the ballot electronically to the executive director no later than three 
days prior to the annual meeting. 

e. LAFCos voting under this provision may discard their electronic ballot if a representative is 
able to attend the annual meeting. 

f. LAFCos voting under this provision may only vote for the candidates nominated by the 
Election Committee and may not vote in any run-off elections. 8 

 
 

5. AT THE TIME FOR ELECTIONS DURING THE REGIONAL CAUCUSES OR ANNUAL 
MEMBERSHIP MEETING: 

 
a. The Election Committee Chairman, another member of the Election Committee or the 

Chair’s designee (hereafter called the Presiding Officer) shall: 8 
 

i. Review the election procedure with the membership. 
 

ii. Present the Election Committee Report (previously distributed). 
 

iii. Call for nominations from the floor by category for those seats subject to this 
election:  

 
1. For city member. 
 
2. For county member. 
 
3. For public member. 
 
4. For special district member. 

 
b. To make a nomination from the floor, a LAFCo, which is in good standing, shall identify 

itself and then name the category of vacancy and individual being nominated. The 
nominator may make a presentation not to exceed two minutes in support of the 
nomination. 

 
c. When there are no further nominations for a category, the Presiding Officer shall close the 

nominations for that category. 
d. The Presiding Officer shall conduct a “Candidates Forum”.  Each candidate shall be given 

time to make a brief statement for their candidacy. 
 
e. The Presiding Officer shall then conduct the election: 

 
i. For categories where there are the same number of candidates as vacancies, the 

Presiding Officer shall: 
 

1. Name the nominees and offices for which they are nominated. 
2. Call for a voice vote on all nominees and thereafter declare those unopposed 

candidates duly elected. 

Attachment Three



ii. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, the Presiding Officer 
shall: 

 
1. Poll the LAFCos in good standing by written ballot. 
 
2. Each LAFCo in good standing may cast its vote for as many nominees as there 

are vacancies to be filled.  The vote shall be recorded on a tally sheet. 
 
3. Any ballots submitted electronically for candidates included in the Election 

Committee Report shall be added to the tally.8 
 
4. With assistance from CALAFCO staff, tally the votes cast and announce the 

results. 
 

iii. Election to the Board shall occur as follows: 
 

1. The nominee receiving the majority6 of votes cast is elected. 
 
2. In the case of no majority, the two nominees receiving the two highest number of 

votes cast shall face each other in a run-off election. Electronic ballots are not 
included in the tally for any run-off election(s).6 

 
3. In case of tie votes6: 

 
a. A second run-off election shall be held with the same two nominees. 
 
b. If there remains a tie after the second run-off, the winner shall be determined 

by a draw of lots. 
 

4. In the case of two vacancies, any candidate receiving a majority of votes cast is 
elected. 6  

 
a. In the case of no majority for either vacancy, the three nominees receiving 

the three highest number of votes cast shall face each other in a run-off 
election. 

 
b. In the case of no majority for one vacancy, the two nominees receiving the 

second and third highest number of votes cast shall face each other in a run-
off election. 

 
c. In the event of a tie, a second run-off election shall be held with the tied 

nominees. If there remains a tie after the second run-off election the winner 
shall be determined by a draw of lots. 

 
6. ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES 
 

a. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, names will be listed in the 
order nominated. 

 
b. The Election Committee Chair shall announce and introduce all Board Members elected at 

the Regional Caucuses at the annual business meeting. 8  
 
c. In the event that Board seats remain unfilled after a Regional Caucus, an election will be 

held immediately at the annual business meeting to fill the position at-large. Nominations 
will be taken from the floor and the election process will follow the procedures described in 
Section 4 above. Any commissioner or alternate from a member LAFCo may be nominated 
for at-large seats.  

d. Seats elected at-large become subject to regional election at the expiration of the term. 
Only representatives from the region may be nominated for the seat.  

 
e. As required by the Bylaws, the members of the Board shall meet as soon as possible after 

Attachment Three



election of new board members for the purpose of electing officers, determining meeting 
places and times for the coming year, and conducting any other necessary business. 

 
7. LOSS OF ELECTION IN HOME LAFCo 

 
Board Members and candidates who lose elections in their home office shall notify the 
Executive Director within 15 days of the certification of the election. 
 

8. FILLING BOARD VACANCIES 

Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by appointment by the Board for the balance 
of the unexpired term. Appointees must be from the same category as the vacancy, and should 
be from the same region.   

These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 20071 , 8 February 
20082, 13 February 20093, 12 February 20104, 18 February 20115, 29 April 20116,,  11 July 20147, and 27 October 20178. .  They supersede all previous 
versions of the policies. 
.

CALAFCO Regions 

Attachment Three



The counties in each of the four regions consist of the following:  

 

Northern Region Coastal Region 
Butte Alameda 
Colusa Contra Costa 
Del Norte Marin 
Glenn Monterey 
Humboldt Napa 
Lake San Benito 
Lassen San Francisco 
Mendocino San Luis Obispo 
Modoc San Mateo 
Nevada Santa Barbara 
Plumas Santa Clara 
Shasta Santa Cruz 
Sierra Solano 
Siskiyou Sonoma 
Sutter Ventura 
Tehama  
Trinity CONTACT: Martha Poyatos   
Yuba San Mateo LAFCo 
 mpoyatos@smcgov.org   
CONTACT:  Steve Lucas 
Butte LAFCo 
slucas@buttecounty.net Central Region 
 Alpine  
 Amador  
 Calaveras  
Southern Region El Dorado 
Orange Fresno 
Los Angeles Inyo 
Imperial Kern 
Riverside Kings 
San Bernardino Madera 
San Diego Mariposa 
 Merced 
CONTACT:  Gary Thompson Mono 
Riverside LAFCo Placer 
gthompson@lafco.org    Sacramento 
 San Joaquin 
 Stanislaus 
 Tulare 
 Tuolumne  
 Yolo  
 
 CONTACT:  Christine Crawford, Yolo LAFCo 

christine.crawford@yolocounty.org 

 
 

 

Attachment Three



Board of Directors 

2020/2021 Nominations Form 
 
 

Nomination to the CALAFCO Board of Directors 
 

 
In accordance with the Nominations and Election Procedures of CALAFCO,  

  LAFCo of the   Region  

Nominates   

for the (check one)   City   County  Special District   Public 

Position on the CALAFCO Board of Directors to be filled by election at the next Annual 

Membership Meeting of the Association. 

 
 

 
 

   
LAFCo Chair 

 
 

   
Date 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Nominations must be received by September 22, 2020 
at 5:00 p.m. to be considered by the Election Committee. 
Send completed nominations to: 
CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Attachment Three



 
 

Board of Directors 
2020/2021 Candidate Resume Form 

 

Nominated By:      LAFCo Date:   

Region (please check one):     Northern   Coastal   Central   Southern 
 
Category (please check one):     City   County   Special District   Public 

Candidate Name   

 Address   

 Phone Office   Mobile   

 e-mail    
 
Personal and Professional Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAFCo Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CALAFCO or State-level Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Received  

  

Attachment Three



Availability: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Related Activities and Comments: 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Nominations must be received by September 22, 2020 
at 5:00 p.m. to be considered by the Election Committee. 
Send completed nominations to: 
CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Attachment Three


	8-3-20_6b_4thQuarterBudget.pdf
	6b_4thQBudget_1.pdf
	4th Quarter


	8-3-20_6d_StrategicPlanWorkProgramProgress.pdf
	6d_SP-WP_2.pdf
	8-3-20


	8-3-20_7a_LosRoblesDrNo2-NSD.pdf
	7a_LosRobles_1 (fees submitted).pdf
	5.  The affected territory is shown on the map and described in the geographic description in the attached Exhibit “A”.

	7a_LosRobles_4.pdf
	Los Robles Drive No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) Factors for Commission Determinations
	(1) Population and population density; land area and land use; assessed valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent areas, during...
	(2) The need for municipal services; the present cost and adequacy of municipal services and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services and controls; probable effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, or exclusio...
	(3) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests, and on local governmental structure.
	(4) The conformity of the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development, and the policies and priorities set forth in G.C. Section 56377.
	(5) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands, as defined by G.C. Section 56016.
	(6) The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecti...
	(7) Consistency with a regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to G.C. Section 65080.
	(8) Consistency with the city or county general and specific plans.
	(9) The sphere of influence of any local agency affected by the proposal.
	(10) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency.
	(11) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those services following the proposed boundary change.
	(12) Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in
	(13) The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by the appropriate council of governments.
	(14) Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of the affected territory.
	(15) Any information relating to existing land use designations.
	(16) The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice. As used in this subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of people of all races, cultures, incomes, and national origins, with re...
	(17) Information contained in a local hazard mitigation plan, information contained in a safety element of a general plan, and any maps that identify land as a very high fire hazard zone pursuant to Section 51178 or maps that identify land determined ...
	(18) For annexations involving special districts, whether the proposed action will be for the interest of the landowners or present or future inhabitants within the district and within the territory proposed to be annexed to the district.



	8-3-20_7b_LindaVistaNo21-NSD.pdf
	7b_LindaVista_4.pdf
	Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) Factors for Commission Determinations
	(1) Population and population density; land area and land use; assessed valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent areas, during...
	(2) The need for municipal services; the present cost and adequacy of municipal services and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services and controls; probable effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, or exclusio...
	(3) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests, and on local governmental structure.
	(4) The conformity of the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development, and the policies and priorities set forth in G.C. Section 56377.
	(5) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands, as defined by G.C. Section 56016.
	(6) The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecti...
	(7) Consistency with a regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to G.C. Section 65080.
	(8) Consistency with the city or county general and specific plans.
	(9) The sphere of influence of any local agency affected by the proposal.
	(10) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency.
	(11) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those services following the proposed boundary change.
	(12) Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in
	(13) The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by the appropriate council of governments.
	(14) Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of the affected territory.
	(15) Any information relating to existing land use designations.
	(16)  The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice. As used in this subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of people of all races, cultures, incomes, and national origins, with r...
	(17) Information contained in a local hazard mitigation plan, information contained in a safety element of a general plan, and any maps that identify land as a very high fire hazard zone pursuant to Section 51178 or maps that identify land determined ...
	(18) For annexations involving special districts, whether the proposed action will be for the interest of the landowners or present or future inhabitants within the district and within the territory proposed to be annexed to the district.



	8-3-20_7c_CommentsDraftWaterWastewaterMSR.pdf
	7c_CommentsMSR_2.pdf
	Comments on Draft MSR - CVWD.pdf
	From: "Valerie E. Clemen" <VClemen@coombslaw.com>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Bruce & Carol Barge.pdf
	From: Bruce and Carol Barge <2barges@gmail.com> Date: July 17, 2020 at 7:55:26 PM PDT To: jennifer@pcateam.com Subject: Napa Oaks II

	Comments on Draft MSR - Eve Kahn.pdf
	From: Eve Kahn <evekahn@yahoo.com> Date: July 18, 2020 at 4:21:57 PM PDT To: "jennifer@pcateam.com" <jennifer@pcateam.com> Subject: Napa LAFCO Countywide MSR Reply-To: Eve Kahn <evekahn@yahoo.com>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Geoff Ellsworth.pdf
	From: Geoff Ellsworth <GEllsworth@cityofsthelena.org>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Leon Brauning.pdf
	From: Leon Brauning <leon.brauning@yahoo.com> Date: July 12, 2020 at 10:49:56 AM PDT To: "jennifer@pcateam.com" <jennifer@pcateam.com> Subject: Napa Water agencies Reply-To: Leon Brauning <leon.brauning@yahoo.com>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Mary OBrien LBRID.pdf
	From: "mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com" <mary_j_obrien@yahoo.com>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Patricia Damery.pdf
	From: Patricia Damery <damery17@icloud.com>

	Comments on Draft MSR - Roland Dumas.pdf
	Notes on the LAFCO report.
	The nature of the report
	Please add, request, challenge
	Uncertainty, improbability, and inevitable surprises
	Failures within the study’s information
	Failures due to asteroids and other exogenous influences

	The request: offer or request

	Comments on Draft MSR - American Canyon Bill Ross 5-14-20.pdf
	From: William Ross <wross@lawross.com> Date: May 14, 2020 at 6:47:30 PM PDT To: Jennifer Stephenson <JENNIFER@PCATEAM.COM> Cc: Jason Holley <jholley@cityofamericancanyon.org>, Rick Kaufman <RKaufman@cityofamericancanyon.org> Subject: RE:  Admin Draft ...

	Comments on Draft MSR - Workshop 7-13-20.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY
	JULY 13, 2020 VIRTUAL WORKSHOP
	PUBLIC COMMENTS



	8-3-20_7f_CALAFCO.pdf
	7f_CALAFCO_1.pdf
	ABOUT THIS SERIES
	SESSION ONE
	This session is approved for 1.5 AICP CM credits
	SESSION TWO
	SESSION THREE
	REGISTRATION INFORMATION
	NO REGISTRATION FEE IS REQUIRED FOR ANY OF THE SESSIONS FOR MEMBERS OF CALAFCO. THIS SERIES IS DESIGNED ONLY FOR THE MEMBERS OF CALAFCO.

	Join Us for a Very Special                            LAFCo 101 Webinar Series

	7f_CALAFCO_3.pdf
	Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by appointment by the Board for the balance of the unexpired term. Appointees must be from the same category as the vacancy, and should be from the same region.


	8-3-20_5a_Minutes_6-1-20_7-13-20.pdf
	5a_Minutes_1.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY
	REGULAR* MEETING MINUTES OF JUNE 1, 2020
	1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED AGENDA
	VOTE:
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	VOTE:
	7. PUBLIC HEARING ITEM
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	10. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING


	5a_Minutes_2.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY
	SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 13, 2020


	7b_LindaVista_1.pdf
	5.  The affected territory is shown on the map and described in the geographic description in the attached Exhibit “A”.




